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In addition to historical information, this annual report on Form 10-Kteins forward-looking statements within the meaning of
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E ofdinétiSe Exchange Act of 1934. These statements include, aninamg ot
things, our expectations regarding the Proficiency Requirements aintbiést on our case volume and revenues, the anticipated impact our
new products and product enhancements will have on doctor utilizattbowa market share, our expectations regarding product mix and
product adoption, our expectations regarding the existence and impaeisohsdity, our expectations regarding the continued growth of our
international markets, our expectations regarding the impact of ineteesnsumer marketing programs in Europe, the anticipated level of
our operating expenses, and other factors beyond our control, aasvether statements regarding our future operations, financial tondi
and prospects and business strategies. These statements maywordaisuch as “expects,” “anticipates,” “intends,” “plans,” “batves,”
“estimates,” or other words indicating future results. Thes&véod-looking statements are subject to certain risks and wmo##ds that
could cause actual results to differ materially from thoskecédd in the forward-looking statements. Factors that coaldse or contribute to
such differences include, but are not limited to, those discusstn 7 “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Camdand
Results of Operations”, and in particular, the risks discudsgldw in Part I, Item 1A “Risk Factors”. We undertake no adtiign to revise or
update these forward-looking statements. Given these risks antaimtees, readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such
forward-looking statements.

PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Our Company

Align Technology, Inc. designs, manufactures and marketinwisalign system, a proprietary method for trepthalocclusion, or the
misalignment of teeth. Invisalign corrects maloddnsising a series of clear, nearly invisible, remtéalppliances that gently move teeth to
a desired final position. Because it does not rely omusgleeof metal or ceramic brackets and wires, Ingeadignificantly reduces the
aesthetic and other limitations associated with nzetdl wires and brackets, commonly referred to as ®raéée received the United States
Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”) clearance to markefsalign in 1998. The Invisalign system is regulated leyRBA as a Class Il
medical device.

We distribute the vast majority of our products direatlptir customers: the orthodontist and the general pioaeti dentist, or GP. In
order to provide the Invisalign treatment solutionhteirt patients, orthodontists and GPs must initiallpplete an Invisalign training
course. In addition, for North America dental profesdigrevery Invisalign provider must start 10 Invisaligsesand complete at least 10
Invisalign-specific continuing education (CE) creditsheealendar year. See discussion of Invisalign ProftgidRequirements iltem 1 —
Business — Business Strategy — Becoming a Leading Invisaligdgarov The Invisalign system is sold in North Americar@pe, Asia
Pacific, Latin America and Japan. We use a distribuiadel for the sale of our products in parts of the Rsieific and Latin American
regions. Additionally, we recently announced the addiioan international distributor for the smaller country kets in Europe, the Middle
East and Africa.

We were incorporated in Delaware in April 1997. Our headersaare currently located at 881 Martin Avenue, Salaea(CCalifornia
95050, and our telephone number is 408-470-1000. In January 20&0feved into a lease agreement for office spaateld@at 2560
Orchard Parkway, San Jose, California for our new cotptr@adquarters. We expect to commence conducting isintss location on or
about June 28, 2010. Our international headquarters ateddnaAmsterdam, Netherlands. Our digital planning andvao# facility is
located in San Jose, Costa Rica and our aligner manfactacility is located in Juarez, Mexico.
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Industry Background
Malocclusion

Malocclusion, or the misalignment of teeth, is onghefmost prevalent clinical dental conditions, affecapproximately 50 to 75% of
the population of major developed countries or nearlylamiindividuals. Approximately 4 million people annuallga treatment by
orthodontists worldwide, of which approximately 2.2 miilisave mild to moderate malocclusion and are applicabevigalign—our served
market. While most individuals seek orthodontic treatni@improve their appearance, malocclusion maylas@sponsible for dental
problems such as tooth decay, tooth loss, gum diseaspjjhwain and headaches. Because of the compromistteties, discomfort and
other drawbacks associated with traditional orthodorgttnents, only a relatively small proportion of peagtéh malocclusion seek
treatment.

Traditional Orthodontic Treatment

In the U.S., dental professionals treat malocclusiongrily with metal arch wires and brackets, commaefgrred to as
braces. Occasionally, dental professionals atteoniptpprove treatment aesthetics by using ceramic, todtdrezbbrackets or bond brackets
on the inside, or lingual surfaces, of the patiemtt. Dental professionals also augment braces laigtics, metal bands, headgear and
other ancillary devices.

The average treatment takes approximately 12 to 24 mandosriplete and requires several hours of direct derdafdgsional
involvement, or chair time. To initiate treatment, atdeprofessional will diagnose a patient’s conditor create an appropriate treatment
plan. In a subsequent visit, the dental professionabwaiitl brackets to the patient’s teeth with a bonding agehtittach an arch wire to the
brackets. Thereafter, by tightening or otherwise adigstie braces approximately every six weeks, the derafelssional is able to exert
sufficient force on the patient’s teeth to achievaerddgooth movement. In a final visit, the dental pssional removes each bracket and
residual bonding agent from the patient’s teeth. Upompbetion of the treatment, the dental professional,ratliis or her discretion, have
the patient use a retainer.

Fees for traditional orthodontic treatment typicallygatetween U.S. $3,500 to $7,000 with a median fee of approkir&{e00;
generally only a portion of the fee is reimbursed syrance. Fees are based on the difficulty of the paaticake and on the dental
professional’s estimate of chair time, and are geryenaljotiated in advance. A treatment that exceeds thal geotessional’s estimate of
chair time generally results in decreased fees per Halmad time, and reduced profitability for the dentaifpssional.

Limitations of Traditional Orthodontic Treatment

Although braces are generally effective in correctivgde range of malocclusions, they are subject to rliemtations and
disadvantages. Traditional orthodontic treatment iscéas®d with:

» Unattractive appearance. Braces call attention to the patient’s condition andrreat. In addition, braces trap food, which ¢
further compromise appearance. Braces can also ireg@tmanent discoloration of teeth. As a result ef¢hand other
limitations, relatively few adults with malocclusioreet traditional orthodontic treatment and braces campcomise the self
esteem of young adults and teenagers.

» Oral discomfort. Braces are sharp and bulky and can abrade and ithtateterior surfaces of the mouth. The tightening or
adjustment of braces results in root and gum soreneddistminfort, especially in the few days immediatelyoleing an
orthodontic visit.

» Poor oral hygiene  Braces can make it difficult to brush and floss leaveegh vulnerable to developing decay, plaque,
periodontal disease and stains that must be taken fcaiterobraces are removed. Additionally, the bondinlgrackets to teeth
can cause permanent markings on the teeth.

» Inability to project treatmer  Historically, dental professionals have not had ama¢a model the movement of teeth over a
course of treatment. Accordingly, dental professionalst rely on intuition

4



Table of Contents

and judgment to plan and project treatment. As a relsait,cannot be precise about the direction or distahegpected tooth
movement between patient visits. This lack of predititglohay result in unwanted tooth movements and aait the dental
professional’s ability to estimate the duration ebtment. Because most orthodontic treatment is peetbon a fixed price basis,
extended treatment duration reduces profitability fordér@al professional.

* Physical demands on dental professic  The manipulation of wires and brackets requires sustairsual dexterity and
visual acuity, and may place other physical burdens@déhtal profession

* Root resorptior  The sustained high levels of force associated with toadit treatment can result in root resorption, which is a
shortening of tooth roots. This shortening can have sufstadverse periodontal consequences for the patient.

« Emergencie. At times, brackets and wires need to be repairedptsiced on an emergency basis. Such emergencies cause
significant inconvenience to both the patient areddantal professional.

Due to the poor aesthetics, discomfort and otherdiioits of braces, relatively few adults with malocdnselect traditional orthodontic
treatment. Additionally, teenagers that seek orthodarg@tment have traditionally only had the option of bsafor treatment. Accordingly,
we believe there is a large unmet need for an altematithodontic system that addresses these patientrnence

The Invisalign Solution

Invisalign is a proprietary system for treating nealasion. The Invisalign system is comprised of sdygrases, the principal steps of
which are the creation of customized digital treatmentsplesing proprietary software known as ClinCheck, wbagurs in our facility in
San Jose, Costa Rica, and the manufacturing of custimzisalign aligners, which occurs in our facility in Juariglexico.

Orthodontic diagnosis and transmission of treatment data to ui an initial patient visit, the dental profesgibdetermines whether
Invisalign is an appropriate treatment. The dental psad@al then prepares a treatment data package whiststsoof a polyvinyl-siloxane,
or PVS impression of the relevant dental archesys-ohthe patient’s dentition, photographs of the pateeiite impression depicting the
relationship between the patient’s upper and lower tanthes and an Invisalign treatment planning formyesgiption. The impression is
a critical component of the Invisalign system as it dsphe three-dimensional geometry of the patient's t@etl hence forms the basis for
our computer models and subsequent molds and alignersnpkassion requires the patient to bite into a viscoatenal. This material
hardens, capturing the shape of the patient’s teeth prEiseription is also a critical component of the laligs system, describing the desired
positions and movement of the patient’s teeth. Theatlprifessional sends the treatment data to our fatililuarez, Mexico.

Preparation of three-dimensional computer models of the patieritial malocclusion. Upon receipt, we use the treatment data to
construct digital models of the patient’s dentition. dstomputed tomography, known as CT scanning, we scan/Bénkpression to
develop a digital, three-dimensional computer model of thierg& current dentition. We then transmit this initamputer model together
with the dental professional’s prescription and suppieatenaterials electronically to our facility in SarsdpCosta Rica.

Preparation of computer-simulated treatment and viewing of tredtosing ClinCheck. In Costa Rica, we transform this initial
digital model into a proposed custom, three-dimensionahtieed plan that simulates appropriate tooth movementéni@ssof two-week
increments. This simulated treatment plan, calledCBleck, is an internally developed and proprietary compateleling program that
allows dental professionals to diagnose and plan texdgor their patients. This ClinCheck simulatiothisn reviewed for adherence to
prescribed clinical treatment and quality standards. Wdpampletion of the review, the patient’s ClinCheclhisrt made available to the
prescribing dental professional via Virtual Invisaliga®ice (VIP), our proprietary customer interfacingwafe portal, which is available on
our websites located atwvw.invisalign.conandwww.aligntech.com The dental professional then reviews the ClinChackcan either
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accept the proposed treatment or request modificatiahadjnstments until satisfied with the treatment plan.@ieck allows the dental
professional to view this three-dimensional simulatiomaihigh degree of magnification and from any angle. wliegly, ClinCheck

enables the dental professional to project tooth mememvith a level of accuracy not previously possibléwitetal arch wires and

brackets. By reviewing and amending the treatment aioul the dental professional retains control owertteatment plan and, thus
participates in the customized design of the alignerghifipoint, the dental professional may also invigegatient to view the treatment plan,
allowing the patient to see the projected courseeattitnent. The dental professional’s final approvahefroposed ClinCheck treatment
engages us to manufacture the corresponding molds and aligdaesez, Mexico.

Construction of molds corresponding to each step of treatmendpon the dental professional’s approval of theChieck simulation,
we use the data underlying the simulation, in conjunatiith stereolithography technology, to construct sesesf molds depicting the future
position of the patient’'s teeth. Each mold is a repifche patient’s teeth at each two-week stage of thalated course of treatment. These
molds are then used to fabricate the patient’s alggner

Manufacture of aligners and shipment to the dental professiondtrom these molds, aligners are fabricated by pregsrming
polymeric sheets over each mold. Aligners are thegrgblastic, removable dental appliances that arerousiaEnufactured in a series to
correspond to each two-week stage of the ClinCheck diimulaAligners are customized to perform the treatnpeascribed for an individual
patient by dental professionals using ClinCheck. Edghed covers a patient’s teeth and is nearly invisillemworn. Aligners are
commonly worn in pairs, over the upper and lower dentalegic Aligners are generally worn for consecutive weak periods which
correspond to the approved ClinCheck treatment simalatidter two weeks of use, the patient replaces theimtiwe next pair in the series,
advancing the teeth movement with each aligner stalgis pfocess is repeated until the final aligners are asd treatment is
complete. When treating with Invisalign Full, Invisalifxpress and Invisalign Teen, aligners are manufactackthan delivered to the
dental professionals in a single shipment. For &liga Assist, aligners are manufactured in batches lmasadorogress tracking feature
integrated into Invisalign Assist. When the progressking feature is selected, aligners are shipped toehial professional after every nine
stages. In certain cases, dental professionals mapvisalign in conjunction with tooth-colored attachmdmiaded to the patient’s
teeth. These attachments are used to increase teeafgptied to a tooth or teeth in circumstances wheralitpgers alone may have difficulty
in effecting the desired movement. We provide amaligike template to the dental professionals tolaédpiacement of bonding attachments
to the patient’s teeth where needed. Also, in casesanhterproximal reduction, or IPR, is required or reqaesyethe dental professional,
we provide an IPR treatment form, quantifying the amofispace to be created through enamel reduction, locatidriiraing of IPR.

Retention. Upon completion of the treatment, the patient neagriescribed our single clear retainer product or ourrsivetainer
product. Vivera retainers are shipped every three mavtirsthe one year period.

Our Products
Our revenues are generated from the sale of the fadpproduct offerings.

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Percentage of Revenues by Product 2009 2008 2007
Invisalign Full 75% 84% 86%
Invisalign Express 9 8 8
Invisalign Teen 8 2 —
Invisalign Assist 3 — —
Other 5 6 6
Total 100% 100% 100%
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Invisalign Full.  Invisalign Full is intended to be used as a complesgrtrent for a broad range of malocclusions. Eachmesstplan
is unique to the individual patient and will consist oh@mny aligners as indicated by ClinCheck in order to aefhties doctor’s treatment
goals. For Invisalign Full, aligners are manufaduaad then delivered to the dental professionals in aessinghment.

Invisalign Express. Invisalign Express is a lower-cost solution foslesmplex orthodontic cases. Invisalign Express is aatahl
orthodontic treatment for cases that meet certaidegpeemined clinical criteria and consist of up to ten se#digners. Invisalign Express is
intended to help a broader range of patients elect orttiodmatment by providing a lower-cost option for adelapse cases, for minor
crowding and spacing, or as a pre-cursor to restoraticesmetic treatments such as veneers. For lignsakpress, aligners are
manufactured and then delivered to the dental profedsiona single shipment.

Invisalign Teen. Invisalign Teen is designed to meet the specdids of the non-adult comprehensive or teen treatment
market. Invisalign Teen includes features such as conuglismdicators to help gauge patient wear and compliarttspecially engineered
aligner features to address the natural eruption ofdetir common in teen patients. Predominantly marketedtiodontists who treat the
vast majority of malocclusion in teen patients, thesg¢ures are intended to meet the treatment needs ofyinasger patients. As part of
Invisalign Teen, we include up to six free individuallagement aligners during active treatment to cover piatealigner loss. For Invisalign
Teen, aligners (other than the replacement aligneeshanufactured and then delivered to the dental professiorasingle shipment.

Invisalign Assist. Invisalign Assist is designed specifically for€&Gho want more support in selecting, monitoring and fingsh
Invisalign cases. Intended to help newly-trained aneéto/olume GPs accelerate the adoption and frequencg afusvisalign into their
practice, Invisalign Assist is intended to make it easleGPS to select appropriate cases for their expegitevel or treatment approach,
submit cases more efficiently and manage appointmettissuggested tasks. In addition, progress tracking featlmes@Ps to submit new
impressions every nine stages. When the progresdnyg feature is selected, aligners are shipped tdehial professional after every nine
stages

Retention. In addition to our traditional single retainergwot, we offer Vivera retainers, where we deliver & neplacement retainer
to orthodontic patients every three months for one. y®asera retainers are produced using the same ptaprieechnology and material as
the Invisalign aligners, and offer an effective, adsthretention solution for both Invisalign and non-kalign patients.

Training, Ancillary and Other. The remaining net revenues are generated by trde®sgand sales of ancillary products, such as
cleaning material and adjusting tools used by dental iofesls during the course of treatment.

Proprietary software mentioned in this Annual Report amF0-K such as ClinCheck and VIP (Virtual Invisalignd®ice) are
included as part of the Invisalign system and aresoldt separately nor do they contribute as individualStehrevenue.

Benefits of Invisalign
We believe that Invisalign provides benefits to dentalgssionals and patients that have the potentiatablesh Invisalign as the

preferred alternative to traditional braces.
Benefits to the dental professional

*  Ability to visualize the treatment plan and treatment op. ClinCheck enables dental professionals to preaisvmodify the
intended outcome of treatment in an interactive three-dim@siscomputer model. ClinCheck allows dental professdioto
analyze multiple treatment alternatives before selgctia course of action they feel is most appropf@téhe patient.
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Expanded patient ba:  We believe that Invisalign has the potential to tramsfthe practice of orthodontics. Currently,
approximately 4 million people annually elect treatmensityodontists worldwide, of which approximately 20lion have milc
to moderate malocclusion and are applicable to Ingisatour served market. As of December 31, 2009, our shane of

2.2 million patients in our served market is approximately &ar market research indicates that the vast majfrppeople with
malocclusion who desire treatment do not elect traditi’eatment because of its many limitations. Weetbelthat since
Invisalign addresses the primary limitations of bea@alults, who are particularly sensitive to aesthietitations of traditional
treatment, will be more likely to seek treatment. Werefore believe that Invisalign will allow dentabfessionals to attract
patients who would not otherwise seek orthodontic treatmla addition, as the primary care provider, GPs la@eess to a
greater number of patients than orthodontists and possgsgLee opportunity to introduce Invisalign and expand thettijpea
and patient base.

Practice productivity ~ We believe that as dental professionals move toleehigplume of Invisalign patients, they will be able
to better leverage their existing resources, including ttadéf and office space resulting in an increase in gaitient
appointments and practice productivity.

Benefits to the Patient

Excellent aesthetic  Aligners are nearly invisible when worn, significgnttducing the aesthetic concerns associated with
traditional braces.

Comfort. By replacing the six-week adjustment cycle of trad#tidraces with two-week stages, aligners move teetle m
gently. Also, aligners are thin, smooth and low in ifgofAs a result, aligners are more comfortable asd Irritating than
traditional braces.

Improved oral hygien  Patients can remove aligners for tasks that are diffrath traditional braces, such as eating, brushing
and flossing. We believe this feature has the piaiieiotreduce enamel decalcification, tooth decay, andgental damage
during treatment, which may result from tradition&kfi braces.

Potentially reduced overall treatment tit ~ Aligners control force by distributing it broadly ovéie exposed surfaces of the
teeth. In addition, the ClinCheck simulation from whadigners are produced is designed to reduce unintended arckssagy
tooth movements. Together, these factors may reducelloveatment time relative to traditional braces.

Potentially reduced root resorptic ~ We believe that controlling force and shortening treatnime has the potential to reduce
the incidence of root resorption, which is the breakdomatestruction of root structure that can occur duringooiontic
treatment.

Reduced incidence of emergenc  Typically, a lost or broken aligner is simply repldeth the next aligner in the treatment
series, minimizing inconvenience to both the patem the dental professional.

We believe that these benefits will prove attractovpeople who currently do not seek treatment because lfntikegions of traditional
braces or as an alternative, more aesthetic treatmpéoh for teenagers.

Limitations of Invisalign

In some instances, the Invisalign system may haveigdimitations relative to traditional treatmentighers cost more to produce than
traditional braces, and we charge dental professonate than they generally pay for the supplies usedditibnal treatment. Depending
on the individual pricing policies of each dental pssfenal and the treatment selected, the cost of ligrismeatment to the patient may be
greater than for traditional braces. Dental profesgdsgomust also incorporate our manufacturing cycle timestheir overall treatment
plan. Once a dental professional submits a case thans,are a variety of factors that may impact wherctiresponding aligners are
delivered, one of which includes the timing of when thealgrbfessional
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accepts the case. Aligners may not be appropriatdifoases, such as severe malocclusion, which mayreegjigners to be used in
combination with traditional braces for optimal resulis.addition, because aligners are removable, treatosing Invisalign depends on
patients wearing their aligners as recommended. Somatsatiay experience a temporary period of adjustment tovgealigners that may
mildly affect speech. In some instances, patients égperienced scratched or irritated gums, cheeks andhlipg aome rare instances,
allergic reactions have been reported. We believehibaetlimitations are generally outweighed by the mangftisrof Invisalign to both
patients and dental professionals.

Our Target Market and Patient Base

Our market research indicates that the majority of pasiplemalocclusion who desire treatment forgo treatmathiar than elect
traditional treatment due to its many limitations.e Weélieve that since Invisalign addresses the prinraitations of braces, adults, who are
particularly sensitive to aesthetic limitations @fditional treatment, will be more likely to seek treattrend therefore represent our most
immediate market expansion opportunity. With the laundhws$align Teen in July 2008, we now offer a product desigo@deet the needs
of the non-adult comprehensive, or younger teen, treatmaritet. Invisalign Teen makes our treatment more egipé to an orthodontist’s
patient base, which we believe will provide us the oppdtiio increase our penetration into and our shatleeofeen treatment market.

Approximately 4 million people annually elect treatment bia@ibntists worldwide of which approximately 2.2 million hawid to
moderate malocclusion and are applicable to Invisalign-sewwed market. Twenty-three percent of these pati@négproximately 510,000,
have mature dentition (adults and older teens), witl-erilipted second molars and substantially completed jaw grdsebenty-seven
percent, or approximately 1.7 million, have erupting dentiimm-adult comprehensive, or younger teens), with plgrgalipted second
molars, cuspid and second bicuspid teeth. As of DeceBih@009, our share of the 2.2 million patients in ouresemarket is
approximately 6%.

Published market data for GPs providing treatment fdocohusion is limited, however, as the primary garevider, GPs have access to
a greater number of patients than orthodontists andgmasenique opportunity to introduce Invisalign and expand ttesitipe and patient
base. We believe GPs represent a significant maxkension opportunity.

As of December 31, 2009, approximately 1,164,695 patients cuvelyaworldwide have started treatment using Invisalighe T
Invisalign system is sold in North America, Europe,ad8acific, Latin America and Japan. International salesumted for 24%, 21% and
17% of our net revenues in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectivelyoghagrhic breakdown of our net revenues is summarizBiodtia 18
“Segments and Geographical Information” in the Notes to our Congdeltginancial StatementsWe operate as one reportable
segment—the design, development, manufacturing and maykstinvisalign. Additionally, no single customer acctaehfor 10% or more
of our total net revenues in 2009, 2008, and 2007.

Business Strategy

Our goal is to establish Invisalign as the standardhogetor treating malocclusion ultimately driving incredgroduct adoption by
dental professionals by focusing on the following kegtstic initiatives:

1. Continue to accelerate product and technology innovatiordeer to extend clinical effectiveness and treat rpatents and
achieve better outcomes;

2. Enhance the customer experience for our doctors and fosta# by making it easier and more efficient to adaptsalign into
their practice and increase utilization;

3. Drive more efficient consumer demand creation, immprconversion rates and re-fresh the Invisalign biawade and positioning;
and

4.  Continue to drive European growth while opening up adaitioew markets around the world.
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Product innovation and clinical effectiveness.We believe that product performance and innovatiarci@nerstone to our future
long-term goal to drive and sustain product adoption. @omapy channels—GPs and orthodontists—each have distidcteparate
needs. Specifically, orthodontists want a more rokeisof tools for greater predictability, wider applitityoand more flexibility in the use of
the Invisalign system. On the other hand, typical G&st greater ease of use, more efficient and simgldfiagnostic tools, guidance
through the case set-up process, minimal treatment int@weand self-help tools designed to simplify treatméicses of mild to moderate
malocclusion. Based on this knowledge we announced éwgnoducts in 2008 to address these distinct needs. 12008y we released
Invisalign Teen which is designed to meet the specigda®f the non-adult comprehensive or younger teen mdpketilominantly marketed
to the orthodontist, the launch of a teen-specific prothakes the Invisalign system more applicable to #trodontist’s patient base, which
we believe will increase our penetration into andshare of the teen treatment market over time. Ihgisdeen has grown from 3% of our
total case volume when it was introduced in 2008 to 12% ofotaircase volume in 2009 and we expect that orthodsntiitcontinue to
adopt Invisalign Teen slowly, after they experience iplalsuccessful treatment outcomes. In October 2008, waiaoea the release of
Invisalign Assist, which is intended to help newly-trairaad lower volume Invisalign GPs accelerate the adoptidriraquency of use of
Invisalign into their practice. Invisalign Assist feges are intended to make it easier for doctors tatsgbgropriate cases for their experience
level or treatment approach. In October 2009, additioaflifes were added or enhanced in Invisalign Assist thattereled to expand the
capabilities of Invisalign Assist and give doctors ¢bafidence and control necessary to treat a wider rahgatients. We also introduced
new and enhanced features in all other Invisalign prodddie new product line features are designed to overbamers to treatment by
addressing clinical issues that some orthodontists &sdh@ve traditionally perceived as challenging in Ingsdiieatment, such as extrusion
and rotation of teeth, root movements and interproxigdiction (IPR). We believe continuing to introduce peaducts and product
features will keep us at the forefront of the marketiantkase adoption and frequency of use (what we callatidiz or same practice sales)
of Invisalign, however, we expect that adoption of these products will increase gradually over a number of years

We continue to make significant progress with new prodamtisfeatures for Invisalign, yet total Invisaligneasarts are still small
relative to our total served market. During 2010, we pasontinue our efforts to demonstrate clinical efficand work towards a long term
goal of becoming the orthodontic treatment of choice.

Enhancing the customer experience and increasing adoptiowe are committed to enhancing the customer experlanfocusing on
specific customer “touch points”, or areas where weaatalirectly with our customers. Specifically, we pdeviobust clinical education
resources and training programs, improving customer sygpoviding field sales support and helping doctors wititjice development on
how to better integrate Invisalign into their practice

* Clinical Education and Training Ensuring that trained doctors are confident ingifie Invisalign system is a key driver
toward our ultimate goal of increasing product adoptife continuously update our training programs to addressetrasrof
our customers. For instance, we developed a pre-tracoimgge intended to familiarize doctors with the InvigaBystem prior to
attending the full training course. In addition, we rnglseupdated our initial training program, Clear Essaati, by focusing on
Invisalign Assist, instead of Invisalign Full, since telieve Invisalign Assist is the right product for netshined GPs. We
anticipate that by using Invisalign Assist, newly trai@&Ps will exit this initial training program with ina@ged confidence in
prescribing Invisalign treatment. Our new doctor trainmblorth America is evolving to identify and focus practices that are
interested in gaining the skills and experience necessarysaccessful with Invisalign. In the past, many doctongpteted this
training course as a means of learning more aboutaliyisor leveraging the marketing benefits of Invggal but then only
sporadically submitted cases. Building on our experienttetie Proficiency Requirements, we expect that irfithee doctors
are more likely to attend our Clear Essentials hirg course when they are actually ready to begin usingdlign in their
practices right away. As a result, over time, wedweliwe are likely to have a more focused,
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engaged and committed customer base that maintains abaelp-to-date Invisalign product knowledge.

We have also incorporated the Invisalign technique irg@thiriculum of 38 university programs. By educating desitalents
and orthodontic residents on the benefits of the &tigs technique, we believe they will be more likely to tsg technology in
their future practices and offer Invisalign as a tremthoption. Other resources that we offer our doctaisde the Aligntech
Institute program (www.aligntechinstitute.com ), whisfan interactive website that provides clinical educadiuth practice
development training. These clinical education and pedwelopment training opportunities include instructor-laiing
classes, seminars and workshops, conference calldyageld videos, case studies, and other clinical resouxasy of these
courses and resources are eligible for continuing edacgdig) credits. Additionally, our VIP portal (Virtual lisalign Practice)
provides our trained doctors and their staff accessotgstnds of Invisalign cases and best practices assvaf-to-date support
information, programs and marketing materials for contistgupport and information access.

*  Customer Support and Practice Developmennce a doctor is trained, we provide additioralises to help our customers
increase their confidence in using the Invisalignesysthrough clinical support and continuing education, as wéath@i®ving
their practice management skills. At our Costa Racdify, we have over 700 treatment technicians and custsapgort staff
available to help our customers with their casestie@aiment plans. Our sales representatives providéaddisupport and
practice development tools such as staff training, Claoklsoftware tips and tools, practice marketing guidesraréeting
materials, as well as any assistance with the Ifigisaystem process.

» Becoming a Leading Invisalign provid  Our goal is to help ensure that every practice that waitksinvisalign can achieve
great clinical and commercial outcomes and that gvatignt in Invisalign treatment gets the smile they want.

On June 2, 2009, we announced the implementation of thalignd’roduct Proficiency Requirements (or the Profimyen
Requirements) in North America to help ensure that &figis-trained doctors have the experience and confideruessery to
achieve high quality treatment outcomes for Invisaligtigmts. Under the Proficiency Requirements, everysatign provider in
North America must have 10 Invisalign case starts (nmeddwy ClinCheck acceptance) and complete at least 1€aligri-specific
continuing education (CE) credits each calendar year. Boatoo met the proficiency requirements of 10 case stad< 0
Invisalign CE hours by the end of 2009 will benefit framew addition to Align’s consumer marketing programs tioae
encourages prospective patients to seek out “InvisaligiefPed Providers.” Starting in January 2010, this nevséhign Preferred
designation will be highlighted on the Invisalign web sitel in television ads as a way to recognize doctors’ ¢onant to
continued proficiency with Invisalign. The Invisaligreferred designation will then be awarded on an annsé timdoctors who
meet the proficiency requirements for a given year.

In October 2009, we updated the Proficiency Requirements intorélether support our customers through this significhange
and provided a one-time, additional six month qualificeperiod for doctors who were unable to meet thaqeoicy
requirements for 2009, but demonstrated a desire to contimglaosisalign. The additional six month qualificationipdr
stipulated that doctors who had at least one caseastit least one Invisalign CE hour at the end of 200®evihllowed to
maintain their active Invisalign provider status throdghe 30, 2010, provided that they meet half of the annuatiprafy
requirements (at least 5 case starts and 5 Invisakghddrs) between January 1 and June 30, 2010. Doclbstivbe
responsible for meeting the total annual requirementsle&at 10 case starts and 10 Invisalign CE hours bgritief 2010 to
qualify as providers for the following year.

Doctors with zero case starts or zero Invisalignh@krs at the end of 2009 were not eligible for the aafdhli qualification
period. They will be able to continue treating in-pregreases but will not be
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able to submit new Invisalign cases or use Invisalignding or marketing resources. Doctors can reactikiategrovider status
by retaking Invisalign Clear Essentials | training andtingehe proficiency requirements during the new cdderyear.

As of January 2010, approximately 6,400 doctors met the IigisBloficiency Requirements and another 15,800 doctorshmet t
criteria for the additional six-month qualification petim 2009. We limited the account status of approximatelQD3doctors
who did not meet either Proficiency Requirements oatlditional qualification period requirements but cantiome treating and
finishing in progress patients. In addition, we deactivamaoximately 9,600 Invisalign-trained doctors who had newlemitted

a single Invisalign case. Skem 1A — Risk Factors of this Annual Report on Form 10-K fos rislated to the Proficiency
Requirements.

Increasing the effectiveness of our consumer demand creatior-dreshing the Invisalign brand.  Marketing to the consumer and
creating demand is one of our key strategic objectivesvimdriong-term growth. Our market research indicateisttteamajority of people
with malocclusion who desire treatment forgo treatmatiter than elect traditional treatment due to its ntiamyations, such as compromised
aesthetics and oral discomfort. By communicating greefits of Invisalign to both dental professionals emgisumers, we intend to increase
the number of patients who seek treatment using IngisaHistorically, our marketing programs have been theto an adult audience,
however, with the introduction of Invisalign Teen, thistpesar we directed our communication efforts directlieens and their parents. We
continue to be successful with programs that more afidgtand efficiently generate demand or “pull” for Isalign. In 2009, we became
more efficient in our approach and grew overall lead géoarand awareness on lower total spending. We alsedldtir marketing mix
from conventional media towards more digital marketing aethknetworking activity. We introduced a new publiatieins program for
Invisalign Teen, launched a teen specific websitelewetaged online and mobile widgets, social media and Hiogstly targeted to
teens. We believe that consumer demand creatiokeg @omponent to our long-term growth. As a resudtywill continue to invest in
efforts to increase consumer awareness of Inviséiigppugh a variety of media outlets. We will continuerieedconsumer demand among
the adult population primarily though our conventional ragatbgrams, and increasingly leverage digital and everketirag and social
networking activity to directly target teens and thpgirents. Additionally, we are evolving the Invisallyyand strategy while refreshing the
Invisalign look and feel. We are introducing a new andemnoodern logo and new brand positioning focused on tesdtoutcome and
practice growth. As part of this effort, in January 2046 completely updated our consumer webgitgw.invisalign.com
www.aligntechinstitute.comand www.invisalign.com/teemmd base marketing materials. Preferred Providerdwvilhe first customers to be
able to utilize the new Invisalign branding for usehieit own marketing.

Growth of international markets. We will continue to focus our efforts towards iragiag adoption of Invisalign by dental
professionals in our key international markets, Europe apah] Similar to the North America market, our obyednternationally is to
increase the number of doctors that are motivateédome an Invisalign provider and committed to makingsétign a key part of their
practices. Through December 31, 2009, we have trained ouv#0ldoctors, predominantly orthodontists in core Europepramary
international market. Product line expansion is key toigiog doctors a solution that addresses a wider range oftiadtpatient needs with
greater treatment flexibility. In March 2009, we annaehthe availability of Invisalign Teen for Invisaligrained doctors worldwide, except
for Japan. As a result, we expect the addressable nfiarketr product to expand and ultimately increase adoptioaddition, we will carry
on our efforts to increase brand awareness and cansiemand in Europe by continuing our consumer advertsingpaign. Additionally,
although the vast majority of our international reveraresfrom direct sales, approximately 9% of our inteomati sales are through
distributors covering smaller international markets, spadif Asia Pacific and Latin America. We will csider selling through distributors
in other smaller or less strategic markets as watbasider expanding directly into additional countries case-by-case basis. For example,
we recently announced the addition of an internatiorstilblitor for smaller country markets in Europe, the Medglhst and Africa. With
these efforts, we expect our international revenuesritinuie to increase in absolute dollars and as a gageof total net revenues in the
foreseeable future. In 2009, our international sales isedefilom 21% of net revenues to 24% of net revenues.
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Manufacturing

To produce our highly customized, highly precise, medicditgymoducts in volume, we have developed a number of prapyiet
processes and technologies. These technologies inclugesosoftware solutions, CT scanning, stereolithograptd/automated aligner
fabrication.

Manufacturing administration is located in Santa Clagedif@nia; however, our digital planning and manufactufaglities are located
outside of the U.S. in San Jose, Costa Rica and Jh4egico. As of December 31, 2009, our digital planning, mantufaxg and operations
staff in the U.S., Costa Rica and Mexico consistetl 271 people. At our facility in Costa Rica, techniciass a sophisticated, internally
developed computer-modeling program to prepare digital treafotens. Upon acceptance of the ClinCheck set-up tesditptan by the
dental professional, these plans are then transnaiktetronically to Juarez, Mexico. ClinCheck and suppodigdgal files are used to
manufacture SLA (stereolithography) aligner mol@sir order acquisition operations, the manufacturindighar molds and aligners, as well
as the packaging and shipment of aligners, are conducted fecdity in Juarez, Mexico. In April 2009 we terminated shelter services
arrangements with International Manufacturing Solutions &penes, S.R.L., or IMS and became a direct manufactticerr clear aligners
at the facility in Juarez, Mexico. Information regagiimsks associated with our manufacturing process angjfooperations may be found
in Item 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K under the heading ‘Raskors.”

We rely on two vendors who are each the sole sourtteeqgfolymer and resin used in our manufacturing proceséie kevent that either
of these vendors becomes unable for any reason to sugpligh their respective products, we would experience a metwing disruption
while we qualify and obtain an alternate source.

Throughput Management

Because we manufacture each case on a build-to-orsisf & must conservatively build manufacturing capaoitafticipated
demand. To increase throughput, we must improve tretegfliy and increase the scale of our manufacturingepses.

In order to increase the efficiency of our manufacturiragg@sses, we focus our efforts on software developmertharimprovement of
rate-limiting processes, or bottlenecks. We contiougygrade our proprietary, three-dimensional treatment pigraaiftware to enhance
computer analysis of treatment data and to reduce time@pemanual and judgmental tasks for each case, therebgsimgyehe efficiency of
our technicians in Costa Rica. We are also continthie development of automated systems for the falmicand packaging of aligners
manufactured in Juarez, Mexico. In order to scale omufaaturing capacity, we expect that we will continuant@st in capital equipment.

Quality Assurance

Align’s quality system is in compliance with Food &gy Administration’s Medical Device regulations, 21CFR B2fi, and Health
Canada’s Medical Device Regulations. We are certibdeN ISO 13485:2003, internationally recognized standarddédical Device
manufacturing. We have a formal, documented qualitersyd®y which quality objectives are defined, understoodaghteved. Systems,
processes and procedures are implemented to ensure latghdieproduct and service quality. We monitor the éffeness of the quality
system based on internal data and direct customer feedbdcitrive to continually improve our systems andgsses, taking corrective
action, as needed.

Since we custom manufacture aligners on a build-to-dvalss, we do not offer refunds on our products. Because@®aCheck and
each aligner is unique, we inspect the product at vapourss during the manufacturing process, to ensurdhgiroduct meets our
customers’ expectations. Aligners are subject tortkiisalign product warranty, which covers defects in mdsesiad workmanship. Our
materials and workmanship warranty is in force untillttvisalign case is completed. In the event aligndts\thin the
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scope of the Invisalign product warranty, we will replieealigners at our expense. Our warranty is cgatihupon proper use of the
aligners for the purposes for which they are intendkd.patient chooses not to wear the aligners, ararasult, requests additional
Invisalign treatment, the dental professional payattditional expense of the replacement aligners. Wartaegiment requires that the
dental professional submit new impressions of thiegd dentition to us. We use the impressions tatera new ClinCheck treatment plan
for the dental professional to approve, from which @asgive series of aligners will be produced that Walathe patient to finish treatment.

The Invisalign product warranty does not provide any assasregarding the outcome of treatment using Invisalfgctual treatment
results may deviate significantly from the approved Cled¢khireatment plan. Deviations not covered under warravy typically been the
result of unpredictable biological factors, such asatirs in bone density or tooth topography and abngamagrowth.

Sales and Marketing

We market Invisalign by communicating the benefitthef Invisalign system to dental professionals througttraining programs, mail
campaigns, trade shows, trade journals and print mediap @od$umers through advertising, digital media, evenketiag and social
networking activities. Based on our experience with atbitegtand commercial sales, we believe that makimgwmers aware of Invisalign
as a new treatment alternative generates significarara@ifior Invisalign.

Professional Marketing

We provide training, marketing and clinical support to attmtists and GPs throughout North America and internationakyof
December 31, 2009, we had trained 59,890 dental professiworddisvide to use Invisalign. Of those trained dentafggsionals,
approximately 74% are dental professionals in our NorthrAvae market. Within our North American market, we havmé@ 8,935
orthodontists and 35,215 GPs cumulatively through the end of 2890part of the Proficiency Requirements, in January 2@&0jeactivated
approximately 9,600 Invisalign-trained doctors who had ngubmitted an Invisalign case. In addition, we limitegldghcount status of
approximately 13,400 doctors who did not meet either tbciRmcy Requirements or the additional qualificationigeerequirements but can
continue treating and finishing in progress patients.di&seission of Invisalign Product Proficiency Requirersémt
Item 1—Business—Business Strategy—"Becoming A Leading Iguifabvider”.

As of December 31, 2009 our North American sales organiizeonsisted of 164 people, of which 150 were direct sajgresentatives
and 14 were sales administration and management. Iidexabt we had 45 people engaged in sales and sales suppbResember 31,
2009. We continually evaluate cost effective ways to st customers in smaller markets. For instancejsgedistributors for the sale
of our products in part of the Asia Pacific and Latin Arcemniregions. We have also recently announced the addftam international
distributor in the smaller country markets in Europe Middle East and Africa. We will consider selling thgh a distributor in other smaller
markets as well as consider expanding directly into auditicountries on a case-by-case basis.

Invisalign relies on the same orthodontic princiglest apply to traditional treatment. Our sales angoolintic teams conduct training
primarily in a workshop format. The key topics coveredaming include Invisalign applicability, instructions fiting out the Invisalign
treatment form, clinical tips and techniques, guidanceriemg and instructions on interacting with our ClinChechvgare and the many
other features of our website.

After doctors complete their training, sales repredergs may follow up with the dental professional taueashat their staff is prepared
to handle Invisalign cases. These practice developautintties may include assisting the dental professio taking dental impressions,
treatment planning processes and familiarizing
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them with our dental online portals and tools. Sadpsasentatives may also provide practice-building assisténcluding helping the dental
professional to market Invisalign to prospective pasi¢émtough direct mail or other forms of media. Mangtdeprofessionals have
commenced promotional activity in their local regiothwour assistance.

Consumer Marketing

Our experience indicates that prospective patients seek atformfrom these primary sources:
* an orthodontist;
+ aGP;
e consumer marketing and advertising;

e our websites, which can be accessed at aitler.invisalign.com www.invisalignteen.comvww.aligntech.comor
www.aligntechinstitute.com

» direct-to-consumer mail and digital advertising;
*  public relations efforts; and

» other Invisalign patients.

Research and Development

Our research and development effort is focused on extptitgrange of clinical effectiveness and applicabdftinvisalign, enhancing
the software used in the manufacturing process and @ngana Invisalign system product lines, including the tv@ent of distinct
product platforms for the GPs and orthodontists suchwsalign Assist and Invisalign Teen. Our researchde@lopment expenses were
$22.3 million for 2009, $26.2 million for 2008, and $25.7 million 2007.

In an effort to demonstrate Invisalign’s broad treatheapabilities, various clinical case studies andlesticave been published that
highlight the applicability of Invisalign to malocclusicases, including those of severe complexity. We areualdertaking post-marketing
studies and making additional technological improvementsetpitoduct and manufacturing process. As mentioned in oind3gsStrategy,
we are making investments in the development of new pr@dnct enhancements of existing products to meet the akedsscustomers and
increase adoption and utilization of Invisalign.

Intellectual Property

We believe our intellectual property position represarggbstantial business advantage. As of December 31, 2008,d4:31 issued
U.S. patents, 160 pending U.S. patent applications, and nusnfereign issued patents, as well as 122 pending foreigntpat
applications. Sekem 3 “Legal Proceedings” for a discussion on Reexamination Prongsdiending with the United States Patent and
Trademark Office.

We continue to pursue further intellectual property prataediirough U.S. and foreign patent applications and notesise
agreements. We also seek to protect our software, @otation and other written materials under trade saagkcopyright laws. We
cannot be certain that patents will be issued as a sty patent application or that patents that have issard to us or that may be issued
in the future will be found to be valid and enforceabid sufficient to protect our technology or productsr iGtellectual property rights may
not be successfully asserted in the future or may béidated, circumvented or challenged. In addition, theslafwarious foreign countries
where Invisalign is distributed do not protect our iieetlial property rights to the same extent as U.S.. &g inability to protect our
proprietary information could harm our business. Infaram regarding risks associated with failing to probtegtproprietary technology and
our intellectual property rights may be foundtem 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K under the heading ‘Raskors.”
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Seasonal Fluctuations

Seasonal fluctuations in the number of doctors in thézesf and available to take appointments have affeatediare likely to continue
to affect, our business. Specifically, our customeaendiake vacation or are on holiday during the summettimsand therefore tend to start
fewer cases, particularly in Europe. In addition, summgpically the busiest season for orthodontists pitictices that have a high
percentage of adolescent and teenage patients. Manyspaganitto get their teens started in treatment befierstart of the school year. As a
result, adult appointments, including adult Invisalign petstarts, are often pushed further into late summearty fall. However, with the
availability of Invisalign Teen, 2009 was the first suarwe were able to actively compete for a shareesf patient starts. We believe that
Invisalign Teen may have helped and may in the futugerhederate the historical downward trend we have tllgisaen for our North
American orthodontic customers during the summer morfthese seasonal trends have caused and will likelyneento cause, fluctuations
in our quarterly results, including fluctuations in sequéng@enue growth rates.

Backlog

Due to the nature of our business, we maintain relgtlegl levels of backlog. The period from which treatmernader “a case”) is
received until the acceptance of the digital treatmet, @r ClinCheck, is dependent on the dental professiatiasetion to modify, accept
or cancel the treatment plan. Therefore, we congligecase a firm order to manufacture aligners oreéddhtal professional has approved
ClinCheck. Our backlog consists of ClinCheck- appraaesks, which are generally shipped within a short peritichef As a result, we
believe that backlog is not a good indicator of fututessand our quarterly revenues depend largely on thregtiofi ClinCheck approvals and
the impact on cases shipped in that quarter.

Competition

We compete for the attention of dental professionéls manufacturers of traditional orthodontic applian@@swires and brackets),
which include 3M’s Unitek, Danaher Corporation’s SybBental Specialties, and Dentsply International, Ine aMo compete directly with
established companies that manufacture and distributegbsdtiat are similar in use to Invisalign, including pheducts manufactured and
distributed by Ormco Orthodontics, a division of SybBental Specialties (a division of Danaher Corporationjhé future, we may face
further competition from early stage and more matunepamies who enter our target markets to manufacture amibdie products that are
similar in use to Invisalign. Information regarding rislssociated with increased competition may be fourttein 1Aof this Annual Report
on Form 10-K under the heading “Risk Factors.”

We believe that in addition to price, the principahgetitive factors in the market for orthodontic apptesinclude the following:
» aesthetic appeal of the treatment method,;
» effectiveness of treatment;
e customer support;
» comfort associated with the treatment method,;
» oral hygiene;
* ease of use; and

» dental professionals’ chair time.
We believe that Invisalign compares favorably with @mpetitors’ products with respect to each of theserfs.c
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Government Regulation

FDA'’s Quality System Regulation for Medical DevicesThe Invisalign system is classified as a Clasgedical device. In 1998, we
received pre-market clearance from the FDA pursuahtet®10(k) pre-market notification procedure, allowing us &oket the product in the
U.S. The Invisalign system was originally cleareduse by the FDA in patients with permanent teeth and contratedithe device for
patients presenting with mixed dentition, severe overb#egre overjet, tooth malocclusion requiring surgicaleotion, adolescent patients
with a skeletally narrow jaw, and adult patients withtdeprosthetics/implants. In 2008, the FDA cleared rabeling for the Invisalign
system, by removing the permanent dentition limitatromfthe indications for use. In addition, certain condgipreviously listed as
contraindications will now be listed as precautionse Mglieve our Invisalign system is in compliance imakerial respects with applicable
quality system regulations, record keeping and reportiguginements in the production and distribution of thedakgn system. We are
subject to routine inspections by the FDA and statea@gs to determine compliance with Quality System reguents. We are registered
with the State of California as a medical device martufac.

If the FDA determines that we failed to comply with #pplicable FDA regulations, it can institute a wideetgrof enforcement actions
against us, ranging from a public Warning Letter to mexer® sanctions, including but not limited to finanpiehalties, withdrawal of our
right to market our products and criminal prosecution.

Health Canada’s Medical Device Regulations.In Canada, we are required to comply with Healthra@ais Medical Device
Regulations. Our products are registered with Healtta@a We believe we are in compliance with their iguis and have been granted
clearance to market our products in Canada.

European Union’s MDD Requirements & ISO 13485:2003In Europe, Invisalign is regulated as a custom dewiceas such, we
follow the requirements of the Medical Device Direeiv We are ISO 13485:2003 certified, which facilitates ceromalization of Invisalign
outside the United States and especially in Europe.

Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996.Under the Health Insurance Portability and Aedability Act of 1996,
or HIPAA, Congress mandated a package of interlocking adnaitiie simplification rules to establish standards r@giirements for
electronic transmission of certain health informati€Confidentiality of patient records and the circumstanmder which these records may
be released are subject to substantial regulations tirelelPAA Standards for Privacy of Individually Iddigtble Health Information,
referred to as the Privacy Standard, and other stagedadregulations. The Privacy Standard governs botfigblesure and the use of
confidential patient medical information. Although corapte is the responsibility of the hospital, physi@malther healthcare provider, we
understand the importance to our customers and theinpatf maintaining the confidentiality of patient infation. Accordingly, we have
designed our product and service offerings to be consistémth& requirements of the Privacy and Security steaslunder HIPAA and
applicable corresponding state laws and regulationsntdiaing systems that are consistent with these &awisregulations is costly and
could require complex changes in the way we do businesswad@iservices to our patients. Additionally, our sucoeag be dependent on
the success of healthcare participants in dealingtfAA requirements.

Other Federal and State Laws. As a participant in the health care industry we albgest to extensive and frequently changing
regulation under many other laws administered by governmamtities at the federal, state and local levels,esohwhich are, and others of
which may be, applicable to our business. We are a aietigice manufacturer subject to U.S. Food and Drugiiidtration regulations.
These regulations, among other things, require that wetaimraidevice and facilities registrations and listinga/a as promote our products
as permitted by our FDA clearances. Furthermore, odthhesre service provider customers are also subjectole variety of laws and
regulations that could affect the nature and scope ofrttlaionships with us. Laws regulating medical deviceufeturers and health care
providers cover a broad array of subjects. For exammesadhfidentiality of patient medical information and threwmnstances under which
such information may be
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used by us, released for inclusion in our databasedeasesl by us to third parties, are subject to substaegalation by state

governments. These state laws and regulations goverithisotlisclosure and the use of confidential patient rakttiformation and are
evolving rapidly. In addition, provisions under the fedanti- kickback statute prohibit, among other thingsiragr offering to pay any
remuneration in exchange for the referral of patiengsgerson participating in, or for the order, purchase@mmendation of items or
services that are subject to reimbursement by, Medibéedicaid and other similar federal or state healte pangrams. Most states have also
enacted illegal remuneration laws that are simildinédfederal laws. These laws, which are evolvinhaféderal and state levels, are
applicable to our financial relationships with, and anykeatng or other promotional activities involving, alental professional

customers. Violations of any of these laws or reguiaticould subject us to a variety of civil and criminalctians.

Employees

As of December 31, 2009, we had 1,895 employees, including h2@aniufacturing and operations, 281 in sales and mark&8agn
research and development and 211 in general and adminesfraictions. We had 411 employees in North America, #§fi®/ees in Costa
Rica, 177 employees in Europe, 531 employees in Mexico, aathfldyees in Japan.

Available Information

Our website is located atww.aligntech.comand our investor relations website is locateltigt//investor.aligntech.com The
information on or accessible through our websites ipan of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Our Annual Repant§orm 10-K,
Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Bsknour proxy statement on Schedule 14A for our anrtoakbolders’ meeting
and amendments to such reports are available, fréeoje, on our investor relations website as soon asnahly practicable after we
electronically file or furnish such material with thE@& Further, a copy of this Annual Report on Form 10-ddated at the SEC’s Public
Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, D.C. 206&%mation on the operation of the Public ReferencenRoan be obtained by
calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC maintains améttgte that contains reports, proxy and informatiatements and other
information regarding our filings aww.sec.gov

Executive Officers of the Registrant
The following table sets forth certain information regragcbur executive officers as of February 26, 2010:

Name Age Position

Thomas M. Prescott 54 President and Chief Executive Officer

Kenneth B. Arola 54  Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer

Dana Cambra 52 Vice President, Research & Development and Informdtemhnology

Dan S. Ellis 58 Vice President, North American Sales

Roger E. George 44  Vice President, Legal and Corporate Affairs General CoamseCorporate Secretary
Len M. Hedge 52 Senior Vice President, Business Operations

Gil Laks 44 Vice President, International

SheilaTan 46 Vice President, Marketing and Chief Marketing Officer

Emory Wright 40 Vice President, Operations

Thomas M. Prescoltas served as our President and Chief Executive Ofiickasia member of our Board of Directors since March
2002. Prior to joining us, Mr. Prescott was President dmief Executive Officer of Cardiac Pathways, Inc., a piypliraded medical device
company, from May 1999 until its acquisition by Boston tifie in August 2001. Mr. Prescott then worked as a albaist for Boston
Scientific Corporation
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until January 2002. Prior to working at Cardiac PathwaysRvescott held various sales, general managemenkaoudtige roles at Nellcor
Puritan Bennett, Inc. from April 1994 to May 1999. Mr. Potisserves as a director of InterPULSE, Inc., agtgly held company.

Kenneth B. Aroldas served as our Vice President of Finance and Ghigfi¢tal Officer since December 2007. He joined us as Vi
President of Finance and Corporate Controller in Aug2@52 Prior to joining us, Mr. Arola served for fourtg@ars at Adaptec, Inc, an
electronic data storage equipment company, where hevlietais senior finance management positions, most tg@nYice President of
Finance and Corporate Controller. His experience atdodas positions of increasing responsibility in varifmancial roles at Varian
Associates and Cooper Labs.

Dana C. Cambraur Vice President, Research & Development and Infitomd echnology has been with Align since June 2008. Prior
to joining us, Mr. Cambra served as Senior Vice Begdj Research and Development for Pharsight Corporatmoyiger of simulation and
modeling software for pharmaceutical and biotechnotmygpanies from March 2007 to June 2008. Prior to his tédasight, Mr. Cambra
was Vice President, Engineering at Stentor Inc., a miediege and information management software providen fdctober 2002 to
February 2006. Earlier roles included executive engineendgperations positions at Visto Corporation and iSctife Mr. Cambra also
spent several years in positions of increasing respbtysdi Acuson Corporation, now a Siemens Company.

Dan S. Ellishas served as our Vice President, North American Simles June 2005. Prior to joining us, Mr. Ellis wasé/President,
Sales for privately-held BARRx Medical, a medical dexdompany, from September 2004 to June 2005. From Junedl®B§ 2004,
Mr. Ellis was at Fusion Medical Technologies, a divisibBaxter Healthcare, most recently as Vice PresjdinoSurgery US. From January
1998 to June 1999, Mr. Ellis served as Vice President, &arketing for Cardiac Pathways, Inc. Earlier in hisees, Mr. Ellis held
national sales positions of increasing scope and resfipsibFusion Medical Technologies and Eli Lilly MDGuidant Corporation.

Roger E. Georghlas served as our Vice President, Legal and Corporatesifizeneral Counsel and Corporate Secretary singe Jul
2002. Prior to joining us, Mr. George was the Chief Firedr@fficer, Vice President of Finance and Legal Aaand General Counsel of
SkyStream Networks, a privately held broadband and basadetwork equipment company. Prior to SkyStream@dorge was a partner at
Wilson Sonsini Goodrich & Rosati, P.C. in Palo Alt@li®rnia.

Len M. Hedgdas served as our Senior Vice President, Businesstdpsraince December 2007. He joined us as our Vicedergsof
Manufacturing in January 1999 and was our Vice President, obh@gpes from March 2002 to December 2007. Prior to jgnis, Mr. Hedge
served as Vice President of Operations for Plynetiggdss Corporation, a rapid-prototyping and stereolidyainy services supplier, from
December 1996 to December 1998. From October 1991 to Dec&®®6, Mr. Hedge worked at Beckman Instruments Corporation as
Manager for Prototype Manufacturing and Process Devedopm

Gil Lakshas served as our Vice President, International sincerSbet 2005, and served as our Vice President, Europe simee J
2001. Prior to joining us, Mr. Laks was Vice President, iBess Development for the diagnostic imaging divisio8ingapore Technologies,
from November 1999 to May 2001. He also served as Direttaternational for ISIX, Ltd., an educational computsagvices firm, from
October 1996 to October 1999. In January 2010, we announcediitieraof an international distributor for smaller countrgrizets in
Europe, the Middle East and Africa (EMEA). As parthed distribution agreement for EMEA, Mr. Laks wilblee Align and take on a new
role as owner of the new distributor in the second quaft2010.

Sheila Tarwas appointed Vice President, Marketing and Chief Marketifige®in March 2009. Ms. Tan joined us in September 2008
as Vice President of Product Innovation and Marketingt&gyy. Prior to joining us, Ms. Tan was Vice Predidetarketing for Moka5, Inc., a
provider of virtual desktop technology, from
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August 2007 to July 2008. She served as Vice President Markétitrgsto Services Inc., a digital-delivery servica #gnables families and
friends to stay in touch via email, without the need foomputer or Internet connection, from June 2006 to August 2B0at to that,

Ms. Tan was Senior Director of Marketing, QuickBooksnait from 2000 to 2005. From 1995 to 2000, Ms. Tan held markptsigions of
increasing scope and responsibility at The Procter &lii@ Company and its subsidiaries.

Emory M. Wrighhas served as our Vice President, Operations since bec@®07. He has been with us since March 2000,
predominantly in manufacturing and operations roles. &usly, Mr. Wright served as Vice President, Manufantuand most recently was
General Manager of New Product Development. Prioritinjg us, Mr. Wright was Senior Manufacturing Manager atrika, Inc. a medical

device manufacturer, from May 1999 to March 2000. From July i®®¥y 1999, Mr. Wright served as Manager of Manufactuaimg)
Process Development for Metra Biosystems Inc.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

We depend on the sale of the Invisalign system for the wagority of our revenues, and any decline in sales ofikalign for any
reason, including as a result of the introduction of the ¢ficiency Requirements or a continued weakness in genecainomic
conditions, or a decline in average selling prices would edely affect revenues, gross margin and net profits.

We expect that revenues from the sale of the Invisaljgtem will continue to account for the vast majooitypur total revenues for the
foreseeable future. Continued and widespread market accemiflnvisalign by orthodontists, GPs and consumaastisal to our future
success. If orthodontists and GPs experience a reductionsoroer demand for orthodontic services, if consunrergepunwilling to adopt
Invisalign as rapidly as we anticipate or in the voluhs we anticipate, if orthodontists or GPs choosgstba competitive product rather
than Invisalign or if the average selling price of pusduct declines, our operating results would be harmectorisahat could cause the
adoption of Invisalign to occur at a lower rate than wgeet, as well as the risk related to declining averagegerices are described more
fully below.

Consumers may not adopt Invisalign as rapidly as we anticipate tdue variety of factors including a continued weakness imgeal
economic conditions.

Consumer spending habits are affected by, among othgstlgrevailing economic conditions, levels of employmsalaries and wage
rates, gas prices, consumer confidence and consumeppencof economic conditions. A general slowdown &liimited States economy
and certain international economies or an uncertain edormrtiook would adversely affect consumer spending habitshaiay, among
other things, result in a decrease in the number of beetlhodontic case starts or a reduction in the demanbhisalign generally either of
which would have a material adverse effect on our seldperating results. In addition, Invisalign represesigraficant change from
traditional orthodontic treatment, and consumers beaseluctant to accept it or may not find it prefgeao traditional treatment. We have
generally received positive feedback from orthodontisBs &1d consumers regarding Invisalign as both an altenatbraces and as a
clinical method for treatment of malocclusion, butuaniber of dental professionals believe that Invisakgappropriate for only a limited
percentage of their patients. Increased market acceptatidepend in part upon the recommendations of dentéggsionals, as well as
other factors including effectiveness, safety, easeefrefiability, aesthetics, greater comfort and bggi compared to traditional orthodontic
products and price for Invisalign compared to competiogyots.

Orthodontists and GPs may not adopt Invisalign in sufficteamumbers or as rapidly as we anticipate for a number of reasangluding
the introduction of the Proficiency Requirements or contied weakness in general economic conditions.

Our success depends upon increasing acceptance and frequenoyfdhadavisalign system by dental professionals (werefer to
as utilization). We have a large number of low voludnetors that make up a large portion of our customer Wfsewant every Invisalign
provider to be one we can comfortably direct a prospepatient to with an expectation of knowledgeable treatiareth a great outcome. On
June 2, 2009, we announced the implementation of thsaligm Proficiency Requirements (or the Proficiencguements) in North
America to help ensure that Invisalign-trained docharge the experience and confidence necessary tovadfigh quality treatment
outcomes for Invisalign patients. Under the ProficieRequirements, every Invisalign provider in North Arogmust have 10 Invisalign
case starts (measured by ClinCheck acceptance) and templeast 10 Invisalign-specific continuing educafiok) credits each calendar
year. In October 2009, we updated the Proficiency Requirenrentder to further support our customers through thisfisignt change and
provided a one-time, additional six month qualification gestpulating that for those doctors who had at least sseestart and at least one
Invisalign CE hour at the end of 2009 will be allowed tont@én their active Invisalign provider status throughel@6, 2010, provided that
they meet half of the annual proficiency requirementteéat 5 case starts and 5 Invisalign CE hours) betd@aeuary 1 and June 30,

2010. Doctors will still be responsible for meeting tibtal annual requirements of at least 10 case starts amdigalign CE
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hours by the end of 2010 to qualify as providers for theviing year. Doctors with zero case starts or zeuisklign CE hours at the end of
2009 were not eligible for the additional qualification pdri They will be able to continue treating in-progresses but will not be able to
submit new Invisalign cases or use Invisalign brandinganketing resources. Doctors can reactivate thewiger status by retaking
Invisalign training and meeting the proficiency requiratee

As of January 2010, approximately 6,400 doctors met the IigisBloficiency Requirements and another 15,800 doctorshmet t
criteria for the additional six-month qualification petim 2009. We limited the account status of approximatelQD3doctors who did not
meet either Proficiency Requirements or the additiondifapagion period requirements. These doctors can naetireating and finishing in
progress patients. In addition, we deactivated approxiyr@&00 Invisalign-trained doctors who had never sulaahitt single Invisalign
case. Although we want every doctor to achieve andtaia the Proficiency Requirements with Invisalign, wpext that a number of our
lower volume doctors may choose not to meet thesersggents. As a result, the Proficiency Requirementsresult in greater variability
among customer activity, particularly in the second Half0d0 after the additional six-month qualification period exparedune 30, 2010. If
the number of our customers who fail to maintain aniddease utilization to meet the Proficiency Requeets is greater than we anticipate,
our case volumes will decrease and our revenues wilabeaed. In addition, if GPs and Orthos do not attend aimirig courses in sufficient
numbers for any reason, including the introduction oRtadiciency Requirements, or continued weakness in geaeonomic conditions,
our revenue may fail to grow as expected. In additimreased competition from direct competitors could causelose market share and
reduce dental professionals’ efforts and commitment torekieeir Invisalign practice. If adoption and utilinatdoes not increase as we
anticipate, our revenues may fail to grow as expectddanoperating results may be harmed.

The frequency of use by orthodontists or GPs may not incresigbe rate that we anticipate or at all.

One of our key objectives is to continue to increaseatibn, or the adoption and frequency of use, of the Ingisalystem by new and
existing customers. If utilization of Invisalign by owisting and newly trained orthodontists or GPs does cmircor does not occur as
quickly as we anticipate, our operating results could bedthrm

We may experience declines in average selling prices ofpooducts.

In response to challenges in our business, including isedeaompetition, we have in the past reduced the list girimer products. We
also provide volume based discount programs to our dodioesddition, we sell a number of products at differentdistes. If we introduce
any price reductions, expand our discount programs ifutbee, if participation in these programs increasagaur product mix shifts to
lower priced products or newer products that have a hjgdreentage of deferred revenue, our average selliog would be adversely
affected and our revenues, gross margin and net pfloises) may be reduced. Furthermore, although theddll&r is our reporting
currency, a portion of our revenues and profits are gézekin foreign currencies. Revenues and profits getely subsidiaries operating
outside of the United States are translated into Ul&rdaising exchange rates effective during the respgmited and are affected by
changes in exchange rates. As a result, negative moveimentsency exchange rates against the U.S. dollaadilersely affect our average
selling price and consequently the amount of revenues antspnodiur consolidated financial statements.

If we fail to sustain or increase profitability or revenugrowth in future periods, the market price for our commstock may decline.

If we are to sustain or increase profitability in ftyperiods, we will need to continue to increase owrregs, while controlling our
expenses. While we generated positive operating cashrla@08 and in 2009, we cannot be certain that we will betabhchieve positive
cash flow from operations, from period to period, in
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the future. Because our business is evolving, it fedif to predict our future operating results or levelgmiwth, and we have in the past
not been and may in the future not be able to sustaihistorical growth rates. If we do not increassfiability or revenue growth or
otherwise meet the expectations of securities analystevestors, the market price of our common stock likidlly decline.

Our financial results have fluctuated in the past and maydtuate in the future which may cause volatility in ostock price.

Our operating results have fluctuated in the past and weteoypeftiture quarterly and annual operating results tduhte as we focus
on increasing doctor and consumer demand for our prodiicese fluctuations could cause our stock price to decBoae of the factors
that could cause our operating results to fluctuate include:

limited visibility into and difficulty predicting the leV@f activity in our customers’ practices from quatteiquarter;

disruptions to our business due to the impact of an epideuth,as the HIN1 virus, that results in changes in comspeeding
habits, consumers unable or unwilling to visit the attirdist or general practitioners office, as well ag ianpact on workforce
absenteeism;

weakness in consumer spending as a result of the slowiddtva United States economy and global economies;

changes in the timing of receipt of case product orderaglargiven quarter which, given our cycle time and the dedayeen
case receipts and case shipments, could have an impact orgwaitdr revenue can be recognized,;

fluctuations in currency exchange rates against theddlB;

changes in product mix;

seasonal fluctuations in the number of doctors in thfézes and their availability to take appointments;
success of marketing programs from quarter to quarter;

changes in the timing of when revenue is recognizetyidinyg as a result of the introduction of new productgromotions or as
a result of changes to critical accounting estimategwratcounting pronouncements;

changes to our effective tax rate;
unanticipated delays in production caused by insufficient dgpac

any disruptions in the manufacturing process, includirexpected turnover in the labor force or the introduatiomew
production processes or natural or other disasters beyosrmbntrol;

the development and marketing of directly competitive predigtexisting and new competitors;
aggressive price competition from competitors;

costs and expenditures in connection with litigation;

inaccurate forecasting of revenues, production and offegating costs; and

investments in research and development to develop roelugis and enhancements to Invisalign.

To respond to these and other factors, we may nemadke business decisions that could adversely affect otatimgeresults such as
modifications to our pricing policy, business structuremerations. Most of our
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expenses, such as employee compensation and lease paynuaiitooislj are relatively fixed in the short term. Maeo our expense levels
are based, in part, on our expectations regarding futueaueuevels. As a result, if our revenues for a pdati@eriod fall below our
expectations, whether caused by changes in consumer spetatisumer preferences, weakness in the U.S. aalgtebnomies, changes in
customer behavior related to advertising and preseribur product, or other factors, we may be unable to asfjesiding quickly enough to
offset any shortfall in revenues. Due to these aner dttttors, we believe that quarter-to-quarter compasisbour operating results may not
be meaningful. You should not rely on our results for @mg quarter as an indication of our future performance.

Our future success may depend on our ability to developgesssfully introduce and achieve market acceptance of pevducts.

Our future success may depend on our ability to develop, naargamarket, and obtain regulatory approval orraleze of new
products. We launched Invisalign Teen in July 2008 and IigisAlssist in October 2008. In October 2009, we introduesd and
enhanced features in all Invisalign products. There eamtassurance that we will be able to successfully devedtl and achieve market
acceptance of these and other new products and appl&atidnenhanced versions of our existing product. The eftearid rate at which,
market acceptance and penetration are achieved by futuhectsas a function of many variables, which include, amathgr things, our
ability to include functionality and features that addresstomer requirements, the availability of third-pestynbursement of procedures
using our new products, the existence of competing produactgeneral economic conditions affecting purchasirtgrpat In addition, even
if our new products are successfully introduced, it iskehlithat they will rapidly gain market share and acceyggmimarily due to the
relatively long period of time it takes to successfulgat a patient. Since it takes approximately 12 to 24timsdo treat a patient, our
customers may be unwilling to rapidly adopt our new produrttis they successfully complete at least one cas@tirmore historical clinical
results are available.

Our ability to market and sell new products may also bgesuto government regulation, including approval or cleadyathe United
States Food and Drug Administration (“FDA"), and foreign gowgent agencies. Any failure in our ability to succdssfievelop and
introduce or achieve market acceptance of our new produetthanced versions of existing products could have aiala@@verse effect on
our operating results and could cause our revenues to decline

A disruption in the operations of our primary freight carrier drigher shipping costs could cause a decline in our revenaea
reduction in our earnings.

We are dependent on commercial freight carriers, priyndRS, to deliver our products. If the operationshefse carriers are disrupted
for any reason, we may be unable to deliver our prodo@srtcustomers on a timely basis. If we cannot detiveproducts in an efficient
and timely manner, our customers may reduce their ondensus and our revenues and operating profits could méteteline. In a rising
fuel cost environment, our freight costs will increaldreight costs materially increase and we are ieabpass that increase along to our
customers for any reason or otherwise offset sucledses in our cost of revenues, our gross margin antti@aesults could be adversely
affected.

We are dependent on our international operations, which expageto foreign operational, political and other risks that magrim our
business.

Our key production steps are performed in operations locatsitle of the U.S. At our facility in Costa Rica, teds use a
sophisticated, internally developed computer-modeling proggimepare digital treatment plans, which are thersingted electronically to
Juarez, Mexico. These digital files form the basi€loiCheck and are used to manufacture aligner molds. r@ar acquisition, aligner
fabrication and shipping operations are conducted iredultexico. In addition to the research and developefémts conducted in our
Santa Clara, California facility, we also carry cegearch and development at locations in San Jose, Goata R
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and Moscow, Russia. In addition, our customer-care, accoectivable, credit and collections and customerteegrstration organizations
are located at our facility in Costa Rica. Ouramtie on international operations exposes us to risks andaintes that may affect our
business or results of operation, including:

« difficulties in hiring and retaining employees generallyvel as difficulties in hiring and retaining employeeshithe necessary
skills to perform the more technical aspects of our ojperst

« difficulties in managing international operations;

» fluctuations in currency exchange rates;

» import and export license requirements and restrictions;

» controlling production volume and quality of the manuféaotyprocess;

* political, social and economic instability, includiag a result of increased levels of violence in Juélexjco;
* acts of terrorism and acts of war;

e interruptions and limitations in telecommunication sezsi

* product or material transportation delays or disruptioriuding as a result of health epidemics such as the oktbfélae HIN1
virus in the event travel to and from Mexico is riestd

* burdens of complying with a wide variety of local courgng regional law
» trade restrictions and changes in tariffs; and

» potential adverse tax consequences.

If any of these risks materialize in the future, waldaexperience production delays and lost or delayed revenue.

A key step in our manufacturing process relies on sophattai computer technology that requires new techniciansndergo a
relatively long training process. If we are unable to acately predict our volume growth, and fail to hire a suffiesienumber of
technicians in advance of such demand, the delivery tihew products could be delayed which could adversely affectresults of
operations.

Training technicians to use our sophisticated computer modalogram that produces the digital treatment plahftirms the basis of
ClinCheck takes approximately 90 to 120 days. As a rebulg are unable to accurately predict our volume growthmay not have a
sufficient number of trained technicians to timely cre@liaCheck treatment plans within the timeframe our custs expect. Any delay in
ClinCheck processing time could delay the ultimate defie¢ finished aligners to our customers. Such a dedayd cause us to lose existing
customers or fail to attract new customers. Thisccoalise a decline in our revenues and net profits and adwédsely affect our results of
operations.

Our headquarters, digital dental modeling processes, and othanufacturing processes are all principally located in regs that are
subject to earthquakes and other natural disasters.

Our digital dental modeling is processed in our facibtated in San Jose, Costa Rica. The operations te@wsta Rica creates
ClinCheck treatment plans using sophisticated computievese. In addition, our customer facing operationd@cated in Costa Rica. Our
aligner molds and finished aligners are fabricatediarelz, Mexico. Both Costa Rica and Mexico are in eartegmanes and may be subject
to other natural disasters. If there is a majotheaiake or any other natural disaster in a region wher®fthese facilities is located, our
ability to create ClinCheck treatment plans, responctustomer inquiries or manufacture and ship our aligreensl ®e compromised which
could result in our customers experiencing a significant delegceiving their completed aligners and a decrewaservice levels for a period
of time. In addition, our
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headquarters facility is located in the San FrancisoppMea. An earthquake or other natural disaster in¢lgisn could result in a disruption
in our operations. Any such business interruption couleéniadlyy and adversely affect our business, financialltmn and results of
operations.

We experience competition from manufacturers of traditionabbes and expect aggressive competition from these and othepaoies
that may introduce new technologies in the future.

Currently, our Invisalign product competes directly agginsducts manufactured and distributed by Ormco Orthogrdidivision of
Sybron Dental Specialties (a Danaher Corporation subgidénd traditional braces manufactured by 3M’s Unitedt Bentsply
International. These manufacturers have substantiallyegrig@ancial resources and manufacturing and marketing exyperthan we do and
may, in the future, attempt to develop an orthodontic sysimilar to ours or combine technologies that makepouoiuct economically
unattractive. Large consumer product companies may aksotkeatorthodontic supply market. Furthermore, we faeg competition in the
future from new companies that may introduce new tedgms. We may be unable to compete with these comsetind one or more of
these competitors may render our technology obsoleteoaomically unattractive. If we are unable to compdiectively with existing
products or respond effectively to any products developeskiwor existing competitors, our business could be hartmedeased
competition has resulted in the past and may in thedfuagult in volume discounting and price reductions, redgicess margins, reduced
profitability and loss of market share, any of whichildchave a material adverse effect on our revenues, vajuoneh, net profit (losses) and
stock price. We cannot assure you that we will be tabb®mpete successfully against our current or futurgpetitors or that competitive
pressures will not have a material adverse effectunrbusiness, results of operations and financial condition

Our information technology systems are critical to our busiise System integration and implementation issues and systcurity risks
could disrupt our operations, which could have a material adeeirspact on our business and operating results.

We rely on the efficient and uninterrupted operation ofeminformation technology systems. All informationheology systems are
vulnerable to damage or interruption from a variety ofses. As our business has grown in size and compléx&ygrowth has placed, and
will continue to place, significant demands on ourrinfation technology systems. To effectively manage tusity, we will need to
continually upgrade and enhance our information systdmaddition, experienced computer programmers and hatiarée able to
penetrate our network security and misappropriate our conidénformation or that of third parties, create systdisruptions or cause
shutdowns. Furthermore, sophisticated hardware andtopgesystem software and applications that we eithiermially develop or procure
from third parties may contain defects in design and matw including “bugs” and other problems that carxpeetedly interfere with the
operation of the system. The costs to eliminatdleviate security problems, viruses and bugs could béfisignt, and the efforts to address
these problems could result in interruptions that may hawvaterial adverse impact on our operations, revenueganatiog results.

We are currently focused on adding more functionality our business enterprise systems to more efficigntbgrate these systems
with our other system applications, such as customergand manufacturing tools, and intend to continuedff@st for the foreseeable
future. System upgrades and enhancements require signéiqaeriditures and allocation of valuable employee resoufdeays in
integration or disruptions to our business from implei#@rt of these new or upgraded systems could have a ahaidverse impact on our
financial condition and operating results. Furthermaeecontinuously upgrade our customer facing softwareagtjgns, specifically
ClinCheck and VIP. Software applications frequentiytam errors or defects, especially when they areifitstduced or when new versions
are released. The discovery of a defect or error ewaupgraded version or the failure of our primary infdiamasystems may result in the
following consequences, among others: loss of revendelay in market acceptance, damage to our reputatiocreased service costs, any
of which could have a material adverse effect on our basijrfinancial condition or results of operations.
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Our success depends in part on our proprietary technology, angeifare unable to successfully enforce our intellectuabperty rights,
our competitive position may be harmed. Litigating claimghis type is costly and could distract our management andsesa decline
in our results of operations and stock price.

Our success will depend in part on our ability to maintaistiag intellectual property and to obtain and mainfaither intellectual
property protection for our products, both in the U.S.iarather countries. Our inability to do so could harm @ampetitive position. As of
December 31, 2009, we had 131 issued U.S. patents, 160 pendimpatgri.applications, and 60 issued foreign patents, anpeh2ihg
foreign patent applications.

We intend to rely on our portfolio of issued and pendingmiadpplications in the U.S. and in other countries teeptat large part of our
intellectual property and our competitive position. Hogrewur currently pending or future patent filings may nstitén the issuance of
patents. Additionally, any patents issued to us may Heenlgad, invalidated, held unenforceable, circumednor may not be sufficiently
broad to prevent third parties from producing competing ptediimilar in design to our products. In addition, any ptma afforded by
foreign patents may be more limited than that providetbub).S. patents and intellectual property laws. & @ly on protection of our
copyrights, trade secrets, know-how and proprietaryimdtion. We generally enter into confidentiality agneats with our employees,
consultants and our collaborative partners upon commentasha relationship with us. However, these agreesmaay not provide
meaningful protection against the unauthorized use orodis@ of our trade secrets or other confidential in&ion, and adequate remedies
may not exist if unauthorized use or disclosure wegztor. Our inability to maintain the proprietary matof our technology through
patents, copyrights or trade secrets would impair oupetitive advantages and could have a material adverse effeur operating results,
financial condition and future growth prospects. Inipaldr, a failure to protect our proprietary rightgyhti allow competitors to copy our
technology, which could adversely affect our pricing andketsshare. In addition, in an effort to protect ourliatéual property we have in
the past been and may in the future be involved iralitg. The potential effects on our business operatemgting from litigation that we
may participate in the future, whether or not ultimatiiermined in our favor or settled by us, are costly aredtdhe efforts and attention of
our management and technical personnel from normal busipesstions. Any of these results from our litigatould adversely affect our
results of operations and stock price.

We are currently a party to various other legal procegdand claims. Litigation is subject to inherent uaieties and unfavorable
rulings could occur. An unfavorable ruling could include Btary damages or, in cases where injunctive relgbugyht, an injunction
prohibiting us from selling our products. Any of thessuits from our litigation could adversely affect our ressof operations and stock
price. SedPart |, Item 3 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for a summaouomaterial pending legal proceedings.

While we believe we currently have adequate interrahizol over financial reporting, we are required to assess internal control over
financial reporting on an annual basis and any future adverseuks from such assessment could result in a loss of stee confidence
in our financial reports and have an adverse effect on our $tqeice.

Pursuant to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the ruleggulhtions promulgated by the SEC, we are requiredésfuin our
Form 10-K an Annual Report by our management regarding thetiegieess of our internal control over financial rep@tihe report
includes, among other things, an assessment of théiwdfeess of our internal control over financial reportisgof the end of our fiscal year,
including a statement as to whether or not our intermdtaoover financial reporting is effective. This assgsst must include disclosure of
any material weaknesses in our internal control omanfiial reporting identified by management. While we curydaglieve our internal
control over financial reporting is effective, théeetiveness of our internal controls to future periodailgect to the risk that our controls
may become inadequate because of changes in conditionasantksult, the degree of compliance of our internataamter financial
reporting with the policies or procedures may detergordtwe are unable to assert that our internalroboter financial
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reporting is effective in any future period (or if our dad are unable to express an opinion on the effecgenfeour internal controls or
conclude that our internal controls are ineffectiveg,could lose investor confidence in the accuracy amplaieness of our financial reports,
which could have an adverse effect on our stock price.

If we lose our key personnel or are unable to attract and reti@ty personnel, we may be unable to pursue business oppitigs or
develop our products.

We are highly dependent on the key employees in our clinigagdegring, technology development, sales and marketirsgpmeel and
management teams. The loss of the services providdobg individuals may significantly delay or preventdlbievement of our product
development and other business objectives and could harbusiness. Our future success will also depend on dity & identify, recruit,
train and retain additional qualified personnel, includirtgamontists. Few orthodontists are accustomed to workiagnanufacturing
environment since they are generally trained to wonbrivate practices, universities and other resesustitutions. Thus, we may be unable
to attract and retain personnel with the advanced qualdits necessary for the further development of ounbasi Furthermore, we may
not be successful in retaining our key personnel or seeiices. If we are unable to attract and retaynpleesonnel, our business could be
materially harmed.

If we infringe the patents or proprietary rights of other gas or are subject to a patent infringement claim, our lgtlgito grow our
business may be severely limited.

Extensive litigation over patents and other intellatproperty rights is common in the medical device ingustve have been sued for
infringement of third party’s patents in the past and we beathe subject of patent or other litigation in therfet From time to time, we
have received and may in the future receive letters fhinth parties drawing our attention to their patenttsghihile we do not believe that
we infringe upon any valid and enforceable rights that hase beught to our attention, there may be other motepet rights of which we
are presently unaware. The defense and prosecutinteliéctual property suits, interference proceedingkratated legal and administrative
proceedings could result in substantial expense to us andaagnidiversion of effort by our technical and management pezsoAn
adverse determination of any litigation or interferena@e@eding to which we may become a party could subject significant liabilities.

An adverse determination of this nature could also putatengs at risk of being invalidated or interpreted narrawisequire us to seek
licenses from third parties. Licenses may not lz@lalble on commercially reasonable terms or atrallyhich event, our business would be
materially adversely affected.

We maintain single supply relationships for certain of our keyachines and materials technologies, and our business and ojperat
results could be harmed if supply is restricted or endghe price of raw materials used in our manufacturing pra&sincreases.

We are highly dependent on manufacturers of specializediscpequipment, rapid prototyping machines, resin and attheanced
materials. We maintain single supply relationships fanynof these machines and materials technologies. tiayar, our scanning and
stereolithography equipment are provided by a single supMie are also committed to purchasing all of our rasthpolymer, the primary
raw materials used in our manufacturing process, &@mgle source. In addition, technology changes byendars could disrupt access to
required manufacturing capacity or require expensive, timsuwnoing development efforts to adapt and integrate new equiijgme
processes. Our growth may exceed the capacity ofromere of these manufacturers to produce the needed equigntentaterials in
sufficient quantities to support our growth. In the ewariechnology changes, delivery delays, or shortages iotreases in price for these
items, our business and growth prospects may be harmed.

We rely on our direct sales force to sell our products, ang &ilure to maintain our direct sales force could harm obusiness.

Our ability to sell our products and generate revenues deppodsour direct sales force within our North American andnatenal
markets. As of December 31, 2009, our North American saf@sization consisted of 164 people, of which 150 wepeidgales
representatives and 14 were sales administration.n&tienally,
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we had 45 people engaged in sales and sales support as obBe84m2009. We do not have any long-term employment ctstréth the
members of our direct sales force. The loss of thaces provided by these key personnel may harm our busiifess are unable to retain
our direct sales force personnel or replace them witlighdils of equivalent technical expertise and qualification,we are unable to
successfully instill such technical expertise or if we tiaiéstablish strong relationships with our customers nitrelatively short period of
time, our revenues and our ability to maintain marketeshaunld be materially harmed. In addition, due to our langefragmented customer
base, we may not be able to provide all of our custenvigh product support immediately upon the launch of apreduct. As a result,
adoption of new products by our customers may be slower tltiaipated and our ability to grow market share and es®eour revenues may
be harmed.

Complying with regulations enforced by the FDA and othegulatory authorities is an expensive and time-consuming @®s; and any
failure to comply could result in substantial penalties.

Our products are medical devices and are subject to ex¢amgjulation in the U.S. and internationally. FDA regufediare wide
ranging and govern, among other things:

* product design, development, manufacturing and testing;
e product labeling;

e product storage;

*  pre-market clearance or approval;

* advertising and promotion; and

* product sales and distribution.

Our failure to comply with applicable regulatory requiretsarould result in enforcement action by the FDA or sigencies, which
may include any of the following sanctions:

* warning letters, fines, injunctions, consent decesgbcivil penalties;
* repair, replacement, refunds, recall or seizure of ooatyzts;
* operating restrictions or partial suspension or totaldsivrt of production;

» refusing our requests for 510(k) clearance or pre-maggebaal of new products, new intended uses, or modificat@masisting
products;

» withdrawing clearance or pre-market approvals tha¢lsdready been granted; and

»  criminal prosecution.

If any of these events were to occur, they could hambosiness. We must comply with facility registratianl @roduct listing
requirements of the FDA and adhere to applicable QualgteByregulations. The FDA enforces its Quality Systegulations through
periodic unannounced inspections. Our failure to taksfaetiory corrective action in response to an adveigeettion or the failure to
comply with applicable manufacturing regulations could tesutnforcement action, and we may be required to firedredtive manufacturers,
which could be a long and costly process.

Before we can sell a new medical device in the UrSnarket a new use of or claim for an existing producimust obtain FDA
clearance or approval, unless an exemption appliegir®iy regulatory clearances or approvals can be #higlagd time-consuming
process. Even though the devices we market have obtameddhssary clearances from the FDA, we may be eib@abhaintain such
clearances in the future. Furthermore, we may bblena obtain the necessary clearances for new dethes we intend to market in the
future. Our inability to maintain or obtain regulatoryackences or approvals could materially harm our business.
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If the security of our customer and patient information t@mpromised, patient care could suffer, and we could be liablerétated
damages, and our reputation could be impaired.

We retain confidential customer and patient informaitioour processing centers. Therefore, it is criticat bur facilities and
infrastructure remain secure and that our facilities afidstructure are perceived by the marketplace and ownsess to be secure. Despite
the implementation of security measures, our infrasirachay be vulnerable to physical break-ins, compirteses, programming errors,
attacks by third parties or similar disruptive problertisve fail to meet our clients’ expectations regardinggbeurity of healthcare
information, we could be liable for damages and our repuatabuld be impaired. In addition, patient care couldesuéind we could be liable
if our systems fail to deliver correct information itimely manner. Our insurance may not protect us fitas risk.

If compliance with healthcare regulations becomes costig alifficult for our customers or for us, we may not be albtegrow our
business.

Participants in the healthcare industry are subjeextensive and frequently changing regulations under numinessadministered by
governmental entities at the federal, state and locdklesame of which are, and others of which mayapglicable to our business. In
response to perceived increases in health care costseint years, there have been and continue toopesals by the Obama administration,
members of Congress, state governments, regulatorkiesgarty payors to control these costs and, more génecareform the U.S.
healthcare system. In December 2010, the United Sateste advanced legislation that included a market-sheed bacise tax of
approximately $2 billion annually on medical device manufactuseginning in 2011. This legislation compares to a billipusly passed by
the House of Representatives that includes a 2.5 pertestssed excise tax on medical device manufacturers beginrio@3. At this
point in the legislative process, the differences betweach version have not yet been reconciled. We tpredict whether legislation will
be enacted, the final form any legislation might takéhe effects of such legislation. These taxes, if imgieted, would result in a significant
increase in the tax burden on our industry, which could hawaterial, negative impact on our results of opamatand our cash flows.

Furthermore, our healthcare provider customers aresalgect to a wide variety of laws and regulations thatdcaffect the nature and
scope of their relationships with us. The healthcankebdtself is highly regulated and subject to changing paliteconomic and regulatory
influences. Regulations implemented pursuant to the Heasitihance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAAcluding regulations
affecting the security and privacy of patient healtb@gaformation held by healthcare providers and thesirtess associates may require us to
make significant and unplanned enhancements of softwareatppiis or services, result in delays or cancellatbrmsders, or result in the
revocation of endorsement of our products and servicesddthicare participants. The effect of HIPAA and nesvijorced regulations on our
business is difficult to predict, and there can bessur@ance that we will adequately address the busirsésscrieated by HIPAA and its
implementation or that we will be able to take advantdge resulting business opportunities.

Extensive and changing government regulation of the healtre@andustry may be expensive to comply with and exposes Uetngk of
substantial government penalties.

In addition to medical device laws and regulations, numerats and federal healthcare-related laws regulate oirdsss covering
areas such as:

» storage, transmission and disclosure of medical infoomathd healthcare records;

» prohibitions against the offer, payment or receipteafiuneration to induce referrals to entities providinglthcare services or
goods or to induce the order, purchase or recommendsdtamn products; and

* the marketing and advertising of our products.

Complying with these laws and regulations could be expeasiddime-consuming, and could increase our operating ooséduce or
eliminate certain of our sales and marketing activitresun revenues.
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We face risks related to our international sales, includitige need to obtain necessary foreign regulatory clearance or aypgis.

We currently sell our products in Europe, Asia PacifigilLAmerica and Japan and may expand into other cosritam time to
time. We do not know whether orthodontists, GPs andwners outside our North American market will adopt hliga in sufficient
numbers or as rapidly as we anticipate. In additioessafl our products outside the U.S. are subject to foreigulatory requirements that
vary widely from country to country. The time requiredbtain clearances or approvals required by other cesmhay be longer than that
required for FDA clearance or approval, and requirementsuftit approvals may differ from FDA requirements. We b&ynable to obtain
regulatory approvals in one or more of the other couminigvhich we do business or in which we may do busingb®ifuture. We may also
incur significant costs in attempting to obtain andntaan foreign regulatory approvals. If we experienceydeiiareceipt of approvals to
market our products outside of the U.S., or if we faileiteive these approvals, we may be unable to maukgiroducts or enhancements in
international markets in a timely manner, if at all.

Our business exposes us to potential product liability claiars] we may incur substantial expenses if we are subject talyebliability
claims or litigation.

Medical devices involve an inherent risk of product ligptlaims and associated adverse publicity. We mayeltliable if any
product we develop or any product that uses or incorponayesf @ur technologies causes injury or is otherwisedaumsuitable. Although
we intend to continue to maintain product liability inswr®, adequate insurance may not be available on ablEef#ems, if at all, and may
not provide adequate coverage against potential liabilitteproduct liability claim, regardless of its memiteventual outcome, could result in
significant legal defense costs. These costs would thaveffect of increasing our expenses and diverting maraganattention away from
the operation of our business, and could harm our business.

Historically, the market price for our common stock has beelatile.

The market price of our common stock could be subjectde wiice fluctuations in response to various factorsyméwhich are
beyond our control. The factors include:

e quarterly variations in our results of operations aquidiity;

» changes in recommendations by the investment communityteir estimates of our revenues or operating results;
» speculation in the press or investment community concemingusiness and results of operations;

e strategic actions by our competitors, such as product anero@mts or acquisitions;

* announcements of technological innovations or new prodhyatis, our customers or competitors; and

» general economic market conditions.

In addition, the stock market in general, and the markeeébmology and medical device companies in particuéas lexperienced
extreme price and volume fluctuations that have often beeglated to or disproportionate to the operating pedoice of those
companies. These broad market and industry factorsenausly harm the market price of our common stodandiess of our operating
performance. Historically, class action litigatiorofen brought against an issuing company following plerif volatility in the market price
of a company’s securities. Recently, a securities@aton suit was filed against us on behalf of all persorentities who purchased our
common stock between January 30, 2007 and October 24, 200I& WiHhielieve the lawsuit is without merit and intendigorously defend
ourselves, we could incur substantial legal fees, anchamagement’s attention and resources may be divertedfyerating our business in
order to respond to the litigation.
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Future sales of significant amounts of our common stock mapress our stock price.

A large percentage of our outstanding common stock is clyremhed by a small number of significant stockholderksese
stockholders have sold in the past, and may sell in the=fuirge amounts of common stock over relatively ghemibds of time. Sales of
substantial amounts of our common stock in the publi&ebdy our existing stockholders may adversely affectrtheket price of our
common stock. Such sales could create public perceptiofficfidies or problems with our business and may depsasstock price.

Changes in, or interpretations of, accounting rules and regtibns, could result in unfavorable accounting charges.

We prepare our consolidated financial statements in noitfowith accounting principles generally accepted i tmited States of
America. These principles are subject to interpi@iesby the SEC and various bodies formed to interprdtcaeate appropriate accounting
policies. A change in these policies can have a sigmifieffect on our reported results and may even reitvebcaffect previously reported
transactions. Our accounting policies that recentlylien or may be affected by changes in the accountingarelas follows:

*  revenue recognition;
» accounting for share-based payments; and

e accounting for income taxes.

If we fail to manage our exposure to global financial and sedi#s market risk successfully, our operating results dimthncial
statements could be materially impacted.

The primary objective of most of our investment actisiieto preserve principal. To achieve this objectasmajority of our
marketable investments are investment grade, liquid{-stron fixed-income securities and money market instrasn@@nominated in U.S.
dollars. If the carrying value of our investments exisethe fair value, and the decline in fair value is de¢mbd other-than-temporary, we
will be required to write down the value of our investisewhich could materially harm our results of operetiand financial
condition. Moreover, the performance of certain séesrin our investment portfolio correlates with thedit condition of the U.S. financial
sector. With the current unstable credit environm&atmight incur significant realized, unrealized or impent losses associated with these
investments.

We have adopted a shareholders rights’ plan to limit thegibility that we are acquired, which may mean that a tracon that
shareholders are in favor of or are benefited by may be preweénte

Our board of directors has the authority to issue up to 00Ghares of preferred stock and to determine the righterences,
privileges and restrictions of such shares without artyér vote or action by our shareholders. To dateboard of directors has designated
200,000 shares as Series A participating preferred stodnirection with our shareholder rights’ plan. The issuahpeeferred stock under
certain circumstances could have the effect of delayipyeventing an acquisition of the company or otherwiseisely affecting the rights
of the holders of our stock. The shareholder rights’ plag have the effect of rendering more difficult or dis@ging an acquisition of our
company which is deemed undesirable by our board of disecidhe shareholder rights’ plan may cause substantigilogilto a person or
group attempting to acquire us on terms or in a mannappobved by our board of directors, except pursuant téf@nconditioned on the
negation, purchase or redemption of the rights issued timelshareholder rights’ plan.

Our effective tax rate may vary significantly from period period.

Various internal and external factors may have favorablmfavorable effects on our future effective tax rafbese factors include, but
are not limited to, changes in tax laws, regulationsaarrdtes, changing interpretations of existing tax lamwggulations, the future levels of
tax benefits of stock option deductions

32



Table of Contents

relating to incentive stock options and employee stock purgtass and changes in overall levels of pretax earningdunia 2009, the Costa
Rica Ministry of Foreign Trade, an agency of the Gowent of Costa Rica, granted a twelve year extensioredbthincentives which were
previously granted in 2002. Under these incentives, all dhttene we earn in Costa Rica during these twelve ipeantive periods is
subject to reduced rates of Costa Rica income tax.inbeative tax rates will expire in various years beginmmng017. The Costa Rica
corporate income tax rate that would apply, absennitentives, is 30% for 2009. Because Costa Rica incumetllass in 2009, no tax
benefit was realized from these incentives in 2009.rderao receive the benefit of the incentives, we rhisstspecified numbers of
employees and maintain minimum levels of fixed asset imarst in Costa Rica. If we do not fulfill these coratis for any reason, our

incentive could lapse and our income in Costa Rica waeilsubject to taxation at higher rates, which could haregative impact on our
operating results.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We occupy approximately four facilities with a total offiand manufacturing area of over 274,000 square feetsefdgaoperties. At
December 31, 2009, these facilities were occupied as follows

Location Property / Approximate Size Use Expiration of lease
Santa Clara, CA Buildings/127,000 sq. feet Leased office for headquarters, June 2010
reasearch & development,
administrative personnel

San Jose, Costa Rica Building/63,000 sq. feet Leased office for administrative  September 2013
personnel and customer care

Juarez, Mexico Building/68,000 sq. feet Leased manufacturing and office for July 2013
manufacturing and administrative
personnel

Amsterdam, Netherlands Building/16,000 sq. feet Leased office for European June 2012
headquarters and administrative
personnel

On January 26, 2010, we entered into an agreement for nparat® headquarters to lease approximately 129,024 squarne Szet i
Jose, California. The lease agreement commenceeaarlier of August 1, 2010 or the date we first com@enaducting business in the
premises, which is expected to be on or about June 28, 20Milhoontinue for an initial term of seven years awd months. The lease
agreement for our current office headquarters in Sdata,California expires on June 30, 2010.

We believe that our existing facilities are adequataeet current requirements and that additional or substjtate svill be available as
needed to accommodate any expansion of operations.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
Consumer Class Action

On May 18, 2007, Debra A. Weber filed a consumer classraletivsuit against us, OrthoClear, Inc. and OrthoGteddlings, Inc. (d/b/a
OrthoClear, Inc.) in Syracuse, New York, U.S. DistGcurt. The complaint alleges two causes of action agaie©rthoClear defendants
and one cause of action against us for breach of adnfflie cause of action against us titled “Breach ofdRarty Benefit Contract”
references our agreement to make Invisalign treatnvaiiable to OrthoClear patients, alleging that weefdilto provide the promised
treatment to Plaintiff or any of the class members”.

On July 3, 2007, we filed our answer to the complaint andtadsk7 affirmative defenses. On July 20, 2007, we filed toméor
summary judgment on the Third Cause of Action (the onlyecatiaction alleged against us). On August 24, 2007, Weberafitlrotion for
class certification. On October 1, 2007, we filed an opiposib the motion of class certification and we argently awaiting rulings from
the Court. OrthoClear has filed a motion to dismiBse initial case management conference and all disctwerpeen stayed pending the
Court’s decision on the motion for class certificafi@rthoClear’s motion to dismiss and our motion fanmary judgment. We believe the
lawsuit to be without merit and intend to vigorously defenrselves.

Securities Litigation

In August 2009, Plaintiff Charles Wozniak filed a lawsuit agathe Company and our Chief Executive Officer and ékeasi Thomas
M. Prescott (“Mr. Prescott”), in District Court fdne Northern District of California on behalf of aioh®d class consisting of all persons or
entities who purchased the common stock of
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Align between January 30, 2007 and October 24, 2007. The @iomglleges that Align and Mr. Prescott violated ®ecfiO(b) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that Mr. Prescott e@l&ection 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.ifispéy, the
complaint alleges that during the class period we fadeatisclose that we had shifted the focus of our sales torclearing backlog, causing a

significant decrease in the number of new case stétte Court has recently selected a lead plaintiff. D&leve the lawsuit to be without
merit and intend to vigorously defend ourselves.

Litigating claims of the types discussed in this Annual Remo Form 10-K, whether or not ultimately determinedin favor or settled
by us, is costly and diverts the efforts and attentfamuo management and technical personnel from normaldsssiperations. Any of these
results from litigation could adversely affect our resafteperations and stock price. From time to timehese received, and may again
receive, letters from third parties drawing our attento their patent rights. While we do not beli¢vat we infringe any such rights that have
been brought to our attention, there may be other pentanent proprietary rights of which we are preseatigware.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
There were no matters submitted to a vote of seduoityers during the fourth quarter of 2009.
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ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOC KHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Price Range of Common Stock

Our common stock is listed on the NASDAQ Global Market uide symbol “ALGN.” Public trading of our common stock
commenced on January 26, 2001. Prior to that date, thereonpublic market for our common stock. The followialglé shows, for the
periods indicated, the high and low per share closing pofoasr common stock, as reported by the NASDAQ Globalkita

High Low

Year Ended December 31, 2009:

Fourth quarter $ 18.85 $ 14.18
Third quarter $ 14.91 $ 9.15
Second quarter $ 12.91 $ 7.62
First quarter $ 9.67 $ 6.10
Year Ended December 31, 2008:

Fourth quarter $ 10.4¢ $ 5.00
Third quarter $ 13.48 $ 10.01
Second quarter $ 13.1¢ $ 9.84
First quarter $ 16.55 $ 10.34

On February 19, 2010, the closing price of our common stotikeoNASDAQ Global Market was $17.94 per share. As oflarl9,
2010 there were approximately 172 holders of record of our constock. Because the majority of our shares of outstgredimmon stock is
held by brokers and other institutions on behalf ofldholders, we are unable to estimate the total nunflstockholders represented by these
record holders.

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends otoounon stock. We currently intend to retain any fueaings to fund the
development and growth of our business and do not anégpaging any cash dividends in the foreseeable future.cr@dit facility contains
certain restrictive loan covenants, including restniion our ability to pay dividends. S&=m 7 “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Liquidity and Capitabiress”.

Performance Graph

Notwithstanding any statement to the contrary in any of our puevor future filings with the SEC, the following information ia@to
the price performance of our common stock shall not be deemed \fitddthe SEC or “Soliciting Material” under the Securiti€&xchange
Act of 1934, as amended, or subject to Regulation 14A or 14Cliabitdies of Section 18 of the Exchange Act except to ttemewe
specifically request that such information be treated as Salicihaterial or to the extent we specifically incorporais thformation by
reference.
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COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN

The following graph compares the cumulative total stolddraeturn on our common stock with that of the NASDStock Market US
Index, a broad market index published by the National Aagoniof Securities Dealers, Inc., a peer group thaisee from August 2007
until August 2009 and S&P 1500 Composite Health Care Equipment gli8siindex. The comparison for each of the periodessthat
$100 was invested on January 1, 2005 in our common stockottks 8t the NASDAQ Stock Market US Index, and the statkke former
peer group and the S&P Index, and that all dividends wareested.

The former peer group consisted of 13 companies listedvbelo

American Medical Systems

Holdings, Inc. Nektar Therapeutics.
Ansys Inc. Nuvasive Inc.
ArthroCare Sirona Dental Systems Inc.
Integra Lifesciences Hldgs. Sonosite.
Intuitive Surgical. Vital Images Inc.
Natus Medical Inc.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The following tables set forth the selected consolidateshcial data for each of the years in the five-ysarod ended December 31,
2009. The selected consolidated financial data is qualifigd entirety and should be read in conjunction with@onsolidated Financial
Statements and related Notes thereto set forth on page®96mndvianagement’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operatioriseginning on page 40. We have derived the statement otiopsrdata for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008
and 2007 and the balance sheet data as of December 31n20@308& from the consolidated audited financial statemecitsded elsewhere
in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The statement ofatpans data for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2D@%edralance sheet
data as of December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 were derived froong@idated audited financial statements that are niotded in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA
(in thousands, except per share data)

Years Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:
Net revenues $ 312,333 $ 303,976 $ 284,332 $ 206,354 $ 207,125
Gross profit(4) $ 233,49: $ 225,12¢ $ 209,297 $ 141,57¢ $ 143,341
Profit (loss) from operations(1)(2)(4) (34,012 15,514 33,855 (37,536 2,446
Other income (expense), net 119 1,562 3,09t 3,401 283
Net profit (loss) before provision for (benefit find

income taxes(1)(2)(4) (33,893 17,076 36,950 (34,135 2,729
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes (2,624 (62,917 1,22¢€ 828 1,316
Net profit (loss)(1)(2)(3)(4) $ (31,269 $ 79,987 $ 35,724 $ (34,963 $ 1,413
Net profit (loss) per share
Basic $ (0.45 $ 1.20 $ 053 $ (0.55 $ 0.02
Diluted $ (0.4%) $ 1.18 $ 05C $ (0.5%) $ 0.02
Shares used in computing net profit (loss) per share:
Basic 69,09/ 66,817 67,17¢ 63,24¢ 61,644
Diluted 69,094 68,064 71,444 63,246 63,152

December 31,

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:

Working capital $ 180,056 $ 117,335 $ 123,058 $ 40,306 $ 62,978
Total assets 355,24( 279,341 222,76 151,55¢ 142,110
Total long-term liabilities 961 229 148 219 64
Stockholders’ equity $ 273,03¢ $ 21854 $ 161,15« $ 83,55¢ $ 93,438

(1) Profit (loss) from operations, net profit (loss)dref provision for income taxes and net profit (loss)tieryears ended December 31,

2007 and 2006 included a $1.8 million credit and a $14.3 million chaagmectively, for the Patients First Program antteseént
costs. Seélote 5 “Patients First Program and settlement costs” inllmes to Consolidated Financial Statemdatsadditional
information.

(2) Profit from operations and net profit before bentefim income taxes included a $6.2 million restructuringghdor the year ended
December 31, 2008. In addition, 2008 net profit included a $Blidrm
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()

(4)

restructuring charge net of taxes of $129,000. NRe#e 19 “Restructurings” in the Notes to Consolidated FinancialeBtantgor

additional information.

Net profit for the year ended December 31, 2008 included a #ti#liégh benefit to income taxes as a result of thease of a tax
valuation allowance on most of the deferred tax a: SeeNote 14 “Income Taxes” in the Notes to Consolidated Finariatements
for additional information.

Gross profit for the year ended December 31, 2009 includeantiortization of prepaid royalties of $6.2 million relatethe litigation
settlement with Ormco. In addition, loss from operatio®s loss before benefit from income taxes, andasstihcluded a litigation
settlement charge of $69.7 million. S¢ete 7 “Ormco Litigation Settlement” in the Notes to Cordatied Financial Statementsr

additional information.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of our financialditton and results of operations should be read togettier'Selected
Consolidated Financial Data” and our consolidated firsistatements and related notes included elsewheresiArhual Report on
Form 10-K.

Overview

Align Technology, Inc. designs, manufactures and matketivisalign system, a proprietary method for tngatalocclusion, or the
misalignment of teeth. Invisalign corrects maloddnsising a series of clear, nearly invisible, remtéalppliances that gently move teeth to
a desired final position. Because it does not rely omugleeof metal or ceramic brackets and wires, Ingeadignificantly reduces the
aesthetic and other limitations associated with nzetdl wires and brackets, commonly referred to as ®raéée received the United States
Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”) clearance to markefgalign in 1998. The Invisalign system is regulated leyRBA as a Class I
medical device.

Each Invisalign treatment plan is unique to the indivighadilent. Our Invisalign Full treatment consists ofresy aligners as indicated
by ClinCheck in order to achieve the doctors’ treatngeials. Our Invisalign Express is a dual arch orthoddregatment for cases that meet
certain predetermined clinical criteria and consist dfouien sets of aligners. Invisalign Express treatrisentended to assist dental
professionals to treat a broader range of patients ydimg a lower-cost option for adult relapse cases, fooncrowding and spacing, or as
a pre-cursor to restorative or cosmetic treatms&mth as veneers. Invisalign Teen is designed to megpdiedic needs of the non-adult
comprehensive or teen treatment market. InvisaligisAss intended to help newly-trained and lower volunvéesalign GPs accelerate the
adoption and frequency of use of Invisalign into their practidpon completion of an Invisalign or non-Invisaltggatment, the patient may
be prescribed our traditional retainer product, or our Mivetainers, a clear aligner set designed for ongetegtion.

Our goal is to establish Invisalign as the standardhogetor treating malocclusion ultimately driving incredgroduct adoption by
dental professionals by focusing on the four key objectiging product innovation and clinical effectiveness,arding the customer
experience, generating consumer demand and expanding int@tideal markets. Each of these four key objectives ixitlesl more fully
in Item |—Business—Business Stratefjthis Annual Report on Form 10-K and is incorporatectim by this reference. In addition to
whether we successfully execute our business strategynlaen of other factors, the most important of which set forth below, may affect
our results in 2010 and beyond.

» Proficiency Requiremen  Our success depends upon increasing acceptance and frequeseybthe Invisalign system by
dental professionals (what we refer to as utilizgtioVe have a large number of low volume doctors that mplaelarge portion
of our customer base. We want every Invisalign proviol&e one we can comfortably direct a prospectiviemito with an
expectation of knowledgeable treatment and a great outc@melune 2, 2009, we announced the implementation of the
Invisalign Product Proficiency Requirements (or theiBieficy Requirements) in North America to help ensoia¢ t
Invisalign-trained doctors have the experience and d@enfie necessary to achieve high quality treatment oe&cton Invisalign
patients. Under the Proficiency Requirements, everg#tign provider in North America must have 10 Invisaligeecstarts
(measured by ClinCheck acceptance) and complete atl@éstisalign-specific continuing education (CE) ctediach calendar
year Doctors who met the proficiency requirements of Keaarts and 10 Invisalign CE hours by the end of 200®enkkfit
from a new addition to Align’s consumer marketing praggaone that encourages prospective patients to seekaisgtign
Preferred Providers.” Starting in January 2010, this metgdlign Preferred designation will be highlighted onlthésalign web
site and in television ads as a way to recognize doctmnmsmitment to continued proficiency with Invisaligithe Invisalign
Preferred designation will then be awarded on an annuial tbadoctors who meet the proficiency requirementsifgiven year.
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In October 2009, we updated the Proficiency Requirements intorélether support our customers through this significhange
and provided a one-time, additional six month qualificeperiod for doctors who were unable to meet thaqeoicy
requirements for 2009, but demonstrated a desire to contimgelaosisalign. The additional six month qualificationipdr
stipulated that for those doctors who had at least ase start and at least one Invisalign CE hour agrildeof 2009 will be
allowed to maintain their active Invisalign providertssathrough June 30, 2010, provided that they meet half eftieal
proficiency requirements (at least 5 case starts andigalign CE hours) between January 1 and June 30, 2010or®uaall still
be responsible for meeting the total annual requireméatsi@ast 10 case starts and 10 Invisalign CE houtisebgnd of 2010 to
qualify as providers for the following year.

Doctors with zero case starts or zero Invisalignh@krs at the end of 2009 were not eligible for the aafdhti qualification

period. They will be able to continue treating in-pregreases but will not be able to submit new Invisati@ses or use Invisalign
branding or marketing resources. Doctors can reaetthiair provider status by retaking Invisalign trainamgl meeting the
proficiency requirements.

As of January 2010, approximately 6,400 doctors met the IigisBloficiency Requirements and another 15,800 doctorshmet t
criteria for the additional six-month qualification petim 2009. We limited the account status of approximatelQD3doctors
who did not meet either Proficiency Requirements oattaitional qualification period requirements. Thesdaisacan continue
treating and finishing in progress patients. In additiondeaectivated approximately 9,600 Invisalign-trained doctdrs nad
never submitted a single Invisalign case.

Although approximately 15,800 doctors met the criteridtferadditional six-month qualification period, the Prieficy
Requirements may result in greater variability amongoouest activity, particularly in the second half of 201@athe additional
six-month qualification period expires. There can be naaisse on the number of doctors that ultimately rifecriteria for the
additional six-month qualification period. If the number of austomers who fail to maintain and/or increase utiliwato meet
the additional qualification requirements on June 30, 201@&erthan expected, our case volumes in the second Ralt @fwill
decrease and our revenues will be harmed. We want @wetgr to achieve and maintain the Proficiency Requiresneitiy
Invisalign, we expect, however, that a number of our tox@ime doctors may choose not to meet these regeirism In addition,
if GPs and Orthos do not attend our training courssafiicient numbers for any reason, including the introduotiothe
Proficiency Requirements, or declining general econ@analitions, our revenue may fail to grow as expected.

Number of new doctors train¢  Prior to 2009, we historically have trained astéa000 new dentists per year in North
America. With the introduction of the Proficiency Reguonents and a renewed focus on attracting the rightdfinodstomer, we
trained approximately 2,825 new doctors in North Amencad09. Our new doctor training in North America is evadvo
identify and focus on practices that are interested inrggihie skills and experience necessary to be succestiuiwisalign. h
the past, many doctors completed this training courseresmas of learning more about Invisalign or leveragiiregmarketing
benefits of Invisalign, but then only sporadically sutbeai case Building on our experience with the Proficiency Requirements
going forward, we expect that doctors are more likelyttenad our training course when they are actually réadiyggin using
Invisalign in their practices right away. As a resolter time, although we are likely to have a more fedusngaged and
committed customer base that maintains a baseline a-daté Invisalign product knowledge, we expect that the nuoflrezw
doctors trained in North America will be relativelgnaparable to 2009.
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Utilization Rates. Our goal is to establish Invisalign as the trestt of choice for treating malocclusion ultimateiiving
increased product adoption and frequency of use by dentabpiarfials, or utilization. Our quarterly utilizati@tes from the
years ended Deceml 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007 are as follows:

Utilization Rates®
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* Utilization rates = # of cases shipped divided by # of deatases were shipped to

Although utilization rates in the fourth quarter of 2009dach of our Ortho, GP, and International channels tigteer than the same
quarter last year, we expect to see fluctuation in olization rates as practices adjust to the ProficidReguirements. As a result of the
Proficiency Requirements, we expect that in 2010, weship) cases to fewer doctors each quarter compared toypars. This will likely
result in greater variability in utilization rates, peutarly in the second half of 2010 after the additianalification period expires. Due to
this and other factors, we believe that quarter-to-quadmparisons of utilization rates may not be as nmegnii in 2010.

Impact of new products on deferred reve  Many of our products launched in 2008 (Vivera retainesgsalign Teen,
Invisalign Assist) include features of staged deliverthe option to receive replacement aligners duringduese of

treatment. As a result of these features, these piobace a significantly higher amount of deferred reversue percentage of
their average selling prices compared to Invisaligih Ftivera retainers are delivered in four shipmentsrdtae course of a year,
and revenue is initially deferred and then recognized dsskagment occurs. Invisalign Teen which includes up to six
replacement aligners, is delivered in a single shipmerept for the replacement aligners. Currently, #vemue for the six
replacement aligners is 100 percent deferred based omirtinesirket value and recognized as the replacement aigreeused or
when the case is completed. Although Invisalign Teerbbas available since July 2008, we do not have suffiedence to
support a usage rate less than 100 percent for the six replatcgiigners at this time, however, we are continugdiyrering and
evaluating our historical experience. If and when we gailiificient historical experience to support a usage rati éosix
replacement aligners less than 100 percent, we would adjudeterred revenue balance to the estimated usagenchte a
prospectively apply this rate to future Invisalign Telipments. For Invisalign Assist, when the progressking feature is
selected, aligners are shipped every nine stages. essil revenue for these cases is deferred upon thetiphent and will be
recognized upon the final shipment. Depending on customeogtion of these products, our mix of products may contmue
gradually shift towards these products, which will resuéiririncrease in deferred revenue on our balance sheet.
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* Impact on consumer spending due to continued weakness in gena@ingcoondition. Consumer spending habits are
affected by among other things, prevailing economic itiond, levels of employment, salaries and wage rgesprices,
consumer confidence, and consumer perception of ecormamditions. Continued weakness in the United Statewetpand
certain international economies in 2009 and into 2010 hassely affected consumer spending habits. As a resthie of
uncertain economic outlook for 2010, our case volumes fpamnter to quarter are difficult to predict with certairagd our
revenue may fail to grow as expected.

* International expansio  We will continue to focus our efforts towards increasidgpion of Invisalign by dental professionals
in our key international markets, Europe and Japan. Wétlavailability of Invisalign Teen in March 2009 for isalign-trained
doctors worldwide, we expect the addressable market fgoroduct internationally to expand and ultimately increase
adoption. In addition, we will continue to focus on incnregdirand awareness and consumer demand in Europe by aonioui
consumer advertising campaign. Additionally, althoughvdist majority of our international revenues are fromctlisales,
approximately 9% of our international sales are througdhilalisors covering smaller international markets, speificAsia
Pacific and Latin America. We recently announced tiditian of an international distributor for smaller caymharkets in
Europe, the Middle East and Africa. We will contirtaeconsider selling through distributors in other smaltdiess strategic
markets as well as consider expanding directly into anditicountries on a case-by-case basis. With thestsefive expect our
international revenues to continue to increase in atesdbollars and as a percentage of total net revenues foreseeable
future. In 2009, our international sales increased from 218étafevenues to 24% of net revenues.

* Seasonal fluctuations Seasonal fluctuations in the number of doctotkeir offices and available to take appointments have
affected, and are likely to continue to affect our bussneSpecifically, our customers often take vacatisinguhe summer
months and therefore tend to start fewer cases, epétiBurope. In addition, summer is typically the mssiseason for
orthodontists with practices that have a high percentbgdotescent and teenage patients. Many parents wget toeir teens
started in treatment before the start of the schemt. As a result, adult appointments, including adwishlign patient starts, are
often pushed further into late summer or early fall2009, we did not experience the normal seasonality in oundsssand had
sequential case growth in the North American orthoddrgia second quarter to the third quarter. With thelabgity of
Invisalign Teen, 2009 was the first summer we were @béetively compete for a share of teen patientsstartl believe that
Invisalign Teen may have helped moderate the histatmahward trend we have typically seen for our North Acaer
orthodontic customers during the summer months. Howéwvere can be no assurance that our historical seasends$ will not
continue to cause, fluctuations in our quarterly resuitduding fluctuations in sequential revenue growth rates.

* Foreign Exchange Ratt¢  Although the U.S. dollar is our reporting currencpoeation of our revenues and profits are generated
in foreign currencies. Revenues and profits genefatetibsidiags operating outside of the United States are tradstaie U.S
dollars using exchange rates effective during the respectile@and as a result are affected by changes in exchange Véges
have generally accepted the exposure to exchange rate mosavithouit using derivative financial instruments to martage
risk. Therefore, both positive and negative movemientsirrency exchanges rates against the U.S. dollacaevitinue to affect
the reported amount of revenues and profits in our cofadet! financial statements.

* Ormco Litigation Settlement On August 16, 2009, the Company and Ormco entered Bgtilament Agreement, pursuant to
which the Company (1) paid Ormco a cash amount equabt@ximately $13.2 million, and (2) agreed to issue to Danah
Corporation (“Danaher”), an affiliate of Ormco, 7.8lman fully paid and non-assessable shares of the Coygp&ommon
Stock, 5.6 million and 2.0 million of which were issued emBher on August 16, 2009 and September 22, 2009, respectively,
pursuant to the Stock Purchase Agreement entered intedretive Company and Danaher on August 16, 2009.
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Joint Development, Marketing and Sales Agreement connection with the settlement reached with Ormaoojegust 16, 2009,
Align and Ormco entered into the Joint Development, Margeind Sales Agreement, pursuant to which the partiesdumeed to
an exclusive collaboration over the next seven yeaj@ntly develop and commercialize a combination aitirgic treatment
system involving the use of both Align’s clear aligegstem and Ormco’s brackets and arch wire systdmchveystem will be
capable of treating even the most complex orthodoates:

SeeNote 7 “Ormco Litigation Settlement” for additional informatiabout the settlement accounting.

e 2010 Operating Expenses. During 2010, we expect our research and developmerdllaassselling and general administrative
expenses to be higher as we continue to invest in teiational operations, although we expect there witjuzeterly
fluctuations based on the timing of media spend, signifitade shows and industry events.

» Tax Valuation Allowance. We continually evaluate both the positive and nega&isgence in assessing our need for a tax
valuation allowanc: As a result of our analysis, we released the taxatialuallowance on most of the deferred tax asséts wi
the exception of certain capital loss and foreign netatipey loss carryforwards as of December 31, 2008. Howskeuld there
be a change in our ability to recover these deferreassets, the tax provision would increase in the pamiadhich it is more
likely than not that the we cannot recover our deferredsagts.

» Effective Tax Ra. Our effective tax rate may vary significantlgrfr period to period. Various internal and external factors
may have favorable or unfavorable effects on our éusidfective tax rate. These factors include, but atéimied to, changes in
tax laws, regulations and /or rates, changing interpoettf existing tax laws or regulations, the futurelewf tax benefits of

stock option deductions relating to incentive stock optamsemployee stock purchase plans and changes in overalldevels
pretax earnings.
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Results of Operations
Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007:
Net revenues and case volume by channel and product:
Invisalign product revenues by channel and other non-easaues, which represents training, retainer and anygitaducts, for the
years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007 are as followdlignani

Years Ended December 31,

Net % Net %

Net revenues 2009 Change Change 2008 Change Change 2007
North America:

Ortho $ 904 $ 21 2.4% $ 883 $ (1.2 (1.3%) $ 895
GP 132.¢ (2.7) (2.0%) 135.t 3.7 2.8% 131.8
Total North American Invisalign 223.2 (0.6) (0.3%) 223.8 2.5 1.1% $ 221.3
International Invisalign 72.0 10 16.1% 62.C 15.4 33.C% 46.6
Total Invisalign revenues 295.2 9.4 3.3% 285.8 17.9 6.7% $ 267.9
Other non-case revenues 17.1 (1.2) (6.0%) 18.2 1.8 11.C% 16.4
Total net revenues $ 3123 $ 8.3 2.7% $ 304.0 $ 19.7 6.9% $ 284.3

Case volume data which represents Invisalign case shigrby channel, for the years ended December 31, 2009,s2@D8007 are as
follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

Net % Net %

Invisalign case volume 2009 Change Change 2008 Change Change 2007
North America:

Ortho 73.0 2.4 3.4% 70.6 (2.3) (3.2%) 72.9
GP 100.1 (3.9 (3.3%) 103.t 1.5 1.5% 102.0
Total North American Invisalign 173.1 (2.0 (0.6%) 174.1 (0.8) (0.5%) 174.9
International Invisalign 47.5 9.6 25.2% 37.€ 9.9 35.4% 28.0
Total Invisalign case volume 220.6 8.6 4.1% 212.0 9.1 4.5% 202.9

Invisalign revenues by product and other non-case revenhiet) represents training, retainer and ancillary pragdot the years
ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007 are as follows (in millions)

Years Ended December 31,

Net % Net %

Net revenues 2009 Change Change 2008 Change Change 2007
Invisalign Full $ 234 $ (20.7) (8.1%) $ 255 $ 9.8 4.0% $ 2457
Invisalign Express 29.0 5.5 23.4% 23.5 1.3 5.9% 22.2
Invisalign Teen 25.6 19.7 317.7% 6.2 6.2 100.(% —
Invisalign Assist 5.5 4.9 816.™% 0.6 0.6 100.0% —
Other non-case revenues 17.1 (1.2) (6.0%) 18.2 1.8 11.C% 16.4

$ 3123 $ 8.3 2.7% $ 304.0 $ 19.7 6.9% $ 284.3
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Case volume data which represents Invisalign case shiprby product, for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2@030@n are as
follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

Net % Net %
Invisalign case volume 2009 Change Change 2008 Change Change 2007
Invisalign Full 155.2  (17.1) (9.9%)  172. 0.4 0.2%  172.0
Invisalign Express 33.0 1.0 3.1% 32.0 1.1 3.6% 30.9
Invisalign Teen 25.9 19.1 280.% 6.8 6.8 100.(% —
Invisalign Assist 6.4 5.6 700.0% 0.8 0.8 100.0% —
220.€ 8.6 4.1% 212.C 9.1 4.5% 202.9

Total net revenues increased in 2009 compared to 2008 fyiamma result of revenue growth in our Internatiomad Alorth American
Orthodontic channels and partially offset by a slightidedh North American GP revenues.

Overall, 2009 North American Invisalign revenues were coaipa to 2008 and reflect a full year impact of product shiting from
Invisalign Full towards Invisalign Teen and Invisaligas#st, both of which have higher amounts of deferregime than Invisalign
Full. Additionally, 2009 North American revenues also inclueftll year impact of North American price increattes were effective in
the beginning of the year. The North American orthodaftannel experienced an increase in revenue and caseevaiumarily driven by
the full year availability of Invisalign Teen. North Amcan GP revenues declined in 2009 compared to 2008 astabfekel product mix
shift towards Invisalign Assist combined with an oveséiihtly lower case volume. We believe that, assaltef the economic downturn and
continued economic uncertainty, many GPs focused ¢ffeits on traditional dental procedures, and as a resu#s of Invisalign to these
customers were negatively impacted compared to 2008. nBieyeon the customers’ adoption of these products, our grodyenay
continue to gradually shift towards these newer prodbetshave higher deferred revenues. Our Internatiomesidiign revenues grew in
2009 compared to 2008 as a result of increased Invisaligredsdlvolumes and was supplemented by a partial year iofgagtsalign Teen,
which was launched in March 2009. This increase wastdffsenfavorable exchange rates.

Total net revenues increased in 2008 compared to 2007 yiama result of increased growth in our internaldnvisalign revenue
and our North American GP revenue.

Net revenues from our North American Invisalign orthda@ochannel decreased in 2008 compared to 2007 due to decresesed ca
volume and higher revenue deferrals related to new prothictsuced in 2008 partially offset by lower participation aluvne-based
discount program rebates. Net revenues from our Nortargan Invisalign GP channel increased due to highenvchisee and lower
participation in volume-based discount rebate programs.inEnease in our International Invisalign revenue®dfA8 compared to 2007 was
predominately due to higher case volumes partially offseinigvorable exchange rates and increased participati@miume-based discount
programs.

Other revenues, consisting of training fees and salasailary products, were lower in 2009 compared to 2008 pitintare to a
decreased number of doctors trained year over year.r @trenues were lower in 2008 compared to 2007 due to Northidemdraining
discount programs.

For 2010, we expect our total net revenues to grow compa2D9 primarily due to the expected increases in case esltnom both
the North American and International Invisalign channé€lsarterly revenues may be impacted by changes in proadudhm levels of
promotional discounts, foreign exchange rates and othtersac
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Cost of revenues and gross margin (in millions):

Years Ended December 31,

2009 Change 2008 Change 2007
Cost of revenues $ 78.8 $ (0.2) $ 78.9 $ 3.9 $ 75.C
% of net revenues 25.2% 25.% 26.4%%
Gross profit $ 233k $ 8.4 $ 225.1 $ 15.€ $ 209.:
Gross margin % 74.8% 74.1% 73.6%

Cost of revenues includes salaries for staff involvethéproduction process, the cost of materials, packasinigping costs,
depreciation on capital equipment used in the production prdcaissng costs and stock-based compensation expense.

Gross margin improved slightly in 2009 compared to 2008 priyrduie to an increase in case volume over our relatfisedy cost
structure, continued improvement in operating effidesicand the cost savings from the commencementexftdabrication of our aligners
partially offset by $6.2 million of amortization of prepaayalties relating to the Ormco litigation settlement.

Gross margin improved in 2008 compared to 2007 primarily dar tocrease in case volume over our relatively fixed stogtture and
improved operating efficiencies.

We believe that gross margin in 2010 will be higher the2008 due to an increase in revenue year over year asswh# aessation of
the amortization of Ormco prepaid royalties. Howewsth our relatively fixed manufacturing cost structurearderly gross margin will
fluctuate based on case volume and product mix. Additiortbkylevels of promotional discounts, foreign exchamagges and several other
factors can impact average selling prices, revenuesgm@ss margins.

Sales and marketing (in millions):

Years Ended December 31,

2009 Change 2008 Change 2007
Sales and marketing $ 112.F $ (2.6 $ 115.1 $ 16 $ 98.2
% of net revenues 36.0% 37.%% 34.5%

Sales and marketing expense includes sales force cortiper(gecluding travel-related costs), marketing personelated costs, media
and advertising, clinical education, product marketingstack-based compensation expense.

Sales and marketing expense decreased during 2009 compared tm@@0& $4.8 million reduction in employee-related casts a
result of the restructuring plans implemented in 2008 asasdtwer marketing, media and clinical education experisgks®million
associated with our 2008 product launches. These costgpadially offset by higher sales commission expens$4.8 million.

Sales and marketing expense increased during 2008 compared wu20® higher payroll-related expenses of $7.0 milliecluding
stock-based compensation of $1.1 million, as a resulieduthyear effect of additional headcount hired in the foguarter of 2007. We also
incurred higher product marketing expenses of $9.0 milliespciated with our new product launches and commeetializ professional
marketing programs, clinical education and media costs.
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General and administrative (in millions):

Years Ended December 31,

2009 Change 2008 Change 2007
General and administrative $ 61.7 $ (0.5 $ 62.2 $ 89 $ 533
% of net revenues 19.8% 20.5% 18.7%

General and administrative expense includes salari@slfoinistrative personnel, outside consulting services| ¢eegeenses and
stock-based compensation expense.

General and administrative expenses decreased slightlgd@0@® compared to 2008 primarily due to lower outside servétating to
legal fees of $2.5 million. These costs were partiallsedtby higher payroll-related costs.

General and administrative expenses increased during 20@@ucsairto 2007 primarily due to higher payroll-related expeofses
$4.5 million, including increased stock-based compensatipanse of $2.6 million, resulting from additional headcoianagement
decided to no longer invest in an internally developed softt@aidor business process management resulting in ahiagsairment charge
of $1.7 million in the fourth quarter of 2008. In addition, legyadl other professional fees were higher by $3.4amiltompared to 2007
primarily due to a $1.6 million credit in 2007 from an insw@reimbursement we received associated with the Qahol@igation.

Research and development (in millions):

Years Ended December 31,

2009 Change 2008 Change 2007
Research and development $ 22.2 $ (3.9 $ 26.2 $ 05 $ 257
% of net revenues 7.1% 8.6% 9.0%

Research and development expense includes the personnel-cektseand outside consulting expenses associated witssthaech and
development of new products and enhancements to existing odueducting clinical and post-marketing trials andkstmsed
compensation expense.

Research and development expenses decrease in 2009 complaeeshtae period in 2008 primarily due to lower payroll-rdlate
expenses of approximately $2.4 million as well as lowelditonsulting expenses of approximately $1.0 million.

Research and development expenses increased slightly in 20p8redrto the same period in 2007 primarily due to higher
payroll-related expenses, including stock-based compensasiaresult of increased headcount in the first h&008, partially offset by
lower consulting fees.

Restructurings (in millions):

Years Ended December 31,

2009 Change 2008 Change 2007
Restructurings $ 1.3 $ (4.9 $ 6.2 $ 62 $—
% of net revenues 0.4% 2.1% n/a

During 2008, we announced restructuring plans in July and @ctolincrease efficiencies across the organizatiométhdhe
expectation of lowering the overall cost structure by apprately $3.5 million per quarter. In July 2008, we implementegsaucturing plan
to reduce our full time headcount by 67 employees includirigaagal-consolidation of order acquisition operations fsanmcorporate
headquarters in Santa Clara,
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California to Juarez, Mexico, which was completed byeti@ of 2008. The October restructuring plan included arealction of 111 full
time headcount in Santa Clara, California by July 2009 whemewed our customer care, accounts receivable, credit dadtioms, and
customer event registration organizations in Santa QCaifornia to our existing facilities in Costa Rica.

We incurred approximately $1.3 million during 2009 of coktteel to severance and termination benefits, where in 2@0Bourred
approximately $6.2 million in restructuring expenses thatidex! $0.7 million related to the acceleration of stockooptesting and
$5.5 million related to severance and termination benefits

Litigation settlement (in millions):

Years Ended December 31,

2009 Change 2008 Change 2007
Litigation settlement $ 69.7 $ 697 $— $ — $—
% of net revenues 22.3% 0.0% n/a 0.0%

On August 16, 2009, we entered into a litigation settleméht@rmco that ended all pending litigation between thegsand we
agreed to make a cash payment of $13.2 million and issugl aft@t6 million non-assessable shares of commark stbhe shares issued to
Danaher (an affiliate of Ormco) may not be resold pikpersuant to an effective registration statement undeBdaurities Act or an available
exemption from registration. We are not obligatedffiecaany such registration prior to August 16, 2010. Hirevilue of the unregistered
shares was determined as of the market closing pnitieeodates the shares were issued less a 25% non-rbiitiyedéscount, for a total
value of $76.7 million, including the cash payment. Therd&nation of the discount applied to the restrictedkst®tighly subjective and is
based primarily on an analysis utilizing the Black-SelRahodel to value a hypothetical put option to approxirtieteost of hedging the
restricted stock over the expected period of non-mark#yabilhe table below provides for a sensitivity analysthe discount rates were 1%
and 5% higher or lower (in thousands, except percentages).

20% (-5%) 24% (-1%) 25% 26% (+19%) 30% (+5%)
Total fair value of stock and cash consideration 80,89¢ 77,51z 76,66¢ 75,81¢ 72,43(
Variance $ 4,234 847 — (847) (4,239
Variance % 5.5% 1.1% 0.0% (1.1%) (5.5%)

The value attributed to past infringement claims waended as litigation settlement costs and was baseds@shipments from
September 9, 2003 through August 16, 2009, totaling $69.7 millimchwas recorded in operating expenses and $6.2 millioramasgtized
to cost of sales for the year ended December 31, 2009. refifagning $0.8 million will be amortized based on césensents during first
quarter of 2010.

SeeNote 7 “Ormco Litigation Settlemenfbr additional information about the settlement accanti

Patients First Program and settlement costs (in millions):

Years Ended December 31,

2009 Change 2008 Change 2007
Patients First Program $— $ — $— $ 18 $ (1.9
Settlement costs — — — — —
Total Patients First Program and settlement costs $— $ — $— $ 1.8 $ (1.8
% of net revenues — — (0.6%)

As part of the OrthoClear Agreement in October 2006)@@tear agreed to stop the importation of alignerstimdJnited States and
discontinue all aligner business operations worldwide.a #Aesult, most OrthoClear
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patients were unable to complete their orthodontidrireat with OrthoClear. In an attempt to help minimizatment disruptions for the
OrthoClear patients and their doctors, we committedidke treatment available to these patients at nti@ddicost under the “Patients First
Program”. In the fourth quarter of 2006, we recorded an $8li®dmdharge for the anticipated costs of completing thagiam. Subsequently,
in the first quarter of 2007, we reduced our Patients RiogirBm accrual by $1.8 million to reflect a reduction wf imitial estimate to the
number of cases actually received by the case submisamtine. We shipped all Patients First Program casésrt®y30, 2007. There were
no costs related to the Patients First Program in 200&2609.

Interest and other income (expense), net (in millions):

Years Ended December 31,

2009 Change 2008 Change 2007
Interest income $ 0.6 $ (2.5 $ 3.1 $ (1.3 $ 4.2
Interest (expense) (0.1 (0.1 — 0.3 (0.3
Other income (expense), net (0.4) 1.1 (1.5) (0.7) (0.8)
Total interest and other income (expense), net $ 0.1 $ (1.5 $ 1.6 $ (1.5 $ 3.1

Interest and other income (expense), net, includessttercome earned on cash balances, interest experesgn fourrency translation
gains and losses and other miscellaneous charges.

Interest income net in 2009 decreased by $2.5 million compa2@D8 primarily due to lower returns on our investmenterést rates
for investments throughout the marketplace were lowetaltiee low Federal Funds Rate established by the Rdgiesarve during
2009. Other expense, net, decreased in 2009 compared to 20&ieftecreases in foreign exchange gains during 2009.

Interest income, net in 2008 decreased by $1.1 million ca@dpar2007 primarily due to lower average cash, cash equivaled
marketable securities balances resulting from the $80liOn stock repurchase program and lower interesistatn 2008, we shifted our
investments into more conservative instruments ppally, U.S. government securities, which bear lowgeriest rates. We incurred no
interest expense in 2008 compared to 2007. In 2007 we incureegsinéxpense on the outstanding balance of our liocredit during 2007
which was repaid during 2007. We had no outstanding bangsas of December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008.

Provision for (benefit from) income taxes (in millions):

Years Ended December 31,
2009 Change 2008 Change 2007

Provision for (benefit from) income taxes $ (2.6) $ 604 $ (63.0 $ (64.2 $1.2

We recorded income tax benefits of $2.6 million and $63.0amifbr 2009 and 2008, respectively and an income tax provigi$l.2
million for 2007. These represented effective tax ret€g.7%), (368.4%), and 3.3%, in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respect®eatyincome tax
provision is based upon our operating results for each wpjaiddiction in which we operate and the amount of stgttiéx that we incur in
each jurisdiction.

We exercised significant judgment in regards to estimédtiesuse market growth, forecasted earnings and projeciatht@aincome, in
determining the provision for income taxes, and for psep®f assessing our ability to utilize any future befrefn deferred tax assets. At
December 31, 2008, based on an evaluation of the availabtey@@nd negative evidence, we determined that niaatraleferred tax assets
would be realized with the exception of certain capitsd land foreign net operating loss carryforwards. Inmgeakat determination, we
considered the historical and projected pretax operaptiofif, excluding stock-based
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compensation, as well as the cyclical nature of ouinkbas and the uncertainty as to the impact of new ptdalurcches. Specifically, at
December 31, 2008, the Company considered the following\msiiidence:

« cumulative seven quarters of pretax operating profitatplitg permanent items

» the then-projected pretax book income for 2009 and beyaygksting that deferred tax assets will be utilized

The Company also considered the following negative evedenc
* history of operating losses in 2006 and prior to 2003

» cyclical nature of the business and price volatility

We believe that the positive evidence is of sufficiergtliggand quantity to overcome the negative evidence aadesult, we released
our tax valuation allowance of $64.6 million in the fourthr¢graof 2008. The remaining valuation allowance of appnately $6.2 million is
related to capital loss and foreign net operating losgfoawards as of December 31, 2008 because we cannotgoseghcient future capital
gains or foreign source income to realize these defeaxealssets. These net operating loss carryforwaitbiesult in an income tax benefit
if and when we conclude it is more likely than not thatrelated deferred tax assets will be realized.

In February 2009, the California 2009-2010 budget legislation igasdinto law. One of the major components of thggdlation is
the ability to elect to apply a single sales factor agpmuoment for years beginning after January 1, 2011. Asudt iifour anticipated election
of the single sales factor, we are required to re-oreasur deferred taxes taking into account the reveedtdrn and the expected California
tax rate under the elective single sales factor.heie determined that by electing a single sales factor appoeint, our deferred tax assets
will decrease by approximately $0.6 million (net of fedéexiefit). The tax impact of $0.6 million has been réedras a discrete item in the
first quarter of 2009.

At December 31, 2009, we had net operating loss carryfdsaat approximately $187.7 million for federal tax purposes a
$68.1 million for California state tax purposes. If ndized, these carryforwards will begin to expire in 2020féateral purposes and 2011
for California purposes. The Internal Revenue Code impms@sinual limitation on the use of a corporation’s taibates if a corporation
undergoes an ownership change for tax purposes. If an owmehsirige is determined to have occurred, our ability téheseet operating
loss carryforwards would be subject to an annual limoatiHowever, based on our current estimate of tiaénet operating losses at
December 31, 2009 and our current estimate of the annuatlonitwe do not expect our net operating loss carryforwaris limited. At
December 31, 2009, we had research credit carryforwargpuofamately $4.4 million for federal purposes and $5.4 amilfor California
state tax purposes. If not utilized, the federal crettityforwards will begin to expire in 2017. The Califorriges credit can be carried
forward indefinitely.

Financial Accounting Standard Board (“FASB”) Accountirtgriglard Codification (“ASC”) 718 prohibits recognitionatieferred
income tax asset for excess tax benefits due to spmncexercises that have not yet been realized througtiugtion in income taxes
payable. Such unrecognized deferred tax benefits total8dvi#ion as of December 31, 2009 and will be accountedsfer eedit to
additional paid-in capital, if and when realized through a téalum income taxes payable.

We have not provided additional U.S. income taxes omstiimited earnings from non-U.S. operations as of Deeerdl, 2009 because
such earnings are intended to be reinvested indefinitedydeudf the United States.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

We fund our operations from product sales, the proceeiti® ahle of our common stock, and from occasional mgs under our
available credit facility. As of December 31, 2009, 2008207, we had the following cash and cash equivalents, tedtdash and
short-term investments (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007

Cash and cash equivalents $ 166,48 $ 87,10C $ 89,119
Restricted cash — — 21
Short-term investments 19,97¢ 23,06¢ 38,771
Total $ 186,465 $ 110,166 $ 127,911

Net cash provided by operating activities for the ysated December 31, 2009 was $74.2 million, resulting primaoity bur net loss
of $31.3 million adjusted for non-cash items including the litigasettlement with Ormco of $62.7 million and other naskcexpenses
totaling $28.1 million, which included depreciation, amattiizn of intangibles, and stock-based compensation exp@&ige$34.4 million
increase in cash provided by operating activities comgarttte prior year was driven primarily by higher satelume which also resulted in
an increase in deferred revenue of $15.5 million due toaserksales of newer products that have higher deferretuese

Net cash provided by operating activities for the yrated December 31, 2008 was $39.7 million, resulting primaoity bur net profit
of $80.0 million and non-cash items totaling $32.7 million,chtincluded depreciation, amortization of intangiblesioopacceleration
charges for terminated executives and stock-based contipansgpense. Also included in non-cash items was aniags&tment charge of
$1.7 million relating to management’s decision to no longegst in an internally developed software tool for busipessess
management. These increases were offset by theaelbasion-cash tax valuation allowance of $64.6 million ostrof the deferred tax
assets. Cash flows from operating activities alsoltezs from a $4.6 million increase in deferred revenuesa®@.9 million decrease in
inventories. These increases in cash flows weretdffsan $8.0 increase in accounts receivable and sadean&$6.1 million in accounts
payable and accrued liabilities.

Net cash provided by operating activities for the ywated December 31, 2007 was $52.8 million, resulting primaoity bur net
income of $35.7 million and non-cash items such as depatiatid amortization, stock-based compensation, and aatamiof intangibles
totaling $25.6 million. Additionally, a $2.7 million incream accounts payable also contributed to the inclieaset cash provided by
operating activities. These increases in cash flows fiperating activities were partially offset by a $10.[fioniincrease in accounts
receivable.

Net cash used in investing activities was $1.6 milliorttieryear ended December 31, 2009. The primary drivewasmillion used
for the purchase of property and equipment in 2009 compare8 $illon in 2008 offset by $6.0 million of net maturitiesth marketable
securities as compared to $12.9 million in 2008. Although Weuseour current investment portfolio has very litikk of impairment, we
cannot predict future market conditions or market liquiditd can provide no assurance that our investment jpostid remain unimpaired.

Net cash used in investing activities was $1.1 milliorttieryear ended December 31, 2008 and consisted of $14dhrfollithe
purchase of property and equipment offset by $12.9 million ahadétrities of marketable securities.

Net cash used in investing activities was $36.8 milliortHe year ended December 31, 2007, which largely consis&9d million of
net purchases of short-term marketable securitie$addmillion used for the purchase of capital assets.

Net cash provided in financing activities was $6.8 millior the year ended December 31, 2009, which resulted pgirfrarn
$8.1 million in proceeds from the issuance of our comnimeks These proceeds were partially offset from théemefit excess of
shared-based payments and taxes paid on vesting resstimtidinits of $1.1 million.
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Net cash used in financing activities was $40.4 milliorttie year ended December 31, 2008 and resulted primarityduo
$50.1 million stock repurchase including commissions offgek10.5 million in proceeds from the issuance of our comshoek, principally
from exercises of employee stock options and purchases tirelemployee stock purchase plan.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $17.5 amilfior the year ended December 31, 2007 and consisted of $HHO im
proceeds from the issuance of our common stock, prinfeoity exercises of employee stock options. This increasepartially offset by the
repayment of $11.5 million against the outstanding balan@ipline of credit. Net cash provided by financing atiisiwas $27.7 million
for the year ended December 31, 2006 and consisted of $16dhnmilproceeds from the issuance of our common stothagty from
exercises of employee stock options and $11.5 million in netwiorgs from our line of credit.

Net proceeds from the issuance of our common stoctedela the exercise of employee stock options have hidtgregen a significant
component of our liquidity. However, in 2006, we began grgntistricted stock units (“RSUs”) which, unlike stockiaps, do not generate
cash from exercise. As aresult, we will likely genetass cash from the proceeds of the sale of our comstook in future periods. In
addition, because RSUs are taxable to the individuals thegrnvest, the number of shares we issue to each okecutese officers will be
net of applicable withholding taxes which will be paid by ush®ir behalf. During 2009, 2008, and 2007, we paid $0.5 miiorg million,
and $0.4 million of taxes related to RSUs that vested dhia period for executive officers, respectively.

On December 5, 2008, we renegotiated and amended oungxistdit facility with Comerica Bank. Under this rewnod line of credit,
we have $25.0 million of available borrowings with a matuwate of December 31, 2010. This credit facility recquaejuick ratio covenant
and also requires us to maintain a minimum unrestrictgd lzalance of $10.0 million. As of December 31, 2009, wenbaulitstanding
borrowings and we were in compliance with the finan@akaants of this credit facility.

On April 29, 2008, we announced that our Board of Dired¢tatsapproved a stock repurchase program of up to $50milburing the
year ended December 31, 2008, we repurchased 4.7 milliors sliam@mmon stock at an average price of $10.76 per shaae &ggregate
purchase price of $50.1 million including commissions.ofBecember 31, 2008, we had completed repurchases undesckeegturchase
authorization. There were no stock repurchases in 2009.

Contractual Obligations/Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

The impact that our contractual obligations as of Ddw® 31, 2009 are expected to have on our liquidity and aash ifh future
periods is as follows (in thousands):

Payments Due by Period

Less than 1-2 3-5 More than
Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
Operating lease obligations $ 8,574 $ 3,33¢ $ 4,22¢ $ 1,00€ $ —

On January 26, 2010, we entered into an agreement for nparat® headquarters to lease approximately 129,024 squarne Szet i
Jose, California. The lease agreement commencieaarlier of August 1, 2010 or the date we first com@menaducting business in the
premises, which is expected to be on or about June 28, 20Milhoontinue for an initial term of seven years awd months. The lease
agreement for our current office headquarters in Saata,(California, expires on June 30, 2010. [Set 20 “Subsequent Event.”

We had no off-balance sheet arrangements as definedjinaiten S-K Item 303(a) (4) as of December 31, 2009.

We believe that our current cash and cash equivalentbined with our existing borrowing capacity will be stént to fund our
operations for at least the next 12 months. If veeusiable to generate adequate
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operating cash flows, we may need to seek additional sourcapital through equity or debt financing, collaborativetbrer arrangements
with other companies, bank financing and other sourceslar to realize our objectives and to continue our ¢jpax There can be no
assurance that we will be able to obtain additional debyoity financing on terms acceptable to us, or atlbBhdequate funds are not
available, we may need to make business decisionsahlat @dversely affect our operating results such as maiifisato our pricing policy,
business structure or operations. Accordingly, tHarfato obtain sufficient funds on acceptable terms wieeded could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operatimhfirrancial condition.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Management'’s discussion and analysis of our financial gondinhd results of operations is based upon our consolidatettial
statements, which have been prepared in accordance withrging principles generally accepted in the United Swftédmerica. The
preparation of financial statements requires our managemardke estimates and judgments that affect the repamednts of assets and
liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosures aatie of the financial statements. We evaluate ounass on an on-going basis,
including those related to revenue recognition, stock-bes@gensation and income taxes. We use authoritative prosroents, historical
experience and other assumptions as the basis for gneddimates. Actual results could differ from thodarextes.

We believe the following critical accounting policies astireates affect our more significant judgments used iptéparation of our
consolidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue when persuasive evidence of an amangexists, delivery has occurred, the sales priibecid or determinable,
and collection is probable. Product is considered deliver the customer once it has been shipped andridlesk of loss have been
transferred. Revenues are recognized from product safesf discounts and rebates. Service revenues rétetieel training of dental
professionals and staff on the Invisalign treatmeotgsses are recorded when the services are completed.

We enter into arrangements that involve multiple futurevdedbles. Included in the price of Invisalign Full,isalign Teen and
Invisalign Assist, we offer case refinement, whiglaifinishing tool used to adjust a patient’s teeth tal#s&red final position. Case
refinement may be elected by the dental professiorsdyatime during treatment however it is generally ceden the last stages of
orthodontic treatment. We use vendor specific objeetweence of fair value to allocate revenue to the oefsgement deliverable and
recognize the residual revenue upon shipment. We def&ithalue of case refinement upon shipment based orasdge factor, which is
determined by sufficient historical experience of caseerfent usage. Actual usage rates could differ from #terfdal breakage factor
requiring future adjustments to revenue.

Revenues are deferred for certain products that includedsti@gjeery. Depending on the product, revenues are recajbased on
usage, case completion, ratably over a delivery periaghan shipment of the final staged shipment. Invisaligen, which includes up to
six replacement aligners, is delivered in a single shigraxcept for the replacement aligners. Curreritlyyévenue for Invisalign Teen is
recognized upon shipment except for the six replacemenesdidor which the fair market value is 100 percent dedesirel recognized as the
replacement aligners are shipped or when the case isatethplAlthough Invisalign Teen has been available sinlye2008, we do not have
sufficient evidence to support a usage rate less than 1Ghpécthe six replacement aligners at this time,éwe@w, we are continually
gathering and evaluating our historical experience. dfveinen we gather sufficient historical experience to su@posage rate for the six
replacement aligners less than 100 percent, we would adjudeferred revenue balance to the estimated usagenthpeaspectively apply
this rate to future Invisalign Teen shipments. Thee¥awetainer includes four shipments per year, and revemisderred upon the first
shipment and recognized ratably over the one year delpezigd. For Invisalign Assist, when the progresskirey feature is selected,
aligners are shipped to the dental professional aftey evee stages. For these cases, revenue is deferredhapiimst staged shipment and
will be recognized upon shipment of the final staged shipme
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We estimate and record a provision for amountstohesed losses on sales, if any, in the period suds saicur. Provisions for
discounts and rebates to customers are provided fbeisame period that the related product sales are redmased upon historical
discounts and rebates.

Stock-based Compensation Expense

We recognize stock-based compensation cost for onlg Stares ultimately expected to vest on a straighblses over the requisite
service period of the award, net of an estimated forfetate. We estimate the fair value of stock optisisg a Black-Scholes valuation
model, which requires the input of highly subjective assumptionkiding the option’s expected term and stock pricatility. In addition,
judgment is also required in estimating the number of staskdawards that are expected to be forfeited. Forfeitmesestimated based on
historical experience at the time of grant and revigeticessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitdiféex from those estimates. The
assumptions used in calculating the fair value of shasedbpayment awards represent management’s best estimatibese estimates
involve inherent uncertainties and the application aiagament’s judgment. As a result, if factors change angseselifferent assumptions,
our stock-based compensation expense could be materifdisedifin the future. Sedote 11 “Stockholders’ Equity” in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.

Long-lived assets, including finite lived purchased intanigilassets

Long-lived assets, including intangible assets other gomdwill are amortized over their useful lives, unlasse lives are determined
to be indefinite. Intangible assets are carried dtlees accumulated amortization. We perform an impaittest whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying vakigch assets may not be recoverable. Examples ofesecits or circumstances
include significant underperformance relative to histror projected future operating results, significaaingfes in the manner of use of the
acquired assets or the strategy for its business, sigmifnegative industry or economic trends, or a sigmifidacline in our stock price for a
sustained period. Impairments are recognized based différence between the fair value of the asset emchrrying value, and fair value
is generally measured based on discounted cash flow anaiMsasagement decided to no longer invest in an internailgldped software
tool for business process management resulting in ahiagsgrment charge of $1.7 million which was recorded in geraand administrative
expense in the fourth quarter of 2008. No intangible asgatiiment was recorded for the periods presented.

Deferred Tax Valuation Allowance

We consider all available evidence, both positiveraeghtive including historical levels of income, expectatiand risks associated
with estimates of future taxable income and ongoing priugied feasible tax planning strategies in assessingetitefar a valuation
allowance. In the fourth quarter of 2008, with the excepifarertain capital loss and foreign net operating t@ssyforwards, we determined
that it was more likely than not the deferred tax asseuld be realized. Accordingly, we released the #dixation allowance on most of the
deferred tax assets and recorded an income tax ben®@t @ million for the year ended December 31, 2008.

As of December 31, 2009, we believed that the amouthefefred tax assets recorded on our balance sheet womdtal be
realized. However, should there be a change in outyaiilrecover our deferred tax assets, our tax provisamd increase in the period in
which we determine that it is more likely than not thatcamnot recover our deferred tax assets.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

SeeNote 1“ Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” in the Notes to Cateeld Financial Statements Item 8for a full
description of recent accounting pronouncements, inclutie@xpected dates of adoption and estimated effectsults of operations and
financial condition, which is incorporated herein.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

In the normal course of business, we are exposed tgffocarrency exchange rate and interest rate risks that iop&ct our financial
position and results of operations.

Interest Rate Risk

Changes in interest rates could impact our anticipatetest income on our cash equivalents and investmeniarketable
securities. Our cash equivalents and investments dibeed-rate, short-term securities. Fixed-rate seegrinhay have their fair market value
adversely impacted due to a rise in interest ratesasadesult, our future investment income may falttsbf expectations due to changes in
interest rates or we may suffer losses in prindffalced to sell securities which have declined in maviedue due to changes in interest
rates. As of December 31, 2009, we had approximately $2di0miilvested in available-for-sale marketable secwiti@n immediate 10%
increase in interest rates would not have a matefiarae impact on our future operating results and cash flows.

We do not have interest bearing liabilities as ofddelser 31, 2009 and therefore, we are not subject tofrmksimmediate interest rate
decreases.

Currency Rate Risk

We operate in North America, Europe, Asia-Pacific,t&€6dca and Japan. As a result of our international bissatwvities, our
financial results could be affected by factors such asggsaim foreign currency exchange rates or economic conslith foreign markets, and
there is no assurance that exchange rate fluctuatiohsoivtharm our business in the future. We sell our prisdadhe local currency for the
respective countries. This provides some natural hedgoaybe most of the subsidiaries’ operating expenses are ider@din their local
currencies as discussed further below. Regardlesssafdhiral hedging, our results of operations may be advénseheted by the exchange
rate fluctuation. Although we will continue to monitasr exposure to currency fluctuations, and, where appteprnay use financial
hedging techniques in the future to minimize the effect oktflestuations, we are not currently engaged in any fiahhedging transactions.
The impact of an aggregate decline of 10% in foreign cuyrexchange rates relative to the U.S. dollar on owltsesf operations and
financial position could be material.

Prior to January 1, 2007, the functional currency of \agd our subsidiaries was the U.S. dollar, and accordigaiys and losses
resulting from the remeasurement of monetary asedtfiabilities denominated in Euros, Costa Rican Coloamrd,other currencies were
reflected in other income (expense). During the firstiquaf 2007, we analyzed the various economic factors ahtemational
subsidiaries and determined that there had been a sighifltamge in facts and circumstances to warrant a change fumtttional currency
for some of our European subsidiaries from the U.S. diilthe local currency. Effective January 1, 2007 aitjgstment from translating
certain European subsidiaries’ financial statements fiee local currency into the U.S. dollar was recomed separate component of
accumulated other comprehensive income, net in thirsitaler’s equity section of our Consolidated Balance Shee
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ITEM 8. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
Quarterly Results of Operations

Three Months Ended

2009 2008
31-Dec 30-Sep 30-Jun 31-Mar 31-Dec 30-Sep 30-Jun 31-Mar
(in thousands, except per share data)
(unaudited)
Net revenues $ 86,61¢ $ 79,26¢ $ 76,31¢ $ 70,13 $ 74,128 $ 75,17C $ 79,902 $ 74,776
Gross profit(3) 63,806 59,001 57,978 52,707 53,892 56,407 59,659 55,168
Profit (loss) from operations(1)(3) 14,64¢ (60,199 6,253 5,284 1,32% 5,691 3,872 4,626
Net profit (loss)(1)(2)(3) $ 11,492 $ (49949 $ 4545 $ 2,636 $ 65496 $ 5,157 $ 4,030 $ 5,304
Net profit per share:
Basic $ 015 % 072 $ 007%$ 004% 099 3% 008% 006 9% 0.08
Diluted $ 01t $ (0729 $ 007 $ 004 $ 09 $ 008 $ 0.06 $ 0.07
Shares used in computing net profit per
share:
Basic 74,48 69,52¢ 66,28¢ 65,98: 66,44( 67,36 68,581 69,053
Diluted 76,831 69,528 67,373 66,447 66,816 68,704 69,916 70,860

(1) March 2009 and June 2009 profit from operations and net profitded restructuring charges of $0.9 million and $0.4anill
respectively. September and December 2008 profit fromabpes and net profit included $2.2 million and $4.0 wrillirespectively,
for restructuring charges. SHete 19 “Restructurings” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statesh@madditional information.

(2) December 2008 net profit included a $64.6 million benefihtome taxes as a result of the release of a taratiah allowance on most
of the deferred tax assets. $&mte 14 “Income Taxes” in the Notes to Consolidated Financete8tentdor additional information.

(3) Gross profit for the quarters ended September 30, 2009 ecehiber 31, 2009 included the amortization of prepaid royaftis.9
million and $4.3 million, respectively, related to thigation settlement with Ormco. In addition, loss froperations and net loss
included a litigation settlement charge of $69.7 milliohjolr was recorded in the third quarter of 2009. $a&te 7 “Ormco Litigation
Settlement” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statenfentsdditional information.
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REPORT OF MANAGEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINA NCIAL REPORTING

Management of Align is responsible for establishing aathtaining adequate internal control over financial reépgras defined in
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of AB@4s internal control over financial reporting issigned to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilitgaricial reporting and the preparation of financiatestnents for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting princifitésrnal control over financial reporting includesg@golicies and procedures that:

* pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasodatdé, accurately and fairly reflect the transaxdiand dispositions of the
assets of the company;,

»  provide reasonable assurance that transactions areledcas necessary to permit preparation of finaneitdrsents in
accordance with generally accepted accounting princighesthat receipts and expenditures of the company are betteganky
in accordance with authorizations of management and aliseat the company; and

» provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention oytifetction of unauthorized acquisition, use or dispositioheo
company’s assets that could have a material effediefintancial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal contra@rdiinancial reporting may not prevent or detect misstants. In addition,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to fupagods are subject to the risk that controls mayredoadequate because of changes
in conditions and that the degree of compliance witlptilieies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of Align’s inteonélol over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009naking this
assessment, management used the criteria set fortteindl Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Cormendf Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

Based on its assessment and those criteria, manageaserincluded that, as of December 31, 2009, Align’s iriteomérol over
financial reporting was effective to provide reasonaisigurance regarding the reliability of financial repgrand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with gigreceépted accounting principles.

The Company’s internal control over financial reportisgphDecember 31, 2009 has been audited by Pricewaterhouseblopean
independent registered public accounting firm, as statébinreport which is included herein, which expressemaunalified opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control oveariicial reporting as of December 31, 2009.

/s] THOMAS M. PRESCOTT

Thomas M. Prescott
President and Chief Executive Officer

February 26, 2010

/s/ KENNETHB. AROLA

Kenneth B. Arola
Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer

February 26, 2010
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of AlignArestogy, Inc. and subsidiaries:

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statementsdig the index appearing under Item 15 (a)(1) preseny,fairlll material
respects, the financial position of Align Technology. land its subsidiaries at December 31, 2009 and 2008h@anesults of their operations
and their cash flows for each of the three years ip#ned ended December 31, 2009 in conformity with accountingiples generally
accepted in the United States of America. In additionuiropinion, the financial statement schedule listedennidex appearing under
Item 15 (a)(2) presents fairly, in all material respgtite information set forth therein when read in wodiion with the related consolidated
financial statements. Also in our opinion, the Compam@yntained, in all material respects, effective intecoalrol over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2009, based on criteria establishettmnal Control—Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO)e Chmpany’s management is responsible for these falastatements and financial
statement schedule, for maintaining effective interoatrol over financial reporting and for its assessnoéttte effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting, included in the acconygam Report of Management on Internal Control over Finafgglorting. Our
responsibility is to express opinions on these finarst&ikments, on the financial statement schedule, am @ompany’s internal control
over financial reporting based on our integrated audits. Weuabted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Rditipany
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standegusdre that we plan and perform the audits to obta@isamable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of mat@isstatement and whether effective internal cordvel financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our audits ofitrencial statements included examining, on a test basdgence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements, assessiagtbenting principles used and significant estimates imadenagement, and
evaluating the overall financial statement presentat©ur audit of internal control over financial repagtincluded obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial repaytiassessing the risk that a material weakness existsesting and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control barsélte assessed risk. Our audits also included perfosutigother procedures as
we considered necessary in the circumstances. Wedhat our audits provide a reasonable basis for ouroogin

A company’s internal control over financial reportin@iprocess designed to provide reasonable assurancdimggae reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financialesteents for external purposes in accordance with gena@pted accounting
principles. A company'’s internal control over financigporting includes those policies and procedures thpé(iin to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately ang faflect the transactions and dispositions of thetassf the company; (ii) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recordedessary to permit preparation of financial statesni@ accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and awpesdf the company are being made only in accordaiteeauthorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (iii) prae@sonable assurance regarding prevention or timedgtaet of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assatxtiuld have a material effect on the financiakstents.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal contra@rdiinancial reporting may not prevent or detect misstents. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods argsuto the risk that controls may become inadequateuisecof changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policiesrocedures may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
San Jose, CA
February 26, 2010
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ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except per share data)

Net revenues:
Invisalign
Non-case

Total net revenues

Cost of revenues:
Invisalign
Non-case

Total cost of revenues
Gross profit

Operating expenses:
Sales and marketing
General and administrative
Research and development
Patients First Program and settlement costs
Litigation settlement costs
Restructurings

Total operating expenses

Profit (loss) from operations
Interest income

Interest expense

Other expense

Net profit (loss) before provision for income taxes
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes

Net profit (loss)

Net profit (loss) per share:
Basic

Diluted

Shares used in computing net profit (loss) per share:

Basic

Diluted

Years Ended December 31,

2009

$ 295,215
17,11¢

312,333

69,094

69,094

2008

$ 285,798
18,17¢

303,976

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thesoligated financial statements.
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2007

$ 267,869
16,46:

284,332

98,231
53,280
25,721
(1,796

175,44.

33,855
4,195
(342)
(758)

36,950
1,22¢

$ 35,724

»
o
a1
w

@
o
a1
(@]

67,17¢

71,444
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ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except per share data)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Marketable securities, short-term
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful aots of $1,033 and $612, respectivel
Inventories, net
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Goodwill
Intangible assets, net
Deferred tax asset
Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS'’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Deferred revenues

Total current liabilities
Other long-term liabilities

Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 8 and 10)
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value (5,000 shares authaniaee;issued)
Common stock, $0.0001 par value (200,000 shares authorizé88&hd 65,633 shares
issued, respectively; 74,568 and 65,633 shares outstanding{iredpec
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net
Accumulated deficit

Total stockholders’ equity

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

December 31,

2009

$ 166,48
19,978
54,53

2,046
18,251

261,299
24,971
478
4,98¢
61,535
1,96¢

$ 355,240

$ 6,122
42,822
32,29¢

81,243

82,204

7
525,07:

455
(252,499

273,036
$ 355,24(

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thesoligdated financial statements.
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2008

$ 87,10(¢
23,066
52,36%
1,965
13,414

177,907
26,97¢
478
7,78¢
61,696
4,49¢

$ 279,341

$ 5,58(
38,282
16,71(C

60,572

60,801

7
439,49:

269
(221,23()

218,540
$ 279,34
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ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007

Balances at December 31, 2006

Net profit

Net change in cumulative translation adjustment

Net change in unrealized loss from available-fde sa
securities

Comprehensive net income

Issuance of common stock relating to employee stock
purchase plan

Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stodk gt

Issuance of common stock in settlement of resttisteck
units, net of shares withheld for employees’ taxes

Excess tax benefit from share based payment amaergs

Stock based compensation

Balances at December 31, 2007

Net profit

Net change in unrealized gain from available-foe sa
securities

Net change in cumulative translation adjustment

Comprehensive net income

Issuance of common stock relating to employee stock
purchase plan

Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stodkmopt

Issuance of common stock in settlement of resttisteck
units, net of shares withheld for employees’ taxes

Common stock repurchased

Excess tax benefit from share based payment amaergs

Stock based compensation

Acceleration of stock based compensation

Balances at December 31, 2008

Net loss

Net change in unrealized gain from available-foe sa
securities

Net change in cumulative translation adjustment

Comprehensive net loss

Issuance of common stock relating to employee stock
purchase plan

Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stodk gt

Issuance of common stock in settlement of resttisteck
units, net of shares withheld for employees’ taxes

Shares issued for litigation settlement

Excess tax provision from share based payment
arrangements

Stock based compensation

Balances at December 31, 2009

(in thousands)

Accumulated

Additional
Paid in Comprehensive Accumulated
Common Stock Capital Income (Loss) Deficit Total
Amoun
Shares

64,85¢ $ 6 408,921 3 $ (325,379 $ 83,55¢€
35,724 35,724
— — — 703 — 703
— — — (49) — (49)
36,37¢
580 — 3,434 — — 3,434
3,048 1 25,55¢ — — 25,55¢
155 — (433) — — (433)
— — 449 — — 449
— — 12,211 — — 12,211
68,642 7 450,14( 657 (289,650) 161,15¢
79,987 79,987
— — 33 — 33
— — (421) — (421)
79,59¢
523 4,457 — — 4,457
912 6,04¢ — — 6,04¢
216 (460) — — (460)
(4,66C) (38,579) (11,567) (50,13¢)
— 144 — — 144
— 17,057 — — 17,057
— 678 — — 678
65,63 7 439,49¢ 269 (221,230) 218,54(
— — — (31,269 (31,269
— — 18 — 18
— 168 — 168
(31,087)
545 3,676 — — 3,676
586 4,421 — — 4,421
218 (487) — — (487)
7,58€ 63,51¢ — — 63,51€
— (637) — — (637)
— 15,08¢ — — 15,08¢
74,568 $ 7 525,073 455 $ (252,499 $ 273,036

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thesoligdated financial statements.
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ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Years Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net profit (loss) $ (31,269 $ 79,987 $ 35,724
Adjustments to reconcile net profit (loss) to net casbvided by operating
activities:
Deferred taxes (2,612 (64,608 —
Depreciation and amortization 10,20¢ 9,964 10,17¢
Stock-based compensation 15,088 17,057 12,211
Acceleration of stock-based compensation — 678 —
Amortization of intangibles 2,800 2,827 3,209
Litigation settlement costs and amortization of prépayalties 62,68¢ — —
Provision for doubtful accounts 708 71 46
Loss on retirement and disposal of fixed assets 37 513 24
Loss on impairment of fixed assets — 1,712 —
Excess tax provision for (benefit from) share-basednesy arrangements 637 (144) (449)
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of acquisiticceff
Accounts receivable (2,58¢) (7,957 (10,707)
Inventories (85) 943 186
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 306 276 (1,480
Accounts payable (614) (2,65)) 2,738
Accrued and other long-term liabilities 3,33€ (3,487) (295)
Deferred revenues 15,527 4,559 1,390
Net cash provided by operating activities 74,16¢ 39,74¢ 52,771
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property and equipment (7,192 (14,339 (7,429
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment — 189 —
Restricted cash — 21 77
Purchase of marketable securities (42,923 (75,050 (64,689
Maturities of marketable securities 48,89: 87,92¢ 34,791
Other assets (334 193 462
Net cash used in investing activities (1,55€) (1,05%) (36,779
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 8,097 10,50¢ 28,99:
Payments on line of credit — — (11,500
Payments on short-term obligations (136) (407)
Repurchases of common stock — (50,138 —
Excess tax provision for (benefit from) share-basednesy arrangements (637) 144 449
Employees’ taxes paid upon the vesting of restricted stait& u (487) (460 (433
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 6,837 (40,355 17,50¢
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and casfaleqts (59) (355 499
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 79,381 (2,019 34,00¢
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 87,100 89,119 55,113
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 166,48: $ 87,10( $ 89,11¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thesolidated financial statements.
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ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Business Description

Align Technology, Inc. (“Align” or the “Company”) waséorporated in April 1997 and designs, manufactures and mahkets
Invisalign system, a proprietary method for treatirjanclusion, or the misalignment of teeth. Invisalogrrects malocclusion using a series
of clear, nearly invisible, removable appliances thatlgenove teeth to a desired final position.

Basis of presentation and preparation

The consolidated financial statements include the atsafithe Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries afterination of
intercompany transactions and balances. Revenueandf revenues in prior period amounts have beensssidal to conform with the
current period presentation. These reclassificatiods\bampact on previously reported gross profit or fitelnmosition.

In connection with the preparation of the consolidateaitial statements, the Company evaluated events subségtiee balance
sheet date of December 31, 2009 through the financiahstat issuance date and determined that all material cteomsahave been recorded
and disclosed properly.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity\&@ccounting principles generally accepted in the Uriittades of America
requires the Company’'s management to make estimatesamhptions that affect the amounts reported in theldated financial
statements and accompanying notes. Actual results cifigidrdaterially from those estimates.

Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying amounts of the Company’s cash and cash é&tisvjsaccounts receivable, accounts payable andathent liabilities
approximate the fair value.

Cash equivalents and marketable securities

Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid instrumentzipased with an original maturity of three months or 183 Company invests
primarily in money market funds, commercial paper, and dritates government securities, accordingly, thesetmeess are subject to
minimal credit and market risks.

Marketable securities are classified as availablesébe-and are carried at fair value. Marketable séesigtassified as current assets
have maturities of less than one year. Unrealized gailosses on such securities are included in accumuldtedeammprehensive income
(loss) in stockholders’ equity. Realized gains anddsgrom maturities of all such securities are repantea@rnings and computed using the
specific identification cost method. Realized gainksses and charges for other-than-temporary declinedue \if any, on
available-for-sale securities are reported in othesrimee (expense) as incurred. The Company periodicadljiates these investments for
other-than-temporary impairment.

The Company measures its cash equivalents and markstghiéties at fair value. Fair value is the price tinauld be received from
selling an asset or paid to transfer a liability iroesherly transaction between market participants attb@surement date. The fair value
hierarchy prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniquesius measure fair value. This hierarchy requires aty@atiaximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservablesimingn measuring fair value.
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ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continue d)

Foreign currency

The Company analyzes the functional currency for eéith mternational subsidiaries on an annual basimare often if necessary, to
determine if a significant change in facts and circansts indicate that the primary economic currensychanged. During the first quarter
of 2007, the Company analyzed the various economic faat@ssinternational subsidiaries and determined that sufrite European
subsidiaries had established a sufficient history of indepemdefitability and cash collections to warrant a chaingbe functional currency
from the U.S. dollar to the local currency. Effeetdanuary 1, 2007, the adjustment from translating netaiopean subsidiaries’ financial
statements from the local currency to the U.S. delts recorded as a separate component of accumulatedatiyehensive income (loss),
net in the stockholders’ equity section of the Consatidi@alance Sheets. This foreign currency translatiprsment reflects the translation
of the balance sheet at period end exchange rates, anddhee statement at an average exchange rate in effact doei period. As of
December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company had $0.5 million aBdnfilon, respectively, in accumulated other comprelverniacome, net
related to the translation of its foreign subsidiarfesincial statements. Sélte 16 “Comprehensive Income (Los&)t additional
disclosures.

Align’s other international entities operate in a U.Slatduinctional currency environment, and therefore faheign currency assets
and liabilities are remeasured into the U.S. dollauatent exchange rates except for non-monetary asgetimhilities which are remeasured
at historical exchange rates. Revenues and expensesarallygemeasured at an average exchange rate in effeqy dach period. Gains
or losses from foreign currency remeasurement ahedad in other income (expense). Prior to January 1, 2003f, Align’s subsidiaries
used the U.S. dollar as its functional currency, and dotglly, gains and losses resulting from remeasuremers included in other income
(expense).

For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, the Cangbaehgd in other income (expense) a gain of $0.2 milkdoss
of $0.4 million and a loss of $0.1 million, respectively.

Certain risks and uncertainties

The Company’s operating results depend to a significdanton the Company’s ability to market and developritglucts. The life
cycles of the Company’s products are difficult to esterthte in part to the effect of future product enhancenasrt£ompetition. The
inability of the Company to successfully develop and ntat&@roducts as a result of competition or otherofactvould have a material
adverse effect on the Company’s business, finanamditton and results of operations.

Financial instruments which potentially expose the Comparoncentrations of credit risk consist primaafycash equivalents,
marketable securities and accounts receivable. The Ggmpaests excess cash primarily in money market fundsagér financial
institutions, commercial paper and notes and governmemttses. If the carrying value of the Company’s inwesnts exceeds the fair value,
and the decline in fair value is deemed to be other-thiapdrary, the Company will be required to write dowa\thlue of its investments,
which could materially harm the Company’s results ofapens and financial condition. Moreover, the perfange of certain securities in
the Company’s investment portfolio correlates withdhedit condition of the U.S. financial sector. Witke turrent unstable credit
environment, the Company might incur significantizeal, unrealized or impairment losses associated withetinvestments. The Company
provides credit to customers in the normal course of basinCollateral is not required for accounts recéydiot ongoing evaluations of
customers’ credit worthiness are performed. The Compemiytains reserves for potential credit losses anful lssses have been within
management’s expectations. No individual customer accounmtd®% or more of the Company’s accounts receivatileeember 31, 2009
and 2008, or net revenues in 2009, 2008 and 2007.
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ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continue d)

In the United States of America, the Food and Drug Adstriiion (“FDA”) regulates the design, manufacture, ihigtion, preclinical
and clinical study, clearance and approval of medicdtedsyv Products developed by the Company may require apparvelearances from
the FDA or other international regulatory agencies gda@ommercialized sales. There can be no assuraacthe Company's products will
receive any of the required approvals or clearandahe Company was denied approval or clearance orapmoval was delayed, it may
have a material adverse impact on the Company.

The Company has manufacturing operations located ouksdénited States of America. The Company curreetigs on its
manufacturing facilities in Costa Rica to prepare digieatment plans using a sophisticated, internally dpedlcomputer-modeling
program. In addition, the Company manufacturers its elégners at its facility in Juarez, Mexico. The Guamy'’s reliance on international
operations exposes it to related risks and uncertgjmtieluding difficulties in staffing and managing imational operations, including
difficulties in hiring and retaining qualified personnel; ¢oliing production volume and quality of manufacture; polltisacial and
economic instability, particularly as a result of emsed levels of violence in Juarez, Mexico; interrugtamd limitations in
telecommunication services; product and material tratespmn delays or disruption; trade restrictions and ghann tariffs; import and
export license requirements and restrictions; fluctuatiorforeign currency exchange rates; and potentiakseltex consequences. If any of
these risks materialize, the Company’s internatiomahufacturing operations, as well as its operatingtssuhy be harmed.

The Company purchases certain inventory from sole sugplfaditionally, the Company relies on a limited numbenafware
manufacturers. The inability of any supplier or manufigstto fulfill supply requirements of the Company coulderiatly and adversely
impact future operating results.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or marki, cost computed on a first-in, first-out basis.

Property, equipment, long-lived assets, and finite purchasedrigible assets

Property and equipment are stated at historical castlesimulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciatidramortization are
computed using the straight-line method over the estuinageful lives of the assets. Upon sale or retirgrttemasset’s cost and related
accumulated depreciation are removed from the general laddeany related gains or losses are reflected i@dhsolidated Statements of
Operations. Maintenance and repairs are expensed asthcurr

Other intangible assets primarily consist of intareydbsets purchased as part of the OrthoClear Agreefhese assets are amortized
using the straight-line method over their estimatedulisigés of three to five years, reflecting the perioavimich the economic benefits of the
assets are expected to be realized.

The Company evaluates long-lived assets (including intenggsets) for impairment whenever events or changssumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of a long-lived ass®f not be recoverable. An asset is considered imgéitedarrying amount exceeds
the future net cash flows the asset is expected to gendfan asset is considered to be impaired, thpaimment to be recognized is
calculated as the amount by which the carrying amaoiutiie asset exceeds its fair market value which imastd based on projected
discounted future net cash flows. There were no imggitsfor long-lived and intangible assets as of Deceihe2009.

Development costs for internal use software

Costs relating to internal use software are accountad mcordance with the provisions of accounting ferdbsts of computer
software developed or obtained for internal use. As oeBder 31, 2009 and 2008,
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ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continue d)

capitalized internal use software at cost was $7.0aniind $5.3 million, respectively. The associated aatated amortization was
$5.3 million and $4.7 million as of December 31, 2009 and 2@8®ectively. Capitalized software costs are amortized the estimated
useful lives of three years.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase priceopardhe fair value of tangible and identifiable intdagnet assets acquired in
business combinations. Goodwill is reviewed annualtiénfourth quarter and whenever events or circumstaooes which indicate that
goodwill might be impaired. The Company completeauisual evaluation of goodwill during the fourth quarte2@®9 and determined that
there was no impairment.

Product Warranty

The Company warrants its products against material tdaf@dtil the Invisalign cases are completed. The Cognpgecrues for product
warranty in cost of revenues upon shipment of products. Rreduanty costs are primarily based on historical egpee as to product
failures as well as current information on repair £o&ttual warranty costs could differ materially frdme testimated amounts. The Company
regularly reviews the accrued balances and updatesiihlesees based on historical warranty cost trendsuafaiarranty costs incurred
have not materially differed from those accrued.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accdontsstimated losses resulting from the inability & @ompany’'s customers
to make payments. The Company periodically reviewsthkbswances, including an analysis of the customesshpat history and
information regarding the customers’ creditworthine&stual write-offs have not been materially differedrfr the estimated allowance.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when persuasive evideaceofingement exists, delivery has occurred, the griced or
determinable, and collectability is reasonably assuRslienues are recognized from product sales, net of discanh rebates. Service
revenues related to the training of dental profestsomad staff on the Invisalign treatment process a@ ded when the services are
completed.

Align enters into arrangements that involve multiple fupnaduct deliverables. Included in the price of Invisakgill, Invisalign Teen
and Invisalign Assist, the Company offers case referggwhich is a finishing tool used to adjust a patientthteethe desired final
position. Case refinement may be elected by the demtglgsional at any time during treatment howeverdeiserally ordered in the last
stages of orthodontic treatment. The Company uses vepdoific objective evidence of fair value to allocateereie to the case refinement
deliverable and recognizes the residual revenue upon shiprithe Company defers the fair value of case mafmé upon shipment based on
a breakage factor, which is determined by sufficient histbexperience of case refinement usage. Actual usaggeaald differ from the
historical breakage factor requiring future adjustmemtgvenue.

Revenues are deferred for certain products that includedsti@gjeery. Depending on the product, revenues are recagjbased on
usage, case completion, ratably over a subscription periodon shipment of the final staged shipment. InvisalggnTwhich includes up to
six replacement aligners, is delivered in a single shigraxcept for the replacement aligners. Curreritlyyévenue for Invisalign Teen is
recognized upon shipment except for the six replacementsdigor which the fair market value is 100 percent dedesiral recognized as
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ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continue d)

the replacement aligners are shipped or when the €asenpleted. Although Invisalign Teen has been availsibce July 2008, the
Company does not have sufficient evidence to support a te@gdess than 100 percent for the six replacement aigi¢his time, however,
the Company is continually gathering and evaluating atofical experience. If and when Align gathers sufficleatorical experience to
support a usage rate for the six replacement alignerthlErs4.00 percent, Align would adjust the deferred revenue lealartbe estimated
usage rate and prospectively apply this rate to futuredhigh Teen shipments. The Vivera retainer includesdoipments per year, and
revenue is deferred upon the first shipment and recoga&edch shipment occurs. For Invisalign Assist, whemptbgress tracking feature is
selected, aligners are shipped to the dental professaienkvery nine stages. For these cases, revedateised upon the first staged
shipment and will be recognized upon shipment of the fiaglest shipment.

The Company estimates and records a provision for amotiastimated losses on sales, if any, in the peridad saies
occur. Provisions for discounts and rebates to cus®arerprovided for in the same period that the related predles are recorded based
upon historical discounts and rebates.

Shipping and Handling Costs

Shipping and handling charges to customers are included inveaues, and the associated costs incurred are recordest of ¢
revenues.

Research and development
Research and development costs are expensed as incurred.

Advertising costs

The cost of advertising and media is expensed as incuFer the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 200 1stlyexsts
totaled $18.1 million, $18.3 million, and $15.9 million, pestively.

Income taxes

The Company estimates income taxes based on the vanimasctions where business is conducted. Signifigadgment is required in
determining the income tax provision. Deferred taxtasmed liabilities are recognized for differing treatmsasf certain items for tax and
accounting purposes. These differences result in défeaxeassets and liabilities. The Company must thegsaghe likelihood that its
deferred tax assets will be realized. To the extenCibmpany believes that realization is not likelyyilt establish a valuation allowance.

The Company accounts for the impact of an uncertaioniie tax position on the income tax return by recognithiadargest amount
that is more-likely-than-not to be sustained upon audibbyelevant taxing authority under the guidance of FinaAceounting Standard
Board (“FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 780. Uncertain income tax position will not be recogaiet has less than a
50% likelihood of being sustained.

Stock-based compensation

The Company recognizes stock-based compensation castlyjathose shares ultimately expected to vest on aistrline basis over the
requisite service period of the award, net of an estuoifatéeiture rate. The Company estimates the falne of stock options using a
Black-Scholes valuation model, which requires the imbphighly subjective assumptions, including the optioxjseeted term and stock price
volatility. In
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ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continue d)

addition, judgment is also required in estimating the nurabstock-based awards that are expected to be forfditedeitures are estimated
based on historical experience at the time of grantewnsed, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actugitiorés differ from those
estimates. The assumptions used in calculating theahaie wf share-based payment awards represent managebeshstimates, but these
estimates involve inherent uncertainties and the applicafimanagement’s judgment. As a result, if factoesigle and the Company uses
different assumptions, its stock-based compensation expeulsebe materially different in the future. 9éate 11 “Stockholders’ Equity”

for additional information

Comprehensive income (loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) includes all changes inyeduiiing a period from non-owner sources. Comprehetirsogene (loss),
including unrealized gains and losses on available-forsemigrities and foreign currency translation adjustmarngs,eported net of their
related tax effect.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In April 2009, the FASB issued an update to ASC 820, “Detengiftair Value When the Volume and Level of Activity for theset or
Liability Have Significantly Decreased and Identifying fisactions That Are Not Orderly”, which provides guidance&t@rmining fair
value when there is no active market or where the fmjguts being used represent distressed sales. This up&8€ 820 was effective for
interim and annual periods ending after June 15, 2009 anddeased by the Company in the second quarter of 2009. Theaddjatinot
have a material impact on the Company’s consolidateaidial statements.

In April 2009, the FASB issued ASC 320, “Recognition andétriegion of Other-Than-Temporary Impairments”, which effective
for the Company for the quarterly period beginning Apr2@09. ASC 320 amends existing guidance for determining whaathather than
temporary impairment of debt securities has occurredornother changes, the FASB replaced the existing regeitethat an entity’s
management assert it has both the intent and abilitgltban impaired security until recovery with a requiremieat thanagement assert (a) it
does not have the intent to sell the security, and {®)nore likely than not it will not have to sdflet security before recovery of its cost
basis. The adoption of this pronouncement did not hawvaterial effect on the Company’s consolidated finarstetiements.

In April 2009, the FASB issued ASC 828nterim Disclosures about Fair Value of Financiadtilmments.” This pronouncement
requires disclosures about the fair value of financithiments for interim reporting periods of publicly tradethpanies as well as in annual
financial statements and also requires those disclsuimmarized financial information at interim repgtperiods. The disclosure
requirements of ASC 825 were effective for interim amoual reporting periods ending after June 15, 2009. Thep&uwyrhas provided the
required disclosures iNote 2.

In April 2009, the FASB issued ASC 805, “Accounting for Ass&cquired and Liabilities Assumed in a Business Comiainahat
Arise from Contingencies.” ASC 805 requires that assetsiged and liabilities assumed in a business combindtairatise from
contingencies be recognized at fair value if fair valae be reasonably estimated. If fair value of suctssetar liability cannot be
reasonably estimated, the asset or liability would gglydve recognized in accordance with ASC 450Accounting for Contingencies”, and
FASB Interpretation No. 14, Reasonable Estimation of the Amount of a Loss.” Phasmiouncement is effective for assets or liabgitarising
from contingencies in business combinations for whiehaicquisition date is on or after the beginning ofitseannual reporting period
beginning on or after December 15, 2008. The adoption of #&Qlid not have a material effect on the Company'saahated financial
statements.
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In May 2009, the FASB issued ASC 855, “Subsequent Events”. 855@stablishes general standards of accounting for arosdiise
of events that occur after the balance sheet date mreldafancial statements are issued or are availatile itssued. ASC 855, which
includes a new required disclosure of the date through v@imi@ntity has evaluated subsequent events, was effémtiveerim or annual
periods ending after June 15, 2009. The Company adopted tidarstas of June 30, 2009; however, the adoption of ASC 855tiatpact
to the Company'’s consolidated financial statements.

In June 2009, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (})/&2809-16, “Transfers and Servicing (ASC 860): Accounting for
Transfers of Financial Assets,” which amends prevguidance to remove the concept of a qualifying speciadgse entity and its exemption
from consolidation in the transferor’s financial stagmts. This new standard also establishes conglitomrreporting a transfer of a portion of
a financial asset as a sale, modifies the finansisgtaderecognition criteria, revises how interestsyatady the transferor in a sale of
financial assets are initially measured, removes theagteed mortgage securitization recharacterization gioms, and requires additional
disclosures. The Company will adopt this pronouncemedannary 1, 2010 and expects that there will be no significgact on its
consolidated financial statements.

In June 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2009-17, Consolidation (ASC'Biplovements to Financial Reporting by Enterprise®ived
with Variable Interest Entities,” which eliminatdsetquantitative approach previously required for determiniagptimary beneficiary of a
variable interest entity and requires ongoing qualitateassessments of whether an enterprise is thargrimneficiary of a variable interest
entity. This new standard also requires additional disassalbout an enterprise’s involvement in variable istaxetities. The Company will
adopt this pronouncement on January 1, 2010 and expectisateawill be no significant impact on its consolidatedficial statements.

In June 2009, the FASB issued ASC 105, “The FASB Accoui@tagdards Codification and the Hierarchy of Generatigefdted
Accounting Principles”. ASC 105 establishes the FASB Antiag Standards Codification (“Codification”), as the &gpurce of
authoritative accounting and reporting standards in thitet) States for all non-government entities, withagkeeption of the Securities and
Exchange Commission and its staff. It does not inclagenaw guidance or interpretations of US GAAP, butetyeeliminates the existing
hierarchy and codifies the previously issued standardigr@omouncements into specific topic areas. The Cotlditavas adopted on July 1,
2009 for the Company’s consolidated financial statementféyear ended December 31, 2009.

In September 2009, FASB amended the ASC as summarizedJr2@-13, “Revenue Recognition (ASC 605): Multiple-Deliverable
Revenue Arrangements.” Guidance in ASC 605-25 on revenue arrenigewith multiple deliverables has been amended to eeguientity
to allocate revenue to deliverables in an arrangemerg itsibest estimate of selling prices if the vendimes not have vendor-specific
objective evidence or third-party evidence of sellinggsj and to eliminate the use of the residual methddeguire the entity to allocate
revenue using the relative selling price method. ridwe guidance also requires expanded quantitative and qualitisgsiosures about
revenue from arrangements with multiple deliverabldse dpdate is effective for fiscal years beginning on ter dtine 15, 2010, with early
adoption permitted. Adoption may either be on a prospebtises for new revenue arrangements entered intcsaftgtion of the update, or
by retrospective application. The Company is assedsengdtential impact of the update on its consolidatethfiral statements and is
planning to adopt the update effective January 1, 2011.

In January 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-06, “Fair Value Measatsrand Disclosures (ASC 820): Improving Disclosures about
Fair Value Measurements.” This update will require (19ratity to disclose separately the amounts of signifitansfers in and out of
Levels 1 and 2 fair value measurements and to descebredisons for the transfers; and (2) information aparghases, sales, issuances and
settlements to be
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presented separately (i.e. present the activity omssdrasis rather than net) in the reconciliation fonvelue measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3 inputs). This guidance aar#ixisting disclosure requirements for the level of digggdion used for classes
of assets and liabilities measured at fair value andresndisclosures about the valuation techniques and inpedsasneasure fair value for
both recurring and nonrecurring fair value measurements ueired 2 and Level 3 inputs. The new disclosures amfichtions of existing
disclosure are effective for fiscal years beginning december 15, 2009, except for the disclosure requiremerneddited to the purchases,
sales, issuances and settlements in the rollforwandtgof Level 3 fair value measurements. Thoseldmare requirements are effective for
fiscal years ending after December 31, 2010. The Compasiyl iassessing the impact on this guidance and dod®lieve the adoption of
this guidance will have a material impact to its coidsdéd financial statements.

Management does not believe that other recent accgymtimouncements issued by the FASB (including its Emegrigsues Task
Force), the American Institute of Certified Public Agatants or the SEC have a material impact on the Coyiggaresent or future
consolidated financial statements.

Note 2. Marketable Securities and Fair Value Measuremest
The Company has the following short-term investmesitsf @ecember 31, 2009 and 2008 (in thousands):

Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
December 31, 2009 Costs Gains Losses Fair Value
U.S. government notes and bonds $ 18,97 $ 6 $ — $ 18,978
Corporate bonds 1,000 — — 1,000
Total $ 19,97: $ 6 $ — $ 19,978

Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
December 31, 2008 Costs Gains Losses Fair Value
U.S. government notes and bonds $ 9,971 $ 25 $ — $ 9,99
Corporate bonds and certificates of deposit 3,774 1 (24) 3,751
Agency bonds and discount notes 8,49¢ 20 — 8,519
Commercial paper 800 — — 800
Total $ 23,044 $ 46 $ (24) $ 23,066

As of December 31, 2009, all short-term investments haaterrity dates of less than one year. For the y@aied December 31, 2009
and 2008, realized losses were immaterial.

The Company had the following long-term investmestefeDecember 31, 2008 (in thousands):

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
December 31, 2008 Costs Gains Losses Fair Value
Agency bonds $ 1,00C $ 1 $ — $ 1,001
Corporate bonds 1,897 — (35) 1,862
Total $ 2,897 $ 1 $ (35) $ 2,863

The long-term marketable securities are included in Gtbsets in the consolidated balance sheets. Asoainileer 31, 2009, the
Company did not hold any long-term marketable securities.
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Fair Value Measurements

The Company measures the fair value of its cash dquigsand marketable securities as the price that wouleceé/ed from selling an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderlypsaction between market participants at the measuatatate. The Company uses the
GAAP fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputvaduation techniques used to measure fair value. This tigraequires an entity to
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize thefuseobservable inputs when measuring fair value. Ateetlevels of inputs that
may be used to measure fair value:

Level 1—Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for iddragsets or liabilities.

The Company’s Level 1 assets consist of U.S. governdamtsecurities and money market funds. The Company thiblbany
Level 1 liabilities as of December 31, 2009.

Level 2—Observable inputs other than quoted prices included in lewelch as quoted prices for similar assets or liggsilib active
markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assetmbilities in markets that are not active; or othmgruts that are observable or can be
corroborated by observable market data for substantiedlfull term of the asset or liability.

The Company’s Level 2 assets consist of corporate boftas.Company did not hold any Level 2 liabilities a®etember 31, 2009.

Level 3—Unobservable inputs to the valuation methodologyahasupported by little or no market activity and thatsignificant to
the measurement of the fair value of the assetsalitities. Level 3 assets and liabilities include thedose fair value measurements are
determined using pricing models, discounted cash flow metbgisl or similar valuation techniques, as well as sigmitiecnanagement
judgment or estimation.

The Company did not hold any Level 3 assets or lidslias of December 31, 2009.

The following table summarizes the Company’s findressets measured at fair value on a recurring basisiecember 31, 2009 (in
thousands):

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets for Significant Other
Balance as of Identical Assets Observable Inputs

Description December 31, 2009 (Level 1) (Level 2)
Cash equivalents:
Money market funds $ 96,266 $ 96,266 $ —
Short-term investments:
U.S. government debt securities 18,978 18,978 —
Corporate bonds 1,00( — 1,000

$ 116,244 $ 115,244 $ 1,000
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Note 3. Balance Sheet Components

Inventories consist of the following (in thousands):

December 31,

2009 2008

Raw materials $ 1,07¢ $ 1,066
Work in process 460 416
Finished goods 507 483

$ 2,046 $ 1,965

Work in process includes costs to produce the Invisaligdyzt. Finished goods primarily represent ancillary pradihet support the
Invisalign system.

Property and equipment consist of the following (in thodsan

Useful Life
(in years) December 31,
2009 2008
Clinical and manufacturing equipment 5 $ 46,62 $ 45,12¢
Computer hardware 3 13,895 13,548
Computer software 3 12,511 10,09z
Furniture and fixtures 5 5,468 5,584
Leasehold improvements Term of the lease 10,04¢ 9,91¢
Construction in progress 6,437 4,075
$ 94,971 $ 88,34:
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (70,009 (61,363
$ 24,971 $ 26,97¢

As of December 31, 2009, construction in progress codgstenarily of costs for capital equipment expected to beegléT service in
the next year. Depreciation and amortization was $10liam $10.0 million, and $10.2 million, for the years edd@ecember 31, 2009,
2008 and 2007, respectively.

Accrued liabilities consist of the following (in thounsts):

December 31,

2009 2008

Accrued payroll and benefits $ 25,847 $ 17,795
Accrued income taxes 2,920 2,492
Accrued sales and marketing expenses 1,954 2,449
Accrued sales rebate 2,610 2,205
Accrued sales tax and value added tax 2,39z 1,823
Accrued warranty 2,376 2,031
Accrued professional fees 516 922
Accrued restructuring — 2,501
Other 4,207 6,064

$ 42,822 $ 38,282
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Warranty accrual as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 cortsikes following activity (in thousands):

Warranty accrual, December 31, 2007 $ 2,03t
Charged to cost of revenues 2,484
Actual warranty expenditures (2,48¢)

Warranty accrual, December 31, 2008 $ 2,031
Charged to cost of revenues 2,92¢
Actual warranty expenditures (2,587

Warranty accrual, December 31, 2009 $ 2,37¢

Note 4. Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company evaluates the recoverability of propertyegimgpoment whenever events or changes in circumstamtieate that the
carrying value of a long-lived asset may not be rectkeralhe Company’s management decided to cease furtlestriment in an internally
developed software tool for business process managersstiing in an asset impairment charge of $1.7 million whichk reaorded in
general and administrative expense in the fourth quarter of Z0@8impairment indicators which management consida@dded the fact
that this internally developed software tool was notgeted and management concluded that no market participard b@uwilling to
purchase an unfinished customized application, thereforfaithealue was determined to be zero, and the camthhmount of the software
tool was written off. There were no impairment cjes during 2009.

Note 5. Patients First Program and Settlement Costs

In October 2006, the Company entered into a formal agneewith OrthoClear, Inc., OrthoClear Holdings, Iremd OrthoClear
Pakistan Pvt. Ltd. (“OrthoClear”), together with certmdividuals associated with OrthoClear (the “Ortho€Ckegreement”) to end all
pending litigation between the parties. In additionh@€iear agreed to stop the importation of alignerstmdJnited States and discontinue
all aligner business operations worldwide. As a resuiist OrthoClear patients were unable to complete dinsiodontic treatment with
OrthoClear. OrthoClear also agreed to assign andfeato Align all intellectual property rights wigtpplication to the correction of
malocclusion and certain OrthoClear principals aigonesl five year non-compete agreements. The Congpaaiyated this transaction under
the provisions of FASB ASC 805 and concluded that thissaction was not a business acquisition and was gedofon as an asset
purchase.

In an attempt to help minimize treatment disruptiongHerOrthoClear patients and their doctors, the Commpammitted to make
treatment available to these patients at no additimstlunder the “Patients First Program.” In 2006, tbm@any recorded an $8.3 million
charge for the anticipated costs of completing this jmgrSubsequently, in the first quarter of 2007, the Comgauced its Patients First
Program accrual by $1.8 million to reflect a reductiortofritial estimate of the number of cases actuallgived by the case submission
deadline. During 2007, the Company shipped virtually all Patieinst Program cases. The accrued Patients Fogtd®n balance as of
December 31, 2008 was $0.1 million, which principally ésted of estimated future warranty and case refinegmsts. There was no
remaining balance related to the Patients First Pnogisaof December 31, 2009.

The Company paid $20.0 million to OrthoClear in 2006 in atamoce with the terms of the OrthoClear Agreemenuhath
$14.0 million was capitalized on the Company’s balancet shpeesenting the fair value of the non-compete agresmed is being
amortized over 5 years. The Company recorded the merge$6.0 million as settlement costs in 2006.
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Note 6. Intangible Assets

The intangible assets represent non-compete agreeraeeitgad in conjunction with the October 2006 OrthoClegredment at gross
value of $14 million. These assets are amortized ora@lstiine basis over the expected useful life of fieang. As of December 31, 2009
and December 31, 2008, the net carrying value of theseampete agreements was $5.0 million (net of $9.0 millfacoumulated
amortization) and $7.8 million (net of $6.2 million of aowulated amortization), respectively.

For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, totdkatium expense for intangible assets was $2.8 mjl@®8 million
and $3.2 million respectively. The total estimated annualé amortization expense for these intangible assassfadlows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year

2010 $ 2,800
2011 2,188
Total $ 4,988

Note 7. Ormco Litigation Settlement

On August 16, 2009, Align entered into three agreements witlt@@uorporation (“Ormco”), an affiliate of Danaher Corguarn
(“Danaher”): a Settlement Agreement, a Stock Purchaseefnent, and a Joint Development, Marketing and Salesragnt (“Collaboration
Agreement”). The Settlement Agreement ended all pendiggtldn between the parties, and Align agreed to (1) makestapayment of
$13.2 million upon the execution of the agreement and (2) &sotal of 7.6 million non-assessable shares of camstaxk pursuant to the
Stock Purchase Agreement. Under the Collaboration Awrt Align and Ormco agreed to jointly develop and maakedrthodontic
product for the most complex orthodontic cases that contbevisalign system with Ormco’s orthodontic braslkatd arch wire systems
over the next seven years. Because the Company@intyeseveral agreements with Ormco on the samettiatguidance related to
multiple element arrangements was considered in determhgrgjlbcation of the total settlement amount to #méous elements of this
arrangement.

In accordance with the Collaboration Agreement, eadly palt retain ownership of its pre-existing intellectymoperty, and each party
will be granted intellectual property licenses in tespective field for jointly-developed combinatiomgucts. The Collaboration
Agreement, among other things, ensures mutual and equealpadidn, and equal share of the risks, costs, andfigmssociated with
developing the combination product. With the assistanedtufd party valuation firm, Align concluded there wasvalue on the execution
date of this agreement, as the Company has not agitiilany assets or tendered any consideration. In ada@isi@ayrt of its long-term
strategic plan, the Company had the intention of cotltbw with other orthodontic industry leaders to offerisalign in combination with
traditional wires and brackets therapy, and it beli¢lrasthe terms of such an agreement would have bewlarsio those it reached with
Ormco.

Upon execution of the Settlement Agreement, 5.6 mikioares were issued to Danaher and the remaining Zidhnsthares were issued
upon the expiration of the waiting period under the prowsiof the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements, Auhich occurred on
September 21, 2009. In addition to other provisions oS#idement Agreement, these shares may not balresoépt pursuant to an
effective registration statement under the SecuritieoAan available exemption from registration. The Camyps not obligated to affect
any such registration prior to the one year anniversitlyis agreement. The fair value of the shares gheatllect the value that market
participants would demand because of the risk relating tioétdity to access a public market for these secsrfoethe specified
period. The fair value of the unregistered shares wasdetd as of the market closing price on the datestiares were issued less a 25%
non-marketability discount, for a total value of $76.7lioml, including the cash payment.
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Align has concluded that 25% is an appropriate discourthagmarily on an analysis utilizing the Black-Schatezdel to value a
hypothetical put option to approximate the cost of heddiagestricted stock over the expected period of non-maikita This approach
calculates the amount required to buy the right talselpresently restricted stock at the then-curremketgrice on the date the holder can
count on the shares becoming salable on the public exchdhgeassumptions input into the Black-Scholes optiorngrimodel were based
on the stock price on the dates of the share isssgacexpected term of 1 year, expected volatility of 7@%free interest rate of 4.38% to
4.90% and no expected dividends.

The Company corroborated the conclusion indicated by ldekEScholes model by assessing that the discount wasafigreensistent
with the ranges noted from published restricted stock stadié€omparable to discounts on restricted stock transactompleted by other
companies operating in similar industries as Align.

In accordance with the Settlement Agreement, OrmcaseteAlign from any and all past and future claims efrigement for the
period September 9, 2003 through the expiration of the patefarmary 19, 2010 (“infringement period”). In order to deteerhiow to
allocate the settlement value between past infringéared the future use of the patent, Align considereld jpast and estimated future case
shipment volumes during the infringement period, and abolctite total settlement value across all case shigmditte value attributed to
past infringement claims was recorded as litigatiotieseént costs and was based on case shipments froen&egt9, 2003 through
August 16, 2009, totaling $69.7 million, which was recordec@rating expenses and $6.2 million in cost of sales foydheended
December 31, 2009. The remaining $0.8 million will be airedtbased on case shipments during first quarter of 2010.

Note 8. Legal Proceedings
Consumer Class Action

On May 18, 2007, Debra A. Weber filed a consumer classraletsuit against Align, OrthoClear, Inc. and Orth@Cldoldings, Inc.
(d/b/a OrthoClear, Inc.) in Syracuse, New York, U.8&tiirt Court. The complaint alleges two causes of acigainst the OrthoClear
defendants and one cause of action against Align foctifecontract. The cause of action against the Compidley “Breach of Third
Party Benefit Contract” references Align’s agreentemhake Invisalign treatment available to OrthoCleatients, alleging that the Company
failed “to provide the promised treatment to Plairgiflany of the class members”.

On July 3, 2007, the Company filed an answer to the complathasserted 17 affirmative defenses. On July 20, 200Zpthpany
filed a motion for summary judgment on the Third Causeatioh (the only cause of action alleged against Aligdip August 24, 2007,
Weber filed a motion for class certification. On @wtr 1, 2007, the Company filed an opposition to the mdbioalass certification and it is
currently awaiting rulings from the Court. OrthoClear filasl a motion to dismiss. The initial case managernenterence and all discovery
has been stayed pending the Court’s decision on themfotielass certification, OrthoClear’s motion to dissnrand the Company’s motion
for summary judgment. The Company believes the lawsbieé without merit and intends to vigorously defend itsatfcordingly, the
Company believes there is not sufficient evidence tclode that a reasonable possibility exists that aHasisbeen incurred as of
December 31, 2009.

Securities Litigation

In August 2009, Plaintiff Charles Wozniak filed a lawsuit agathe Company and its Chief Executive Officer andiBeat, Thomas M.
Prescott (“Mr. Prescott”), in District Court for tiNorthern District of California on behalf of a claithelass consisting of all persons or
entities who purchased the common stock of Align batwieauary 30, 2007 and October 24, 2007. The complaint allegédigimeand
Mr. Prescott violated Section 10(b) of the Securitieshange Act of 1934 and that Mr. Prescott violated Section 20the
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Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Specifically, the comptdiages that during the class period Align failed to diselthat it had shifted the
focus of the sales force to clearing backlog, causingrdfisant decrease in the number of new case starts Cohe has recently selected a
lead plaintiff. The Company believes the lawsuit@onithout merit and intends to vigorously defend itseléc@dingly, the Company

believes there is not sufficient evidence to conclbdé & reasonable possibility exists that a loss hadibearred as of December 31, 2009.

Note 9. Credit Facilities

On December 5, 2008, the Company renegotiated and ames@adsiing credit facility with Comerica Bank. Under th@galving line
of credit, the Company has $25.0 million of availablerdwings with a maturity date of December 31, 2010. Tiaditfacility requires a
quick ratio covenant and also requires the Company totaiaia minimum unrestricted cash balance of $10.0 millidme interest rate on
borrowings will range from Libor plus 1.5% to 2.0% dependipgn the amount of unrestricted cash the Company maimta®@merica
Bank above the $10.0 million minimum. As of December 8092the Company had no outstanding borrowings under #i# €cility and
is in compliance with the financial covenants.

Note 10. Commitments and Contingencies
Operating leases

Align rents its facilities and certain equipment and awfiifes under non-cancelable operating lease arrangentemtdity leases expire
at various dates through 2013 and thereafter and providpseforegotiated fixed rental rates during the ternteefease.

In February 2005, the Company renewed its Santa Clara headqueatse allowing it to utilize the security depogi$1.3 million paid
at the inception of the lease on July 1, 2000, to reduaadhénly rent payment by $11,000. By the end of the leaseon June 30, 2010,
the security deposit balance will be reduced to $0.6amill

The Company has a facility in San Jose, Costa Riba facility comprises approximately 63,000 square fertasfufacturing and
office space. The monthly rent for the Costa Ricdifaés approximately $84,000. The Company renewed theleaMarch 2008 for an
additional five year term, which commenced in October 20@Bexpires in September 2013.

The Company also has a facility in Juarez, Mexico usetktwufacture clear aligners. This facility compriseapproximately 68,000
square feet of manufacturing and office space with almhorent of approximately $30,000. This lease was assumédteiydampany from
IMS in December 2008 and will expire in July 2013.

The Company’'s European headquarters are located in Amstelithe Netherlands. On August 3, 2007, the original EgreEment
was amended to expand its Amsterdam facility to apprdeimné6,000 square feet of office space. This lease wilkrexpiJune 2012, with
an option to renew for an additional five year ternme Tompany may also terminate this lease in June 20382féer of approximately
$125,000. The monthly rent for the Amsterdam facilitgpproximately $51,000.

The Company recognizes rent expense on a straight-lge dager the lease period, and has accrued for rent exipensed but not
paid. Total rent expense was $3.8 million, $3.8 millior $B.4 million, for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008C07d respectively.
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Minimum future lease payments for non-cancelableskeas of December 31, 2009, are as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year

2010 $ 3,339
2011 2,449
2012 1,780
2013 1,006
Total $ 8,574

On January 26, 2010, the Company entered into an agreesneeif corporate headquarters. Sege 20 “Subsequent Event.”

Note 11. Stockholders’ Equity
Preferred Stock Rights Agreement

The Preferred Stock Rights Agreement (the “Rights Agesd”) is intended to protect stockholders from undaicoercive takeover
practices. In accordance with the Rights AgreemeatBtard of Directors declared a dividend distributiooroé preferred stock purchase
right (a “Right”) for each outstanding share of Alig common stock to stockholders of record on Novembe?@X. Each Right entitles
stockholders to buy one one-thousandth of a share gifi’/AlSeries A Participating Preferred Stock, par v&é001 per share, at an exercise
price of $37.00, subject to adjustment. Rights will becomecisedble upon the occurrence of certain events, incluaiperson or group
acquiring or the announcing the intention to acquire baakbwnership of 15% or more of the then outstanding comsbtack without the
approval of the Board of Directors. Each holder ofghRwill have the right to receive, upon exercise, shafeesmmon stock having a
value equal to two times the purchase price. The Righitexpire on November 22, 2015 or upon the exercise oRtbkts, whichever
occurs earlier.

Common Stock

The holders of common stock are entitled to receive didglevhenever funds are legally available and whernfatatlared by the
Board of Directors. The Company has never declar@aid dividends on its common stock.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Align’s Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “Purchasé)Rtansists of overlapping twenty-four month offering pes with four
six-month purchase periods in each offering period, and expirdanuary 31, 2011. Employees purchase shares at 85% of thar ket
value of the common stock at either the beginning of thehpse period or the end of the purchase period, whicpgeeris lower. The
Purchase Plan provides that the number of shares Gfampany’s common stock reserved for issuance therewnllautomatically increase
on the first trading day of January in each calendarlygan amount equal to three percent (3%) of the total auoflshares of common
stock outstanding on the last trading day in Decemigredmmediately preceding calendar year, with thisiahmcrease not to exceed
1,500,000 shares. The maximum number of shares that caartbedgunder the Purchase Plan in any one year is 800,088 shaommon
stock.

During the year ended December 31, 2009, 545,151 shares svexé imder the Purchase Plan. As of December 31, 2009Qrtimty
had reserved 13,433,456 shares of common stock for futuemiss and 10,124,732 shares remain available for future issuanc
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As of December 31, 2009, there was $1.4 million of tat@mortized compensation costs related to employee stothases. These
costs are expected to be recognized over a weighted ayenage of 0.3 years.

Stock Option Plans

In May 2005, the 2005 Incentive plan (2005 Plan”) replaced the @@k incentive Plan (“2001 Plan”). The 2005 Plan, which ezpir
December 31, 2010, provides for the granting of incentaeksiptions, non-statutory stock options, restricted stodk,ustock appreciation
rights, performance units and performance shares. Esggpgon-employee directors and consultants are eligilbeceive grants under the
2005 Plan. The options are granted for periods not exceestingars and generally vest over 4 years with 25% vestiagear from the date
of grant and 1/48 each month thereafter. The Plan Administrator hawever, grant options with different vesting schedules.

The 2005 Plan has 9,983,379 shares of the Company’'s commbkmesenved for issuance, plus up to an aggregate of 5,000,0@8 sha
that have been or will be returned to the 2001 Planrasult of termination of outstanding options or repwseltdd shares granted under the
2001 Plan on or after March 28, 2005. As of December 31, 2009, Z686fhares have been transferred to the 2005 Plan and 2,747,759
shares remain available for issuance under the 2005 Plan.

Activity for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and @@t the stock option plans are set forth below (in thalssaexcept per
share data):

Stock Options
Weighted
Number of Average
Shares Weighted Remaining Aggregate
Underlying Average Contractual Intrinsic
Stock Options Exercise Term Value
(in thousands) Price (in years) (in thousands)

Outstanding at December 31, 2006 9,17¢ $ 8.8€

Granted 1,517 18.97

Exercised (3,04%) 8.52

Cancelled or expired (514) 11.13
Outstanding at of December 31, 2007 7,135 $ 10.9¢

Granted 2,182 12.78

Exercised (912 6.5

Cancelled or expired (1,099 14.02
Outstanding at December 31, 2008 7,30¢ $ 11.62

Granted 1,134 8.62

Exercised (586) 7.0t

Cancelled or expired (369) 12.45
Outstanding at of December 31, 2009 7,48¢ $ 11.4¢ 6.43 $ 48,825
Vested and expected to vest at December 31, 2009 7,325 $ 11.50 6.38 $ 47,747
Exercisable at December 31, 2009 4,87t $ 11.3¢ 5.34 $ 32,689
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The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above reptefiee total pre-tax intrinsic value (the differencenveen Align’s closing stock
price on the last trading day in 2009 and the exercise pnigkiplied by the number of in-the-money options)twauld have been received
by the option holders had all option holders exercised tipgions on the last day of each fiscal year. Thiewnt will fluctuate based on the
fair market value of Align’s stock. The total intrinsialue of stock options exercised for the years endedritesr 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007
was $3.2 million, $5.2 million, and $43.1 million, respediiveThe Company issues new shares upon the exerciggions.

As of December 31, 2009, there was $16.2 million of tmtaimortized compensation costs related to stock omimh¢hese costs are

expected to be recognized over a weighted average peric?l ygets. For the year ended December 31, 2009, thedotginized tax affect
from exercised options was $0.6 million.

The options outstanding and exercisable by exercise pridecaimber 31, 2009 are as follows:

Range of Exercise Prices Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average
Remaining Weighted Weighted
Contractual Average Average
Term Exercise Exercise
Shares (in years) Price Shares Price
$1.06-% 7.35 1,642,35: 4.04 $ 6.17 1,631,25: $ 6.17
7.40- 8.38 1,945,161 7.35 7.98 1,000,854 8.10
8.39- 13.00 1,927,53( 7.87 12.57 688,41¢ 12.42
13.04 - 18.73 1,682,750 6.24 17.88 1,286,022 18.03
18.81- 27.06 289,96¢ 5.31 20.94 268,10 20.68
$ 1.06 - $27.06 7,487,760 6.43 $ 11.49 4,874,648 $ 11.38

Restricted Stock Units

In 2006, the Compensation Committee of the Board ofdiire approved the grant of restricted stock units (aotg that give the
recipients the right to receive shares as the uegs o its employees and director(s) in addition tokstptions. Each restricted stock unit
award generally vests over 4 years with 25% on the eaeanniversary of the date of grant and 6.25% vestingeglydtiereafter. Each
grant of a restricted stock unit will reduce shareslabis for grant by two shares. In October 2007, the Cosgimn Committee of the
Board of Directors approved a change in vesting fosgective grants of restricted stock units to 25% annually.
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The fair value of restricted stock units is based on tragany’s closing stock price on the date of grant. A sammf the nonvested
shares for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 20@l@zss(in thousands, except per share amounts):

Nonvested as of December 31, 2006
Granted
Vested and released
Forfeited

Nonvested as of December 31, 2007

Granted
Vested and released
Forfeited

Nonvested as of December 31, 2008

Granted
Vested and released
Forfeited

Nonvested as of December 31, 2009

Number of
Shares
Underlying RSUs

(in thousands)

419
480
(179)
(70)

651

685
(258)
(206)

872

326
(257)
(65)

876

Weighted

Average Grant

$

Date Fair
Value

8.71
19.17
9.27
13.31

15.7¢

12.78
15.5¢
15.00

13.6€

8.56
13.3¢
12.44

11.9¢

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Contractual Aggregate
Term Intrinsic
(in years) Value
1.2 $ 15,617

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above reptefiee total pre-tax intrinsic value (calculated by miying Align’s closing
stock price on the last trading day of 2009 by the numfaeorovested RSUs) that would have been received byrihdalders had all RSUs
been vested and released on the last day of eachyksral This amount will fluctuate based on the fairkaavalue of Align’s stock. During
2009, of the 257,536 shares vested and released, approxidta®§ vested shares were withheld for executive RSU taxgmagmesulting

in a net issuance of 217,508 shares.

The total intrinsic value of RSUs vested and releaseug 2009, 2008 and 2007 was $2.9 million, $2.9 million and $3lbmil
respectively. As of December 31, 2009, there was $9.6millf total unamortized compensation costs relatedstdsRand these costs are
expected to be recognized over a weighted average periotl yd&ts.

82



Table of Contents

ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continue d)

Stock-based compensation

The Company measures and recognizes compensation expealéstiare-based payment awards based on estimatedltas over
the requisite service period. The fair value of stockoogtigranted and the option component of the Purchasesifdaes were estimated at
the grant date using the Black-Scholes option pricing moieltiae following weighted average assumptions:

2009 2008 2007
Stock options:

Expected term (in years) 4.4 4.4 4.5
Expected volatility 62.C% 60.C% 68.C%
Risk-free interest rate 1.6% 2.8% 4.4%
Expected dividend — — —
Weighted average fair value at grant date $ 4.32 $ 6.40 $ 10.82
Employee stock purchase plan:

Expected term (in years) 1.3 1.2 1.2
Expected volatility 74.€% 67.2% 55.8&%
Risk-free interest rate 0.6% 2.2% 4.8%
Expected dividend — — —
Weighted average fair value at grant date $ 3.78 $ 4.89 $ 942

The expected term of stock options represents the weligiverage period the stock options are expected to remaiaralits). The
Company used a mid-point model to determine the expectedfatock options based on the Company’s historicalogserpost-vesting
cancellation experience, and the remaining contractual of its outstanding options.

The Company uses its own historical volatility.

The risk-free interest rate is based on the impliediyal a U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issue with a remaiamgequal to the expected
term of the option.

The dividend yield reflects that the Company has not pajctash dividends since inception and does not antigigaiag cash
dividends in the foreseeable future.

Summary of Stock-based Compensation Expense

Stock-based compensation expense recognized in the Cotexbl@tatements of Operations for the years ended eced, 2009,
2008 and 2007 is based on awards ultimately expected to &esf,estimated forfeitures. Estimated forfeituresta®ed on historical
experience at the time of grant and may be revisedcéssary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeituresrdifien those estimates. The

stock-based compensation expense related to all of th@aly’'s stock-based awards and employee stock purchases yeatis ended
December 31, 2009, 2008, 2007 is as follows (in thousands):

For the Years Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007

Cost of revenues $ 1,502 $ 1,752 $ 994
Sales and marketing 4,308 5,289 4,225
General and administrative 7,641 8,011 5,443
Research and development 1,637 2,004 1,549
Total stock-based compensation $ 15,08¢ $ 17,057 $ 12,211
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Note 12. Common Stock Repurchase Program

In April 2008, the Company’s Board of Directors approsetbmmon stock repurchase program authorizing managéomapurchase
up to $50 million of the Company’s outstanding commalst During 2008, the Company purchased approximately 4lidnmshares of
common stock at an average price of $10.76 per share fggeegate purchase price of $50.1 million including comimmssand completed
the stock repurchase program. The common stock repurdiegiseed additional paid-in capital by $38.6 million and incitaseumulated
deficit by $11.6 million. All repurchased shares wereedtiand there were no stock repurchases during 2009.

Note 13. Employee Benefit Plan

In January 1999, the Company adopted a defined contribution retitgan under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Colis
plan covers substantially all employees who meet minimgeraad service requirements and allows participants to dptetian of their
annual compensation on a pre-tax basis. In 2009, the CgimjBoard of Directors authorized the Company to matpal 50% of the
employee’s salary deferral contributions up to a 6% basedeoemployee’s eligible compensation effective 2010.

Note 14. Income Taxes
Deferred tax assets and liabilities were as follawshousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2009 2008
Deferred tax assets, net:
Net operating loss and capital loss carryforwards $ 47,607 $ 48,583
Credit carryforwards 7,58¢ 6,83€
Reserves & accruals 8,947 4,807
Depreciation and amortization 6,19¢ 6,10C
Stock-based compensation 5,606 3,944
Other 785 2,43¢
76,724 72,703
Deferred tax liabilities:
Prepaid expenses 1,739 1,752
Translation gains 239 143
Other 1,344 _
3,322 1,89
Net deferred tax assets before valuation allowance 73,402 70,808
Valuation allowance (6,182) (6,200
Net deferred tax assets $ 67,220 $ 64,608

With the exception of certain capital loss and foreignopetating loss carryforwards, the Company release@xheatuation allowance
on most of the deferred tax assets and recorded an inearhenefit of $64.6 million for the year ended Decen®igr2008. As of
December 31, 2009, the Company believed, except for the itetad above that it was more likely than not, thaatheunt of deferred tax
assets recorded on the balance sheet will be realidedever, should there be a change in the Company'syabiliecover its deferred tax
assets, the tax provision would increase in the periadhich it is more likely than not that the Company canaobver its deferred tax assets.
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At December 31, 2009, the Company had net operating los$otauayds of approximately $187.7 million for federal purpased
$68.1 million for California state tax purposes. If ndizéd, these carryforwards will begin to expire beginnim@020 for federal purposes
and 2011 for California purposes.

The Company has research credit carryforwards of appedgly $4.4 million for federal purposes and $5.4 millienCGalifornia state
tax purposes. If not utilized, the federal credit camyhrds will begin to expire in 2017. The California staeslit can be carried forward
indefinitely.

Effective January 1, 2007, the Company adopted FASB ASC 7d0dfty referenced as FASB Financial Interpretation 48).
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an interpiietabf FASB Statement No. 109”). This interpretaticarifies the criteria for
recognizing income tax benefits under the accountinggioms for income taxes, and requires additional disckssabout uncertain tax
positions. The financial statement recognition oftibeefit for a tax position is dependent upon the benafigimore-likely-than-not to be
sustainable upon audit by the applicable taxing authoritthisthreshold is met, the tax benefit is then messand recognized at the largest
amount that is greater than 50 percent likely of beingzeghLipon ultimate settlement.

The following is a rollforward of the Company’s totabgs unrecognized tax benefit for 2009 (in thousands):

Balance as of January 1, 2009 $ 2,87¢
Tax positions related to current year:

Additions for uncertain tax positions 1,691
Tax positions related to prior year:

Additions for uncertain tax positions 1,73¢

Reductions for uncertain tax positions (378)
Balance as of December 31, 2009 $ 5,92¢

During fiscal year 2009, the amount of unrecognized taxfitemes increased by $3.1 million. The total amounirokcognized tax
benefits was $5.9 million as of December 31, 2009, whichdvoupact the Company’s effective tax rate if recogniZEde Company
recognizes interest and penalties related to unrecagjtax benefits as a component of income tax expenseredt and penalties are
immaterial at the date of adoption and are includedeanutirecognized tax benefits.

The Company is subject to taxation in the U.S. ammwa states and foreign jurisdictions. All of the Compatax years will be open
to examination by the U.S. federal and most state tayoatitis due to the Company’s net operating loss and lbweedit carryforward
position. With few exceptions, the Company is no lorsgdiject to examination by foreign tax authorities forrgédsefore 2005.
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The differences between income taxes using the fedatataty income tax rate of 35% and the Company’s éfiethx rate were as
follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
U.S. federal statutory income tax rate 35.0(% 35.0(% 35.0(%
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit 1.89 7.74 5.04
Deferred tax benefits utilized — (67.09) (44.5%)
Foreign losses not benefited — 4.16 2.40
Impact of differences in foreign tax rates (14.99 (8.13 (7.23)
Amortization of stock-based compensation (6.53 32.30 7.89
Non-deductible foreign exchange losses — (0.92) —
Non-deductible meals & entertainment charges (1.3 3.21 1.21
Valuation allowance release — (378.39 —
Other items not individually material (6.40 3.57 3.54
_ B (ERA 0L S

The domestic and foreign components of income (lossydefovision for income taxes were as follows (in thads

Years ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
Domestic $ (23,075 $ 13,33: $ 30,928
Foreign (10,819 3,743 6,022
Total $ (33,899 $ 17,07¢ $ 36,950

In June 2009, the Costa Rica Ministry of Foreign Tradegany of the Government of Costa Rica, granted a twelse gxtension of
the tax incentives which were previously granted in 2002. tthése incentives, all of the income in Costa Riwmang these twelve year
incentive periods is subject to reduced rates of Costa iRtome tax. The incentive tax rates will expirgarious years beginning in
2017. The Costa Rica corporate income tax rate thatvepgly, absent the incentives, is 30% for 2009. Becaosta Rica incurred a net
loss in 2009, no tax benefit was realized from thesenth@s in 2009. In order to receive the benefit of thentizes, the Company must hire
specified numbers of employees and maintain minimum lefdised asset investment in Costa Rica. If the Compmies not fulfill these
conditions for any reason, our incentive could lapse @ridéome in Costa Rica would be subject to taxatidnigher rates, which could have
a negative impact on the Company’s operating results.
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The provision for (benefit from) income taxes coteisof the following (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
Federal
Current $ (1,196 $ 268 $ 276
Deferred (1,437) (56,939 —
(2,633 (56,666 276
State
Current (96) 784 309
Deferred (1,115) (7,674 —
(1,219 (6,890 309
Foreign
Current 1,280 645 641
Deferred (60) — —
1,220 645 641
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes $ (2,629 $ (62,917 $ 1,226

The Company has not provided additional U.S. incomestaraundistributed earnings from non- U.S. operation$ Bs@mber 31,
2009 because such earnings are intended to be reinvestediialyautside of the United States.

Note 15. Net Profit (Loss) per Share

Basic net profit (loss) per share is computed using thghaedl average number of shares of common stock duringdhéegs unvested
common shares subject to repurchase. Diluted net flosfs) per share is computed using the weighted geeramber of shares of common
stock, adjusted for the dilutive effect of potential comratmtk. Potential common stock, computed using the mgagck method, includes
options, restricted stock units, and the dilutive compbongPurchase Plan shares.

The following table sets forth the computation of basit diluted net profit (loss) per share attributabledmmon stock (in thousands,
except per share amounts):

Years Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
Numerator:

Net profit (loss) $ (31,269 $ 79,987 $ 35,724

Denominator:
Weighted-average common shares outstanding, basic 69,094 66,812 67,176
Dilutive effect of potential common stock — 1,252 4,268
Total shares, diluted 69,094 68,064 71,444
Net profit (loss) per share, basic $ (0.45 $ 1.2C $ 0.53
Net profit (loss) per share, diluted $ (0.45 $ 118 $ 050
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For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, stocls omsbricted stock units, and employee stock purchaséadota
9.3 million, 5.1 million, and 1.0 million, respectivelyere excluded from diluted net profit (loss) per shapabse of their anti-dilutive effect.

Note 16. Comprehensive Income (LosS)

Comprehensive income (loss) includes net profit (Jdssgign currency translation adjustments and unreajaéts and losses on
available-for-sale securities. The components offretrensive income (loss) are as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
Net profit (loss) $ (31,269 $ 79,981 $ 35,72¢
Foreign currency translation adjustments 168 (421 703
Change in unrealized gain/(loss) on available-for-sale
securities 18 33 (49)
Comprehensive income (loss) $ (31,083 $ 79,599 $ 36,378

Note 17. Supplemental Cash Flow Information
The supplemental cash flow information consists of theviing (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
Taxes paid $ 2,004 $ 1,51C $ 1,632
Interest paid $ 84 $ — $ 415
Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Fixed assets acquired with accounts payable, accrued igshibt
through financing $ 1,790 $ 1,322 $ 1,135
Stock component of litigation settlement costs $ 63,51¢ $ — $ —

Note 18. Segments and Geographical Information
Segments

The Company reports segment data based on the managepreraich which designates the internal reporting that s loxge
management for making operating decisions and assessfogmance as the source of the Company’s reportgi#eating segments. During
all periods presented, the Company operated as a bingjleess segment.
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Geographical Information
Net revenues and long-lived assets are presented belovedmagkic area (in thousands):

For the Years Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007

Net revenues:
North America $ 237,033 $ 240,210 $ 236,758
Europe 72,24¢ 61,65- 45,047
Other international 3,055 2,114 2,527
Total net revenues $ 312,33: $ 303,97¢ $ 284,332

As of December 31,

2009 2008 2007

Long-lived assets:
North America $ 91,548 $ 99,086 $ 35,632
Europe 1,01¢ 960 1,081
Other international 1,375 1,388 1,531
Total long-lived assets $ 93,941 $ 101,43 $ 38,244

Note 19. Restructurings

During 2008, the Company announced restructuring plansyiradd| October to increase efficiencies across thanization and lower
the overall cost structure. In July 2008, the Companyemehted a restructuring plan to reduce its full time headdyu® employees
including a phased-consolidation of order acquisition opemsfiam its corporate headquarters in Santa Clara, @ahfto Juarez, Mexico,
which was completed by the end of 2008. The October ragtiugtplan included a total reduction of 111 full time headcausanta Clara,
California by July 2009 as the Company moves its customey @ecounts receivable, credit and collections,caistbmer event registration

organizations, in Santa Clara, California to existinglifeas in Costa Rica.

In 2008, the Company incurred approximately $6.2 million gtroeturing expenses relating to these actions whthdied $0.7 million
related to the acceleration of stock option vesting&8 million related to severance and termination lisnef which $3.0 million was

paid during the year.
In 2009, the Company incurred approximately $1.3 million sfseelated to severance and termination benefits.
Activity and liability balances related to restruchgriactivity for the year ended December 31, 2009 arellasv (in thousands):

Severance and
Benefits

Balance at January 1, 2009 $ 2,501
Restructuring accrual 1,319
Cash payments (3,820
Balance at December 31, 2009 $ —
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Note 20. Subsequent Event

On January 26, 2010, the Company entered into an agreenmeasé new corporate headquarters of approximately 123j02dedeet
in San Jose, California. The lease agreement cormeseon the earlier of August 1, 2010 or the date thep@oyrfirst commences
conducting business in the premises, which is expecteddo beabout June 28, 2010 and will continue for an irtigiath of seven years and
two months. The agreement for the Company’s cunenporate headquarters in Santa Clara, California, expirelune 30, 2010. The
expected future cash payments for the new property aseryiegl in the following table (in thousands):

Fiscal Year

2010 $ 519
2011 1,572
2012 1,619
2013 1,716
2014 and thereafter 7,100
Total $ 12,526
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACC OUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures.

Under the supervision and with the participation of oanagement, including our Chief Executive Officer and ouefdfinancial
Officer, we have evaluated the effectiveness of thegdesid operation of our disclosure controls and procedwsae{med in
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act). Based apenetuation, our Chief Executive Officer and our Chiefncial
Officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and proesdue effective as of December 31, 2009 to providemaa assurance that
information required to be disclosed by us in the repgbatswe file or submit under the Exchange Act is accumubatdccommunicated to
our management, including our Chief Executive Officer andahief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allowdlgndecisions regarding
required disclosure, and that such information is recordedegsed, summarized and reported within the time penpedgisd in the
Securities and Exchange Commission rules and forms.

Management’s annual report on internal control over financia¢porting.

See “Report of Management on Internal Control over FiadfReporting” on page 52 of this Annual Report on ForaK1@hich is
incorporated herein by reference.

Changes in internal control over financial reporting.

There have been no changes in our internal control aeandial reporting during the year ended December 31, 2009 treatiserially
affected or are reasonably likely to materially affectr internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
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PART Il

Certain information required by Part Ill is omitted frdms Form 10-K because we intend to file a definitivexipr®tatement for our
2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “Proxy Statement’)ater than 120 days after the end of the fiscal geaered by this Annual
Report on Form 10-K, and certain information to be inclutiedein is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

The information required by Item 401 of Regulation S-K camicg our directors is incorporated by reference tdRtoxy Statement
under the section captioned “Election of Directors.” iftfermation required by Item 401 of Regulation S-K concerpimgexecutive officers
is set forth intem 1—*Business” of this Annual Report on Form 10-Khe information required by Item 405 of Regulation &K
incorporated by reference to the section entitled i&edt6(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” corgdiin the Proxy
Statement. The information required by Item 407(d)(5) gjuRion S-K is incorporated by reference to the ProxieBtant under the
section entitled “Corporate Governance—Board of DirecgoCommittee Meetings—Audit Committee”.

Code of Ethics

We have a code of ethics that applies to all of our erepkyyincluding our principal executive officer, principahhcial officer and
principal accounting officer. This code of ethics is pbste our Internet website. The Internet address fonebisite isvww.aligntech.com
and the code of ethics may be found on the “Corporater@awee” section of our “Investor Relations” webpage.

We intend to satisfy the disclosure requirement under 5t of Form 8-K regarding an amendment to, or waiver feoprovision of
this code of ethics by posting such information on oursitepat the address and location specified aboves otharwise required by the
NASDAQ Global Market.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by Item 402 of Regulation S-Kirporated by reference to the Proxy Statement undesetttion captioned
“Executive Compensation”. The information required bynket07(e)(4) and (e)(5) is incorporated by referendegd®toxy Statement under
the section captioned “Corporate Governance—Compengagiommittee Interlocks” and “Compensation Committee Reppespectively.
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND M ANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by Item 403 of Regulation S-Kirporated by reference to the Proxy Statement undesettiion captioned
“Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners afahagement.”

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides information as of Decemb®r2009 about our common stock that may be issued upon tlcesexar
options and rights granted to employees, consultantsmbars of our Board of Directors under all existing eqo@iympensation plans,
including the 1997 Equity Incentive Plan, the Employee Stoc&hase Plan, the 2001 Stock Incentive Plan and the 2005 Irec@tdiv, each
as amended, and certain individual arrangements.

Number of securities

Number of securities remaining available for
to be issued upon exercise Weighted average future issuance under
of outstanding options exercise price of equity compensation plans
and restricted stock outstanding (excluding securities
Plan Category units(a) options(b) reflected in column(a))
Equity compensation plans
approved by security holder 8,364,1341)(2) $ 11.4¢ 2,747,75(3)
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders — — —
Total 8,364,13! $ 11.4¢ 2,747,75!

(1) This number reflects the number of securities to hestbsipon exercise of outstanding options and restricted whitskunder the 1997
Equity Incentive Plan, the 2001 Stock Incentive Plan, an8@08 Incentive Plan. The 876,375 restricted stock unitsded in this
number have an exercise price of zero.

(2) We are unable to ascertain with specificity the nunatbsecurities to be issued upon exercise of outstandjhtsrunder the Employee
Stock Purchase Plan or the weighted average exercisepauatstanding rights under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

(3) This number reflects securities available for futuseasce under the 2005 Stock Incentive Plan and the EmSbyele Purchase
Plan. In January 2001, all outstanding options under the H§3ify Incentive Plan were subsumed under the 2001 Stoektine
Plan. Since that date no options have been granted tedE®97 Equity Incentive Plan. In May 2005, stockholder approas
obtained for the 2005 Incentive Plan and the 2001 StocktineePlan was terminated. Since that date, no fudgpions have been
granted under the 2001 Stock Incentive Plan. The 2005 Ined?ian has 9,983,379 shares of common stock reserveddaneg, plus
up to an aggregate of 5,000,000 shares that are or would&eneeturned to the 2001 Stock Incentive Plan asil oésermination of
outstanding options or repurchase of shares granted undftheStock Incentive Plan after March 28, 2005. As of DeceBihe
2009, 2,360,766 shares have been transferred to the 2005JVad@ati. As of December 31, 2009, the number of shasdalale for
future issuance under the 2005 Incentive Plan was 2,747/AfB8grants of restricted stock units will reduce shareslae for grant
at a 2:1 ratio. The Employee Stock Purchase Plan pravidethe number of shares of our common stock reservésstance
thereunder will automatically increase on the firatling day of January in each calendar year by an arequat to three percent
(3%) of the total number of shares of common stock autltg on the last trading day in December of the imnaglipreceding
calendar year, with this annual increase not to exc&,000 shares. The maximum number of shares that can be graaéedhe
Employee Stock Purchase Plan in any one year is 800,000 shaoessmon stock. As of December 31, 2009, the total nuofbe
shares of our common stock available for future isstiander the Employee Stock Purchase Plan was 10,124,732.
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by Item 404 and Item 407 of Regul&i#his incorporated by reference to the Proxy Stat¢meder the
sections captioned “Certain Relationships and Relatag Paansactions” and “Corporate Governance—Direatdependence”, respectively.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by Item 9(e) of Schedule 14A ofSbeurities Act of 1934, as amended, is incorporated byereferto the
Proxy Statement under the section captioned “Ratidicadf Appointment of Independent Registered Public Accountants
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(8) Financial Statements

1. Consolidated Financial Statements

The following documents are filed as part of this Annuaddreon Form 10-K:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 60
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the yeatsdeDecember 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 61
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 62
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity forydees ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 63
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yemtsdeDecember 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 64
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 65

2. The following financial statement schedule is filed a$ pithis Annual Report on Form 10-K:
Schedule II—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves

All other schedules have been omitted as they areeqatred, not applicable, or the required information hetise included.

SCHEDULE II: VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES

Additions
(reductions) Reclass
Balance at to Costs from
Beginning and Write Other Balance at
of Period Expenses offs Accounts End of Period
(in thousands)
Allowance for doubtful accounts:
Year ended December 31, 2007 $ 844 % 46 $ (184 $ 54 $ 760
Year ended December 31, 2008 $ 760 % 71 $ (1849) $ (35 $ 612
Year ended December 31, 2009 $ 612 $ 708 $ (305 $ 18 $ 1,033
Allowance for deferred tax assets:
Year ended December 31, 2007 $ 102,153 $ (8,996 $ — $ — $ 93,157
Year ended December 31, 2008 $ 93,157 $ (86,959 $ — $ — $ 6,200
Year ended December 31, 2009 $ 6,200 $ (18) $ — $ — $ 6,182
Allowance for excess and obsolete inventory and
abandoned product:
Year ended December 31, 2007 $ 188 $ 47 $ (19 $ — $ 216
Year ended December 31, 2008 $ 216 % 11¢ $ (189) $ — $ 138
Year ended December 31, 2009 $ 138 % 73 $ (107 $ — $ 104
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(b) The following Exhibits are included in this Annual Report onnk-d0-K:

Exhibit
Number

3.1

3.2

3.2A

3.3

4.1

4.2

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.8

Description Form

Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation of registrant.

Form S-1, as
amended (File
No. 333-49932)

Amended and Restated Bylaws of registrant. Form S-1, as
amended (File

No. 333-49932)

Amendment to Amended and Restated Bylaws Form 8-K
of registrant. (item 5.03 only)

Certificate of Designations of Rights, Form 8-K
Preferences and Privileges of Series A

Participating Preferred Stock registrant.

Form of Specimen Common Stock Certificate. Form S-1, as
amended (File
No. 333-49932)

Preferred Stock Rights Agreement dated Form 8-K
October 25 between the registrant and

EquiServe Trust Company, N.A.

Lease Agreement by and between James Form S-1, as

Lindsey and registrant, dated Jitg 2000, fo
office space located at 881 Martin Avenue,
Santa Clara, CA.

amended (File
No. 333-49932)

First Amendment to Lease Agreement dated Form 8-K
February 2, 2005 for office space located at

881 Martin Avenue, Santa Clara, CA.

Lease Agreement dated August 30, 2001 by  Form 10-K
and between James S. Lindsey and registrant
for office space located at 821 Martin Avenue,

Santa Clara, CA.

First Amendment to Lease Agreement dated Form 8-K
February 2, 2005 for office space located at

821 Martin Avenue, Santa Clara, CA.

Lease Agreement dated March 4, 2004 by and Form 10-Q
between James S. Lindsey and registrar

office space located at 831 Martin Avenue,

Santa Clara, CA.

First Amendment to Lease Agreement dated Form 8-K
February 2, 2005 for office space located at

831 Martin Avenue, Santa Clara, CA.

Amended and Restated Loan and Security Form 8-K.

Agreement dated December 16, 2005 between
registrant and Comerica Bank.
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Date

12/28/2000

12/28/2000

12/18/2007

10/27/2005

01/17/2001

10/27/2005

11/14/2000

02/09/2005

03/27/2003

02/09/2005

05/06/2004

02/09/2005

12/19/2005

Exhibit
Number
Incorporated
by reference
herein

Filed
herewith

3.1

3.2

3.1

3.1

4.1

4.1

10.4

10.1

10.28

10.3

10.40

10.2

10.1
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Exhibit
Number

10.8A

10.8B

10.8C

10.10%

10.11%

10.12%
10.13%

10.14%
10.14Af%

10.14BY

10.14Ct

10.14Dt

10.15%

10.167

Description Form

Amendment to Amended and Restated Loan and Form 10-K
Security Agreement dated March 7, 2007 between

registrant and Comerica Bank.

Amendment to Amended and Restated Loan and Form 8-K
Security Agreement dated March 7, 2007 between

registrant and Comerica Bank.

Amendment to Amended and Restated Loan and Form 8-K
Security Agreement dated March 7, 2007 between

registrant and Comerica Bank.

Form S-1 as
amended (File
No. 333-49932)

Form of option agreement under Align’s 2001 Stock Form 10-Q
Incentive Plan.

Registrant’s 2001 Stock Incentive Plan.

Registrant’'s Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Form S-8

Form of Indemnification Agreement by and between Form S-1 as
registrant and its Board of Directors and its executiveamended (File
officers. No. 333-49932)

Amended and restated 2005 Incentive Plan. Form 10-K

Form of restricted stock unit award agreement under Form 10-Q
registrant’s 2005 Incentive Plan (General Form;
Officer Form: Director Form).

Form of option award agreement under registrant’'s Form 10-Q
2005 Incentive Plan.

Form of restricted stock unit award agreement under Form 10-K
registrant’s 2005 Incentive Plan with Thomas M.

Prescott.

Form of restricted stock unit award agreement Form 10-K
amendment under registrant’s 2005 Incentive Plan

with Thomas M. Prescaott.

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement:  Form 10-Q

May 5, 2008 between Thomas M. Prescott and
registrant.

Form of Employment Agreement entered into by and Form 10-Q
between registrant and each of executive off
(other than CEO).
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Date

03/12/2007

04/29/2008

01/13/2009

12/28/2000

11/05/2004

02/05/2001
01/17/2001

03/12/2007
11/05/2007

08/04/2005

03/12/2007

03/12/2007

04/08/2008

05/08/2008

Exhibit
Number
Incorporated
by reference
herein

Filed
herewith

10.8A

10.1

10.1

10.13

10.13.1
99.2

10.15

10.14

10.1A,
10.1B,
10.1C

10.4

10.14C

10.14D

10.4

10.3
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Exhibit
Number

10.17%

10.20

10.20A

10.21

10.21A

10.22

10.23%

10.24%

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.281f

Description Form

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement  Form 10-Q
between registrant and Thomas M. Prescott ¢

May 5, 2008.

Lease Agreement dated February 26, 2003 betweerForm 10-Q
KPMG FIDES (Costa Rica) S.A., Parque
Global S.A.A. and registrant.

Omnibus Amendment to Lease and Service Form 8-K
Agreement between KPMG FIDES (Costa RiSa&).,

Parque Global S.A. and Align dated June 24, 2008.

Lease Agreement between Schootsepoort Form 10-Q
Onroerendgoed Beheer, for Stichting Philips

Pensioenfonds and Align.

Amendment to Lease Agreement between Align
Technology, B.V. and TT Amsterdam Project
Company (formerly Stichting Philips Pensioenfonds).

Form 8-K

Form 10-Q

Lease Agreement between International
Manufacturing Solutions Operaciones, S.R.L. and
Elamex de Juarez, S.A. de C.V. dated July 31, 2008
(assigned to Align as Lessee effective April 1, 2009).

Summary of 2009 Incentive Awards for Named Form 8-K
Executive Officers.

Summary of Executive Officer Annual Incentive Form 8-K/A
Plan. Form 8-K
Lease Agreement between Align and Carr N.P. Form 8-K

Properties, L.L.C. dated January 26, 2010

Settlement Agreement dated as if August 16, 2009 Form 10-Q/A
between Align Technolog Inc. and Ormco
Corporation.

Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of the d&yhof
August by and between Align Technology, Inc. and
Danaher Corporation.

Form 10-Q

Joint Development, Marketing and Sales Agreement~orm 10-Q/A
entered in as of August 16, 2009 by and between
Align Technology, Inc. and Ormco Corporation
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Date

05/08/2008

05/13/2003

06/26/2008

08/05/2004

08/03/2007

12/22/2008

02/08/2010

05/27/2009
08/08/2010

01/29/2010

02/24/2010

11/05/2009

02/24/2010

Exhibit
Number
Incorporated
by reference
herein

Filed
herewith

10.4

10.36

10.1

10.41

10.4

10.1

Item 5.02 only

Item 5.02 only
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Exhibit
Number
Incorporated

Exhibit by reference Filed
Number Description Form Date herein herewith
21.1 Subsidiaries of Align Technology, Inc. *
23.1 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independent *

Registered Public Accounting Firm.
31.1 Certifications of Chief Executive Officer pursuant tecBange *

Act Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a), as adopted pursuant to

Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2003.
31.2 Certifications of Chief Financial Officer pursuant tecBange *

Act Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a), as adopted pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2003.

32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Firtsa *
Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2003.

t Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangerntezhii an Exhibit to this form pursuant to ltems 14(a)lat{d) of
Form 10-K.

tt Portions of the exhibit have been omitted pursuantégaest for confidential treatment. The confidentiatipos have been filed with
the SEC.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) db¢learities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly cehisedgort to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto dtliprazed, on February 26, 2010.

ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC.

By: /s THOMAS M. PRESCOTT
Thomas M. Prescott
President and Chief Executive Officer

Know All Men By These Presents, that each person wsigsature appears below constitutes and appoints Thoma®atoR, his or
her attorney-in-fact, with the power of substitutiaor, iim or her in any and all capacities, to sign amgndments to this Report on
Form 10-K and to file the same, with exhibits thetatd other documents in connection therewith, with tloeri8ees and Exchange
Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming all thatreatsaid attorneys-in-fact, or his or her substituteubstitutes, may do or cause to be
done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchanigef AB34, this report has been signed below by the followingpps on
behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and oddtes indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s THOMAS M. PRESCOTT President and Chief Executive Officer (Principal February 26, 2010
Thomas M. Prescott Executive Officer)
/s/  KENNETH B. AROLA Chief Financial Officer and Vice President, February 26, 2010
Kenneth B. Arola Finance (Principal Financial Officer and Principal

Accounting Officer)

/s/ DAvID E. COLLINS Director February 26, 2010
David E. Collins

/s/  JOSEPHL ACOB Director February 26, 2010
Joseph Lacob

/s/  C. RAYMOND L ARKIN Director February 26, 2010
C. Raymond Larkin

/s/  GEORGEJ. MORROW Director February 26, 2010
George J. Morrow

/s/ DAvID C. NAGEL Director February 26, 2010
David C. Nagel
/s/ GREGJ. SANTORA Director February 26, 2010

Greg J. Santora

/s WARREN S. THALER Director February 26, 2010
Warren S. Thaler
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Exhibit Index
Exhibit
Number
Incorporated
Exhibit by reference Filed
Number Description Form Date herein herewith
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Form S-1, as 12/28/2000 3.1
registrant. amended (File
No. 333-49932)
3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of registrant. Form S-1, as 12/28/2000 3.2
amended (File
No. 333-49932)
3.2A Amendment to Amended and Restated Bylaws of registrarfform 8-K (item5.03  12/18/2007 3.1
only)
3.3 Certificate of Designations of Rights, Preferences an Form 8-K 10/27/2005 3.1
Privileges of Series A Participating Preferred Stock
registrant.
4.1 Form of Specimen Common Stock Certificate. Form S-1, as 01/17/2001 4.1
amended (File
No. 333-49932)
4.2 Preferred Stock Rights Agreement dated October 25 betwdarm 8-K 10/27/2005 4.1
the registrant and EquiServe Trust Company, N.A.
10.1 Lease Agreement by and between James Lindsey and  Form S-1, as 11/14/2000 10.4
registrant, dated June 20, 2000, for office space located atamended (File
881 Martin Avenue, Santa Clara, CA. No. 333-49932)
10.2 First Amendment to Lease Agreement dated February 2, Form 8-K 02/09/2005 10.1
2005 for office space located at 881 Martin Avenue, Santa
Clara, CA.
10.3 Lease Agreement dated August 30, 2001 by and between Form 10-K 03/27/2003 10.28
James S. Lindsey and registrant for office space ldGte
821 Martin Avenue, Santa Clara, CA.
10.4 First Amendment to Lease Agreement dated February 2, Form 8-K 02/09/2005 10.3
2005 for office space located at 821 Martin Avenue, Santa
Clara, CA.
10.5 Lease Agreement dated Mar¢h2004 by and between Jar Form 10-Q 05/06/2004 10.40
S. Lindsey and registrant for office space located at
831 Martin Avenue, Santa Clara, CA.
10.6 First Amendment to Lease Agreement dated February 2, Form 8-K 02/09/2005 10.2
2005 for office space located at 831 Martin Avenue, Santa
Clara, CA.
Table of Contents
Exhibit
Number
Incorporated
Exhibit by reference Filed
Number Description Form Date herein herewith
10.8 Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement datedm 8-K. 12/19/2005 10.1
December 16, 2005 between registrant and Comerica Bank.
10.8A Amendment to Amended and Restated Loan and SecuritfForm 10-K 03/12/2007 10.8A

Agreement dated March 7, 2007 between registrant and
Comerica Bank.



10.8B Amendment to Amended and Restated Loan and Securitfform 8-K 04/29/2008 10.1
Agreement dated March 7, 2007 between registrant and
Comerica Bank.
10.8C Amendment to Amended and Restated Loan and Securitfform 8-K 01/13/2009 10.1
Agreement dated March 7, 2007 between registrant and
Comerica Bank.
10.10t Registrant’s 2001 Stock Incentive Plan. Form S-1 as 12/28/2000 10.13
amended (File
No. 333-49932)
10.11¢t Form of option agreement under Align’s 2001 Stock Form 10-Q 11/05/2004 10.13.1
Incentive Plan.
10.12¢t Registrant’'s Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Form S-8 02/05/2001 99.2
10.13¢t Form of Indemnification Agreement by and between Form S-1 as 01/17/2001 10.15
registrant and its Board of Directors and its executive ~ amended (File
officers. No. 333-49932)
10.14% Amended and restated 2005 Incentive Plan. Form 10-K 03/12/2007 10.14
10.14At Form of restricted stock unit award agreement under Form 10-Q 11/05/2007 10.1A, 10.1B
registrant’s 2005 Incentive Plan (General Form; Officer 10.1C
Form: Director Form).
10.14Bt Form of option award agreement under registrant’s 2005 Form 10-Q 08/04/2005 10.4
Incentive Plan.
10.14Ct Form of restricted stock unit award agreement under Form 10-K 03/12/2007 10.14C
registrant’s 2005 Incentive Plan with Thomas M. Prescott.
10.14D%t Form of restricted stock unit award agreement amentimeForm 10-K 03/12/2007 10.14D
under registrant’s 2005 Incentive Plan with Thomas M.
Prescott.
10.15¢t Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated Form 10-Q 04/08/2008 10.4
May 5, 2008 between Thomas M. Prescott and registrant.
Table of Contents
Exhibit
Number
Incorporated
Exhibit by reference Filed
Number Description Form Date herein herewith
10.16t Form of Employment Agreement entered into by and Form 10-Q 05/08/2008 10.3
between registrant and each of executive officer («
than CEO).
10.17¢t Amended and Restated Employment Agreement Form 10-Q 05/08/2008 10.4
between registrant and Thomas M. Prescott ¢
May 5, 2008.
10.20 Lease Agreement dated February 26, 2003 between Form 10-Q 05/13/2003 10.36
KPMG FIDES (Costa Rica) S.A., Parque Global S.A.A.
and registrant.
10.20A Omnibus Amendment to Lease and Service Agreemeriorm 8-K 06/26/2008 10.1
between KPMG FIDES (Costa Rit S.A., Parque
Global S.A. and Align dated June 24, 2008.
10.21 Lease Agreement between Schootsepoort Form 10-Q 08/05/2004 10.41
Onroerendgoed Beheer, for Stichting Philips
Pensioenfonds and Align.
10.21A Amendment to Lease Agreement between Align Form 10-Q 08/03/2007 10.4
Technology, B.V. and TT Amsterdam Project Company
(formerly Stichting Philips Pensioenfonds).
10.22 Lease Agreement between International Manufacturingrorm 8-K 12/22/2008 10.1



Solutions Operaciones, S.R.L. and Elamex de
Juarez, S.A. de C.V. dated July 31, 2008 (assigned to
Align as Lessee effective April 1, 2009).

10.23t Summary of 2009 Incentive Awards for Named Form 8-K 02/08/2010 Item 5.02 only
Executive Officers.

10.24t Summary of Executive Officer Annual Incentive Plan. Form 8-K/A 05/27/2009 Item 5.02 only
Form 8-K 08/08/2010
10.25 Lease Agreement between Align and Carr N.P. Form 8-K 01/29/2010
Properties, L.L.C. dated January 26, 2010
10.26 Settlement Agreement dated as if August 16, 2009  Form 10-Q/A 02/24/2010
between Align Technolog Inc. and Ormco
Corporation.
10.27 Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of the 16th day dform 10-Q 11/5/09

August by and between Align Technology, Inc. and
Danaher Corporation.

Table of Contents

Exhibit
Number
Incorporated

Exhibit by reference Filed
Number Description Form Date herein herewith
10.281f Joint Development, Marketing and Sales Agreement ehtefeorm 10-Q/A 02/24/2010

in as of August 16, 2009 by and between Align

Technology, Inc. and Ormco Corporation
21.1 Subsidiaries of Align Technology, Inc. *
23.1 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independent *

Registered Public Accounting Firm.
31.1 Certifications of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to *

Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a), as adopted

pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2003.
31.2 Certifications of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to *

Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a), as adopted
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2003.

32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Firtéa *
Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2003.

t Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangerteghtii an Exhibit to this form pursuant to Items 14(a)lat{d) of
Form 10-K.

tt Portions of the exhibit have been omitted pursuantégaest for confidential treatment. The confidentialippg have been filed with
the SEC.



Exhibit 21.1
Subsidiaries of Align Technology, Inc.
The registrant’s principal subsidiaries as of Decen3tie2009, are as follows:
—  Align Technology De Costa Rica, SRL, Costa Rica
—  Align Technology, B.V., The Netherlands
—  Aligntech de Mexico, S. de R.L. de C.V.



Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referemtied Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 333-55020, N@. 38877,
No. 333-143319, No. 333-161054, No. 333-82874, No. 333-116912, and No. 333-12588§) dkchnology, Inc. of our report dated
February 26, 2010, relating to the financial statememiandial statement schedule, and the effectiveness of intanmabl over financial
reporting, which appears in this Form 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
San Jose, California
February 26, 2010



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS

I, Thomas M. Prescaott, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Aligohfmlogy, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain anyeusttatement of a material fact or omit to state i@mnahfact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstamodsr which such statements were made, not misleadtingespect to the
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, dreat fhancial information included in this report, faigsesent in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatamscash flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegefpresented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disclosonérals and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and intermiadl crer financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or csudedisclosure controls and procedures to be designedaurde
supervision to ensure that material information regptonthe registrant, including its consolidated subsekars made known to
us by others within those entities, particularly duringgleod in which this annual report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reportorg;aused such internal control over financial repgrtinbe designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assuranaeliregthe reliability of financial reporting and the pagation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordaitieggenerally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disatosantrols and procedures and presented in this rejgocbaclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proes, as of the end of the period covered by this repat lmassuch
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant&smal control over financial reporting that occurredrduthe registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourthefispiarter in the case of an annual report) that has nigteffacted, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrauriternal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and Wbalisclosed, based on our most recent evaluation ohatteontrol over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit cii@enof the registrant’s board of directors (or pessperforming the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessdhéndesign or operation of internal control over finan@gbrtingwhich are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registraaliity to record, process, summarize and report filghirdformation; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesnagement or other employees who have a significanirr¢he registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 26, 2010

/s/  THOMAS M. PRESCOTT

Thomas M. Prescott
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

I, Kenneth B. Arola, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Aligohfmlogy, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contaimdnue statement of a material fact or omit to stateaterial fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light afrifienstances under which such statements were madajsieading with
respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, dreat fhancial information included in this report, faigsesent in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatamscash flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegefpresented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disclosonérals and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and intermiadl crer financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or cawugedisclosure controls and procedures to be designed auder
supervision, to ensure that material informationtiredgto the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiareemade known to
us by others within those entities, particularly duringgleod in which this annual report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reportorgzaused such internal control over financial repgrtinbe designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assuranaeiregthe reliability of financial reporting and the pagation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordaitieggenerally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disatosantrols and procedures and presented in this rejgocbaclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proes, as of the end of the period covered by this repat lmassuch
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant&smal control over financial reporting that occurredrdythe registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourthefispiarter in the case of an annual report) that has nigteffacted, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrsuriternal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and Wbalisclosed, based on our most recent evaluation ohatteontrol over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit citiaenof the registrant’s board of directors (or pessperforming the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesseahéndesign or operation of internal control over finan@gpbrting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registraaliity to record, process, summarize and report filghirdformation; and

(c) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesnagement or other employees who have a significanirr¢he registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 26, 2010

/s/  KENNETHB. AROLA
Kenneth B. Arola
Chief Financial Officer and Vice President, Finance




Exhibit 32

906 Certification

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF  FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2003

I, Thomas M. Prescott, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.Cti&2 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the SarBatessAct of
2003, that the Annual Report of Align Technology, Inc. omi10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009 foltypdies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securitiehdhge Act of 1934 and that information contained in thisnF-K fairly presents
in all material respects the financial condition aeslilts of operations of Align Technology, Inc.

By: /s THOMAS M. PRESCOTT
Date: February 26, 2010 Name: Thomas M. Prescott
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer

I, Kenneth B. Arola, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Becl350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbatessA@t of 2003,
that the Annual Report of Align Technology, Inc. onfdt0-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009 fully cesplith the
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securitiehdhge Act of 1934 and that information contained in thisnF-K fairly presents
in all material respects the financial condition aeslilts of operations of Align Technology, Inc.

By: /s/ KENNETHB. AROLA

Date: February 26, 2010 Name: Kenneth B. Arola
Title: Chief Financial Officer and Vice President, Finance




